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Forward-Looking Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform A€t1®95 provides a "safe harbor" for forward-lookstgtements made by or on behalf of Photronics, Inc
("Photronics" or the "Company"). These statemergsbased on management's beliefs, as well as atismsimade by, and information currently available
to, management. Forward-looking statements magdetified by words like "expect”, "anticipate”, lleve", "plan”, "projects"”, and similar expressions
All forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertaintied are difficult to predict. In particular, anaement contained in this annual report on F
10K, in press releases, written statements, or atbeuments filed with the Securities and Exchangmfgsion, or in the Company's communications
discussions with investors and analysts in the mboourse of business through meetings, phone, caltsonference calls, regarding the consummatith a
benefits of future acquisitions, expectations weéhpect to future sales, financial performanceratpe efficiencies, or product expansion, are satfo
known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and coetieges, many of which are beyond the control ofGbenpany. These factors may cause actual results,
performance, or achievements to differ materialbnf anticipated results, performance, or achievasaétactors that might affect such forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to, ovezainomic and business conditions; economic antigablconditions in international markets; the derd
for the Company's products; competitive factorthmindustries and geographic markets in whichQbmpany competes; changes in federal, state and
international tax requirements (including tax reb@nges, new tax laws and revised tax law intespogts); interest rate fluctuations and other edpitarke
conditions, including changes in the market pritthe Company's common stock; foreign currency arge rate fluctuations; changes in technology; the
timing, impact, and other uncertainties of futucguisitions; the seasonal and cyclical nature efssamiconductor and flat panel display industries;
management changes; damage or destruction to tm@&ty's facilities by natural disasters, labokssj political unrest, or terrorist activity; thiility of
the Company to place new equipment in service ime@ly basis; obtain additional financing; achiargicipated synergies and other cost savings in
connection with acquisitions and productivity praps; fully utilize its tools; achieve desired y®lgricing, product mix, and market acceptancesof i
products; and obtain necessary export licenses.fémyard-looking statements should be considerdiht of these factors. Accordingly, there is no
assurance that the Company's expectations wikakzed. The Company does not assume responsitaitithe accuracy and completeness of the forward-
looking statements and does not assume an obliggtiprovide revisions to any forward-looking stagnts except as otherwise required by securitids an
other applicable laws.




PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Photronics, Inc. ("Company") is a Connecticortporation, organized in 1969. Its principal exeauioffices are located at 15 Secor Road, Broddfie
Connecticut 06804, telephone (203) 775-9000. Phaso Inc. and its subsidiaries are collectiveligreed to herein as "Photronics” or the "Compaiyie
Company's website is located at http://www.photteriom. The Company makes available, free of chtargeigh its website, its annual reports on Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current répon Form 8-K, and amendments to those repoes &t furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 16{d)
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon asmehdy practicable after such materials are eleatedly filed or furnished to the Securities andcBange
Commission. The information contained or incorpedain the Company's website is not part of theseichents.

Photronics is one of the world's leading manufasiof photomasks, which are high precision phaipigic quartz plates containing microscopic im:
of electronic circuits. Photomasks are a key eldrrethe manufacture of semiconductors and flaiepdisplays ("FPDs"), and are used as masters to
transfer circuit patterns onto semiconductor waéerd flat panel substrates during the fabricatibimtegrated circuits ("ICs") and a variety of FP&wd, to
a lesser extent, other types of electrical andcapiomponents. The Company currently operatesipaily from nine manufacturing facilities; two wfich
are located in Europe, two in Taiwan, one eachadreld and Singapore, and three in the United States.

Manufacturing Technology

The Company manufactures photomasks, which areasethsters to transfer circuit patterns onto semdigctor wafers and flat panel substrates. The
Company's photomasks are manufactured in accordaititeircuit designs provided on a confidentiasisaby its customers. IC and FPD photomasks are
manufactured in layers, each having a distincigpativhich is etched onto a different photomask. iEselting series of photomasks is then used tgéma
the circuit patterns onto each successive layarsefmiconductor wafer or flat panel substrate. tfpieal manufacturing process for a photomask imesl
the receipt and conversion of circuit design datenanufacturing pattern data. A lithography systeem exposes the circuit pattern onto the photomask
blank. The exposed areas are developed and etolpedduce that pattern on the photomask. The phaéris then inspected for defects and conformity to
the customer's design data. After any defectsegraired, the photomask is cleaned using a propyietacess, any required pellicles (protective sracent
cellulose membranes) are applied and, after fimgdéction, the photomask is shipped to the customer

The Company currently supports customers acrosithepectrum of IC production and FPD technolegiy manufacturing photomasks using electron
beam or optical-based technologies. Electron beairaser-based systems are the predominant teaiaslosed for photomask manufacturing. These
technologies are capable of producing the finer fesolution, tighter overlay and larger die simethe larger and more complex circuits currentjnlg
designed. Electron beam and laser generated pheksncan be used with the most advanced processthgitjues to produce the most advanced
semiconductors and FPDs for use in an array ofymisd However, in the case of IC production, etattseam technologies fabricate the large majofity o
critical layer photomasks. End markets served ¥@tiphotomasks include devices used for micropramsssnemory, telecommunications and related
applications. The Company currently owns a numibdigh-end and mature electron beam and laser-tmg#dms. The production of photomasks by the
optical (laser-based) method is less expensivdessdprecise than those manufactured on high-eudreh beam systems.

The first several layers of photomasks are sometiraquired to be delivered by the Company withirh@drs from the time it receives customers' de
data. The ability to manufacture high quality pmésks within short time periods is dependent upbiist processes, geographic proximity to customers,
efficient manufacturing methods, high productioelgiand high equipment reliability. The Company kgoto meet these requirements by making
significant investments in research and developmeanufacturing, and data processing systems, yamdillzing statistical process control methods to
optimize the manufacturing process and reduce diroles.




Quality control is an integral part of the pirmask manufacturing process. Photomasks are nentéd in temperature, humidity, and particulate
controlled clean rooms because of the high levelre€ision, quality and manufacturing yield reqdirBach photomask is inspected several times dtiie
manufacturing process to ensure compliance wittoowsr specifications. The Company continues to nsaltestantial investments in equipment to inspect
and repair photomasks to ensure that customerfaagicins are met.

The majority of IC photomasks produced for the ssmductor industry employ geometries of 90 nanorseielarger. At these geometries, the
Company can produce full lines of photomasks aedetlis no significant technology employed by thenpany's competitors that is not also availabléé&
Company. The Company is also capable of producilidifies of photomasks for high-end IC and FPDleggpions. In the case of ICs, this includes
photomasks at and below the 65 nanometer technalody and, for FPDs, at and above the Generatienohhology node. The Company has access to
technology and customer qualified manufacturingatidjiy that allows it to compete in high-end matkserving both IC and FPD applications.

Sales and Marketing

The market for photomasks primarily consists of detit and international semiconductor and FPD naotufers and designers, including a limited
number of manufacturers who have the capabilitptiernally manufacture photomasks. Photomasks areufactured by independent merchant
manufacturers like Photronics, and by semicondwator FPD manufacturers that produce photomasksi@xely for their own use (captive manufacture
Since the mid-1980s, there has been a strong inefsdia, Europe and North America towards the divesor closing of captive photomask operations by
semiconductor manufacturers and an increase islthee of the market served by independent manuastur his trend has been driven by the increasing
complexity involved in manufacturing and the higistof the necessary capital equipment.

Generally, the Company and each of its customegagmin a qualification and correlation proces®teethe Company becomes an approved supplier.
Thereafter, the Company typically negotiates pggiarameters for a customer's orders based orusiterser's specifications. Some prices may remain in
effect for an extended period of time. In somednses, the Company enters into sales arrangeméhtamunderstanding that, as long as the Company's
performance is competitive, the Company will reeedvspecified percentage of that customer's phatomeguirements.

The Company conducts its sales and marketing desvprimarily through a staff of full-time salesrponnel and customer service representatives who
work closely with the Company's management andnieahpersonnel. In addition to the sales persoah#ie Company's manufacturing facilities, the
Company has sales offices throughout the UniteteSt&urope and Asia.

The Company supports international customers thrdnggh its domestic and international facilitieheTCompany considers its presence in internat
markets to be an important factor in attracting rmesstomers, providing global solutions to its castos, minimizing delivery time, and serving custosne
that utilize manufacturing foundries outside of theited States, principally in Asia. See Note 1Th® Company's consolidated financial statementthfo
amount of net sales and long-lived assets attiifdeitm each of the Company's geographic areaseftipns.
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Customers

The Company primarily sells its products tadimg semiconductor and FPD manufacturers. The @awip largest customers (listed alphabetically)
during the fiscal year ended October 31, 2010¢&ii2010") included the following:

Aptina Imaging Corporation Magnachip Semiconductor

AU Optronics Corp. Micron Technology, Inc.

Dongbu HiTek Co. Ltd. Nanya Technology Corporatic
Freescale Semiconductor, Inc. National Semiconductor Corporati
Global Foundries, Inc.* Novatek Microelectronics Corp., Lt
HannStar Display Corp. ON Semiconductor Corporation
IM Flash Technologies, LLC Samsung Electronics Ctl,
Inotera Memories, Inc. ST Microelectronics, Inc.
Jenoptik AG Texas Instruments Incorporated
LG Electronics, Inc. United Microelectronics Corp.

* formerly Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturingd.L

During fiscal 2010, the Company sold its productd services to approximately 600 customers. SamElexronics Co., Ltd. accounted for
approximately 19% of the Company's net sales oafig010 and 2009 and 25% of the Company's net gaféscal 2008. This included sales of both I@ an
FPD photomasks. The Company's five largest custgnrethe aggregate, accounted for approximateds, 3% and 44% of net sales in fiscal 2010, 2009,
and 2008, respectively. A significant decreasénenamount of sales to any of these customers ¢m@mvd a material, adverse effect on the financial
performance and business prospects of the Company.

Seasonality

The Company's quarterly revenues can be affectebdédgeasonal purchasing of its customers. The @oynis typically impacted during its first fiscal
quarter by the North American and European holigeryods, as some customers reduce their effector&days and orders during this period. Additionally
the Company can be impacted during its first obeddiscal quarter by the Asian New Year holidayigs, which also may reduce customer orders.

Research and Development

The Company conducts its primary research and dpwent activities for IC photomasks at its MP Masikchnology Center, LLC ("MP Mask") joint
venture operation located in Boise, Idaho, and-®b photomasks at PK, Ltd., its subsidiary in Ko in site-specific research and development
programs to support strategic customers. Thesanmgsand development programs and activities asgded to advance the Company's leadership in
technology and manufacturing efficiency. The Conypalso conducts application oriented research @veldpment activities to support the early adoption
of new photomask or supporting data and serviagsigogy into the customers' applications. Cursemédsearch and development photomask activities ar
focused on 32 nanometer node and below IC techga@od Generation 8 and higher FPD technology. Témgany believes these core competencies will
continue to be a critical part of semiconductor nfanturing as optical lithography continues to sadgvice capabilities at and below 45 nanometes. Th
Company has incurred research and development seperi $14.9 million, $15.4 million and $17.5 natiiin fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Company believes that it owns, controls, or licenggluable proprietary information that is necegsar its business as it is presently conducteds Th
includes trade secrets as well as patents. The @ayripelieves that its intellectual property andiéraecret know-how will continue to be importanitso
technical leadership in the field of photomasks.

Patents and Trademarks

The Company has over 45 patents with ownershipdatén the United States. The subject matter @fetpatents generally relates to the manufacture o
IC photomasks themselves and the use of photontaskanufacture other products. The expiration datésese patents range from 2011 to 2028.
Additionally, pursuant to a technology license &gnent with Micron Technology, Inc. (Micron), the @pany has access to certain technology of Micron
and MP Mask. The Company also has a number ofrirades and trademark registrations in the UnitedeStand in other countries.
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While the Company believes that its intelletforoperty is, and will continue to be, importémthe Company's technical leadership in the fidld
photomasks, the Company's operations are not depend any one individual patent. The Company [gtstis intellectual property rights regarding
products and manufacturing processes by utilizeigmts. The Company also relies on non-disclosgimreements with employees and vendors to protect its
intellectual property and proprietary processes.

Materials, Supplies and Equipment

Raw materials used by the Company generally inchigle precision quartz plates (including large grtsdes), which are used as photomask blanks,
primarily obtained from Japanese and Korean sugplgellicles and electronic grade chemicals, whighused in the manufacturing process; and coms
which are durable plastic containers in which phwasks are shipped. These materials are generaifgesh from several suppliers. Although the Company
is not dependent on any one supplier for mostsofaitv materials, glass blanks used for the prodndaif certain high-end photomasks are only avaslabl
from one supplier. The Company believes that itization of a select group of strategic supplienables it to access the most technologically ach@n
materials available. On an ongoing basis, the Campantinues to consider additional supply sources.

The Company relies on a limited number of equipnseippliers to develop and supply the equipment uséte photomask manufacturing process.
Although the Company has been able to obtain eqeipron a timely basis, an inability to obtain eaqougnt when required could adversely affect the
Company's business and results of operations.

Backlog

The first several layers of a set of photomasksfoircuit pattern are often required to be shippéhin 24 hours of receiving a customer's designs.
Because of the short period between order and &ripdates (typically from 1 day to 2 weeks) foign#icant amount of the Company's sales, the dolla
amount of current backlog is not considered to baliable indicator of future sales volume.

International Operations

International sales were approximately 71%, 72% &ftb of the Company's net sales in fiscal 201092061 2008, respectively. The Company
believes that its ability to serve internationalrkeds requires it to have, among other thingsgcallpresence in the markets that it serves. Tlojgires a
significant investment in financial, managerialeagtional, and other resources.

Operations outside of the United States are subjaaherent risks, including fluctuations in exolye rates, political and economic conditions iriows
countries, unexpected changes in regulatory reopgngs, tariffs and other trade barriers, diffiaatin staffing and managing international operagion
longer accounts receivable collection cycles andmally adverse tax consequences. These factayshave a material, adverse effect on the Company's
ability to generate sales outside the United Staekto deploy resources where they could otherlbgsesed to their greatest advantage and, consiguen
may adversely affect its financial condition anduiés of operations. Note 17 of the notes to then@any's consolidated financial statements repats n
sales and long-lived assets by geographic region.

Competition

The photomask industry is highly competitive andstraf the Company's customers utilize multiple phudisk suppliers. The Company's ability to
compete depends primarily upon its consistencyradipct quality and timeliness of delivery, as wadlpricing, technical capability and service. The
Company also believes that proximity to customean important factor in certain markets whereeyiche from order to delivery is critical. A few
competitors have greater financial, technical, satearketing and other resources than the ComJdreyCompany believes that consistency of product
quality, timeliness of delivery, and price are gcipal factors considered by customers in s&lgdheir photomask suppliers. An inability to méstse
requirements could adversely affect the CompamyessThe Company believes that it is able to caenpfectively because of its dedication to custome
service, investment in state-of-the-art photomagkimment and facilities, and experienced techrecaployees.
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The Company estimates that for the types of phosésa manufactures (IC and FPD) the size of th&l tnarket (captive and merchant) is
approximately $3.5 billion. Competitors include Qmungraphics, Inc., Dai Nippon Printing Co., Ltd.,yéoCorporation, SK-Electronics Co. Ltd., Taiwan
Mask Corporation, Toppan Printing Co., Ltd. and pap Chungwha Electronics Corporation. The Compdsty @mpetes with semiconductor
manufacturers' captive photomask manufacturingaijmers that supply photomasks for internal use anspme instances, also for external customers and
foundries. The Company expects to face continueapetition which, in the past, has led to pressametuce prices. The Company believes the pressure
reduce prices has contributed to the decreasesinumber of independent manufacturers, and expactspressure to continue in the future.

Employees

As of October 31, 2010, the Company had approxiindt800 employees. The Company believes it oft@rapetitive compensation and other benefits
and that its employee relations are good.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The Company's dependency on the semiconductor indurg, which is volatile, could have a negative matéal impact on its business.

The Company sells substantially all of its photoksa® semiconductor designers, manufacturers amudftes, as well as to other high performance
electronics manufacturers. The Company believeshieademand for photomasks depends primarily @igdeactivity rather than sales volume from
products using photomask technologies. Consequentlincrease in semiconductor or FPD sales daesevessarily result in a corresponding increase in
photomask sales. In addition, the reduced use sibmized ICs, a reduction in design complexity eotthanges in the technology or methods of
manufacturing or designing semiconductors or a dtmmn in the introduction of new semiconductor oDRiResigns could reduce demand for photomasks
even if the demand for semiconductors and FPDe&sas. Further, advances in design and producttinaats for semiconductors and other high
performance electronics could reduce the demangtotomasks. Historically, the semiconductor indubis been volatile, with sharp periodic downturns
and slowdowns. These downturns have been chamsaddny, among other things, diminished product deimaxcess production capacity and accelerated
erosion of selling prices. The semiconductor induskperienced a downturn in fiscal 2008, whichtoared through fiscal 2009, and had an adverse it
on the Company's 2009 operating results.

The Company's sales of both IC and FPD photomaskeased in fiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal 2086.Company's results may suffer if either the
IC or FPD photomask market does not grow or if@menpany is unable to serve these markets succlgsdbke Company believes that the demand for
photomasks for both ICs and FPDs depends primanilglesign activity and, to a lesser extent, upomarease in the number of production facilitiesdi
manufacture ICs or FPDs. As a result, an increa$€ or FPD sales will not necessarily lead to mesponding increase in photomask sales. A slowdar
the development of new technologies for fabricatidg or FPDs could reduce the demand for relatedgohasks even if the demand for ICs or FPDs
increases.

The Company incurred net losses in fiscal years 20@&nd 2008, and may incur future net losses.

The Company incurred net losses of $41.9 milliofisoal 2009 and $210.8 million in fiscal 2008. Feeet losses were incurred due to the global
recession and related severe downturn experiencételsemiconductor industry that began in 2008.Id&ses incurred in both fiscal years 2009 and8200
include significant non-cash charges for restruogs, impairments of goodwill, and impairments afdived assets. The Company returned to profitak
and had net income of $23.9 million in fiscal 200t cannot provide assurance that future rest@iligerations will be profitable.

The Company's quarterly operating results fluctuatesignificantly and may continue to do so in the futre, which could adversely impact the
Company's business.

The Company has experienced fluctuations in itstgug operating results and anticipates that duattuations will continue and could intensify imet
future. Fluctuations in operating results may resuvolatility in the prices of the Company's commstock and financial instruments linked to theigaof
the Company's common stock. Operating results houajufate as a result of many factors, includingdize and timing of orders and shipments, the ééss
significant customers, changes in product mix, nedbgical change, fluctuations in manufacturinggse competition and general economic conditiorise
Company operates in a high fixed cost environmadi to the extent its revenues and asset utilizatiorease or decrease, operating margins will be
positively or negatively impacted. The Company'stomers generally order photomasks on an as-ndmi#s, and substantially all of the Company's net
sales in any quarter are dependent on orders estdiring that quarter. Since the Company opewsitbdittle backlog and the rate of new orders mayy
significantly from month-to-month, the Company'pital expenditures and, to some extent, expensddare based primarily on sales forecasts.
Consequently, if anticipated sales in any quartenat occur when expected, capital expenditureseapénse levels could be disproportionately higid, a
the Company's operating results would be adverdféigted. Due to the foregoing factors, the Compaglieves that period-to-period comparisons of its
operating results are not necessarily meaningfdlthat these comparisons cannot be relied upondésaitors of future performance. In addition, itufie
quarters the Company's operating results couldebmabthe expectations of public market analystsiamdstors which, in turn, could materially advdyse
affect the market price of the Company's commoaoksto




The Company's industry is subject to rapid technolgical change and the Company might fail to remain@mpetitive, which could have a material,
adverse effect on the Company's business and resultf operations.

The photomask industry has been, and is eggddotcontinue to be, characterized by technoldgitange and evolving industry standards. In otder
remain competitive, the Company will be required¢datinually anticipate, respond to and utilizerofiag technologies of increasing complexity in both
traditional and emerging markets that it servegdnticular, the Company believes that, as semigctod geometries continue to become smaller andsFPD
become larger with improved performance, it willreguired to manufacture increasingly complex phwsks. Additionally, the demand for photomasks
has been, and could in the future be, adversefctfl by changes in semiconductor and high perfecmalectronics fabrication methods that affect the
type or quantity of photomasks utilized, such asngfes in semiconductor demand that favor field raognable gate arrays and other semiconductor
designs that replace applicatispecific ICs. Furthermore, increased market acoeptaf alternative methods of IC designs onto sendactor wafers, sut
as direct-write lithography, could reduce or eliatmthe need for photomasks in the production wiicenductors. As of the end of fiscal 2010, direcite
lithography has not been proven to be a commeyciédble alternative to photomasks, as it is comsd to be too slow for high volume semiconductor
wafer production. However, should direct-write ayather alternative methods of transferring ICigles to semiconductor wafers without the use of
photomasks achieve market acceptance, the Comgarsitsess and results of operations would be nadtieddversely affected. If the Company is unable
to anticipate, respond to or utilize these or ottieanging technologies, due to resource, technodbgr other constraints, its business and resfilts
operations could be materially adversely affeckadther, should sales volumes decrease based bpdiotv of design releases from the Company's
customers, the Company may have excess or undzegdtijproduction capacity that could significantlypact operating margins, or result in write-offsnfr
asset impairments.

The Company's operations will continue to require sbstantial capital expenditures, for which it may ke unable to obtain funding.

The manufacture of photomasks requires substantiastments in high-end manufacturing capabilitgxisting and new facilities. The Company
expects that it will be required to continue to makibstantial capital expenditures to meet thent@olgical demands of its customers and to positifor
future growth. The Company's capital expenditurgnpents for fiscal 2011 are expected to be in tingeaof $70 million to $90 million, of which $40
million was accrued as of October 31, 2010. Furttier Company's credit facility has a limitation @apital expenditure payments. The Company cannot
provide assurance that it will be able to obtamadditional funding required in connection with dperations on reasonable terms, if at all, drahg such
inability will not have a material, adverse effectits business and results of operations.

The Company's agreements with Micron have severaisks; should either company not comply or executender these agreements it could
significantly disrupt the Company's business and tehnological activities, which could have a materialadverse effect on the Company's operations
or cash flows.

On May 5, 2006, Photronics and Micron entered @joint venture known as MP Mask. The joint ventdeselops and produces photomasks for
leading-edge and advanced next generation semictmduAs part of the formation of the joint verguMicron contributed its existing photomask
technology center located at its Boise, Idaho, figaders of MP Mask and Photronics paid Micron $a8ion in exchange for a 49.99% interest in MP
Mask, a license for photomask technology of Micaml certain supply agreements. Since the formatidine joint venture, the Company has received net
distributions of approximately $4 million througlc®ber 31, 2010.




MP Mask is governed by a Board of Managerppaged by Micron and the Company. Since MP Maisiception, Micron, as a result of its majority
ownership, has appointed the majority of the marsageéhe number of managers appointed by each gastybject to change as ownership interests change.
Under the MP Mask joint venture operating agreentiiet Company may be required to make additionaitalacontributions to the joint venture up to the
maximum amount defined in the operating agreentémivever, should the Board of Managers determineatiditional funding is required, the joint
venture shall pursue its own financing. If the joienture is unable to obtain its own financingnay request additional capital contributions fritva
Company. Should the Company choose not to makgquested contribution to the joint venture, its ovehép interest may be reduced. In December 2010,
the Company made an additional capital contributibfi4 million to the MP Mask joint venture relateda capital call requested by the joint venture.

On May 19, 2009, the Company's capital lease ageaewith Micron for the Company's state-of-therahoFab facility ("U.S. nanoFab") in Boise,
Idaho was canceled, at which time Photronics anctdi agreed to enter into a new lease agreemettiddd.S. nanoFab building. Under provisions of the
new lease agreement, quarterly lease paymentsregueed, the lease term was extended, and ownexktiip property will not transfer to the Compary a
the end of the lease term. As a result of the m@asd agreement, the Company reduced its leasatitatig and the carrying value of its assets undpital
leases by approximately $28 million. Including 828 million reduction in the carrying value of assender capital leases, the Company's total inverst
in the purchase and equipping of the Company's hhBoFab was approximately $178 million throughabet 31, 2010. The U.S. nanoFab began
production in the second fiscal quarter of 2008.

The failure of Photronics or Micron to comply oreexite under any of these agreements, capitalizbeonse of existing technology or further develop
technology could result in a significant disruptionthe Company's business and technological &ieSyiand could adversely affect the Company's
operations and cash flows.

The Company has been dependent on sales to a linttaumber of large customers; the loss of any of tlse customers or a significant reduction in
orders from these customers could have a materiahdverse effect on its sales and results of operatie.

Historically, the Company has sold a significardagmrtion of photomasks to a limited number of I@ &P D manufacturers. During fiscal 2010, one
customer, Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd., accoufmiedpproximately 19% of the Company's net salég CTompany's five largest customers, in the
aggregate, accounted for approximately 39%, 4294486 of net sales in fiscal 2010, 2009, and 20€8pectively. None of the Company's customers has
entered into a significant long-term agreement whth Company requiring them to purchase the Conipamgducts. The loss of a significant customea or
significant reduction or delay in orders from aign#ficant customer, (including reductions or dedajue to customer departures from recent buying
patterns), or an unfavorable change in market, @odry or competitive conditions in the semiconductioFPD industries, could have a material, adverse
effect on the Company's financial performance amlr®ess prospects. The continuing consolidatisseaficonductor manufacturers or an economic
downturn in the semiconductor industry may incretsdikelihood of losing a significant customedamave an adverse effect on the Company's financial
performance and business prospects.

The Company depends on a small number of suppliefsr equipment and raw materials and, if the Companis suppliers do not deliver their
products to it, the Company may be unable to delivats products to its customers, which could adverly affect its business and results of
operations.

The Company relies on a limited number of photonsghkipment manufacturers to develop and supplgtfugoment it uses. These equipment
manufacturers currently require lead times of up2anonths or longer between the order and theelgliof certain photomask imaging and inspection
equipment. The failure of such manufacturers toettgvor deliver such equipment on a timely basidadbave a material, adverse effect on the Company'
business and results of operations. Further, theg2ay relies on equipment manufacturers to devieliype generations of manufacturing equipment to
meet its requirements. In addition, the manufantugquipment necessary to produce advanced photsmesld become prohibitively expensive.

The Company uses high precision quartz photomaikb| pellicles, and electronic grade chemicalsimanufacturing processes. There are a limited
number of suppliers of these raw materials andpfoduction of certain high-end photomasks, themnly one available supplier. The Company has no
long-term contracts for the supply of these rawemals. Any delays or quality problems in connegtiwith significant raw materials, particularly
photomask blanks, could cause delays in the shia#rphotomasks, which could have a material, esdveffect on the Company's business and results of
operations. The fluctuation of foreign currency leaage rates, with respect to prices of equipmetdiraw materials used in manufacturing, could akseeh
a material, adverse effect on the Company's busiaed results of operations.
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The Company faces risks associated with the use sphisticated equipment and complex manufacturing qocesses and technologies. The inability
of the Company to effectively utilize such equipmerand perform such processes could have a materiadverse effect on its business and results of
operations.

The Company's complex manufacturing proceesgsre the use of expensive and technologicalhhsticated equipment and materials, and are
continuously modified in an effort to improve maactfuring yields and product quality. Minute impig#, defects or other difficulties in the manufaictg
process can lower manufacturing yields and makduymts unmarketable. Moreover, manufacturing leagidge photomasks is more complex and time
consuming than manufacturing less advanced photsnaad may lead to delays in the manufacturinglldévels of photomasks. The Company has, on
occasion, experienced manufacturing difficultied aapacity limitations that have delayed the Comfsaability to deliver products within the time nas
contracted for by its customers. The Company capritide assurance that it will not experience ¢hasother manufacturing difficulties, or be subjec
increased costs or production capacity constraintse future, any of which could result in a la§ustomers or could otherwise have a materialeess®
effect on its business and results of operations.

The Company's debt agreements limit its ability toobtain financing and may obligate the Company to rpay debt before its maturity.

As of October 31, 2010, the Company had $5.0 milbatstanding under its revolving credit faciliQutstanding bank debt (excluding capital leases)
was reduced by $24.8 million during the year en@etbber 31, 2010, with cash provided by operati&itsancial covenants related to the bank debts are
Total Leverage Ratio, Minimum Fixed Charge Rati@Xitnum Last Twelve Months (LTM) Cap Ex Payments &idimum Unrestricted Cash Balances.
Existing covenant restrictions limit the Comparafdlity to obtain additional debt financing andpskd Photronics be unable to meet one or moreesfgh
covenants, its lenders may require the Compangpay any outstanding balance prior to the expinatimte of the agreements. The Company's ability to
comply with the financial and other covenants éndebt agreements may be affected by worseningoetioror business conditions, or other events. The
Company cannot assure that additional sourcesaféing would be available to pay off any long-téronrowings, so as to avoid default. Should the
Company default on certain of its long-term bornogg, a cross default would occur on other long-teomowings, unless amended or waived.

The Company's prior and future acquisitions may enail certain operational and financial risks.

The Company has made significant acquisitions fipinout its history. Acquisitions have focused orréasing its manufacturing presence in Asia,
including its acquisition in 2000 of Precision Seoniductor Mask Corporation, a Taiwanese photomaamkufacturer, and in 2001 of PK Ltd., a Korean
photomask manufacturer, and increasing its teclyyot@ase through the MP Mask joint venture betwessti®nics and Micron in 2006. The Company may
make additional acquisitions in the future. Acqtiisis place significant demands on the Companyisigidtrative, operational and financial personma a
systems. Managing acquired operations entails nousesperational and financial risks, including idiffties in the assimilation of acquired operations
diversion of management's attention from otherrmes concerns, managing assets in multiple geoigreggions, amortization of acquired intangibleeds
and the potential loss of key employees of acquigeerations. Sales of acquired operations maymeédillowing an acquisition, particularly if theian
overlap of customers served by the Company anddbaired operation and these customers transi@amather vendor in order to ensure a second source
of supply. Furthermore, the Company may be requiadilize its cash reserves and/or issue newrgigaifor future acquisitions, which could have a
dilutive effect on its earnings per share.

The Company's cash flow from operations and currenholdings of cash may not be adequate for its currg and long-term needs.

The Company's liquidity is highly dependent orsitiées volume and the timing of its capital expamds, (which can vary significantly from period to
period), as it operates in a high fixed cost envinent. Depending on conditions in the semiconduatar FPD markets, the Company's cash flows from
operations and current holdings of cash may naidegjuate to meet its current and Idagn needs for capital expenditures, operationsdatd repayment
Historically, in certain years, the Company hasduseernal financing to fund these needs. Due talitions in the credit markets, some financing
instruments used by the Company in the past map@&currently available to it. The Company contmteevaluate further cost reduction initiatives.
However, the Company cannot provide assurancettditional sources of financing would be availablé& on commercially favorable terms, should its
cash requirements exceed its cash available framatipns, existing cash, and cash available unslerédit facility.
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The Company may fail to realize projected benefitselated to its 2009 restructurings in China and théJ.K. or, it may incur unforeseen charges
related to any other possible future facility closwes or restructurings.

In order to lower its operating costs and éase its manufacturing efficiencies, the Compamged the manufacture of photomasks at its fadility
Manchester, U.K., in January 2009 and at its figciti Shanghai, China, in July 2009. However, tleenpany cannot assure that these actions will résult
its realizing the projected benefits related tastheestructurings.

The Company also cannot assure that there wilbaadditional facility closures or other restrugtgs in the near or long-term, nor can it assuag ith
will not incur significant charges should therearsy additional future facility closures or resturitgs.

The Company operates in a highly competitive indusy; should the Company be unable to meet its custoans' requirements for product quality,
timeliness of delivery or technical capabilities,ticould adversely affect the Company's sales.

The photomask industry is highly competitive, anostrof the Company's customers utilize more thanpitotomask supplier. The Company's
competitors include Compugraphics, Inc., Dai Nippomting Co., Ltd., Hoya Corporation, SK-ElectresiCo., Ltd., Taiwan Mask Corporation, Toppan
Printing Co., Ltd. and Toppan Chunghwa Electroficsporation. The Company also competes with sendigctor manufacturers' captive photomask
manufacturing operations, some of which market thkeotomask manufacturing services to outside cnste. The Company expects to face continued
competition from these and other suppliers in thtare. Many of the Company's competitors have suiistly greater financial, technical, sales, mérig
and other resources than it has. Also, when produsinaller geometry photomasks, some of the Conpanynpetitors may be able to more rapidly
develop, produce, and achieve higher manufactyiielgs than the Company. The Company believesdbasistency of product quality and timeliness of
delivery, as well as price, technical capabilitydaervice are the principal factors consideredustomers in selecting their photomask suppliehe. T
Company's inability to meet these requirementsdcbave a material, adverse effect on its businedsesults of operations. In the past, competilgahto
pressure to reduce prices which, the Company kediesontributed to the decrease in the numberdeendent photomask suppliers. This pressure to
reduce prices may continue in the future.

The Company's substantial international operationsare subject to additional risks.

International sales were approximately 71%, 72% &ffd of the Company's net sales in fiscal 201092061 2008, respectively. The Company
believes that maintaining significant internationpkrations requires it to have, among other thiadecal presence in the geographic markets that i
supplies. This requires significant investmentfirdncial, managerial, operational, and other resesl Since 1996, the Company has significantly
expanded its operations in international marketadguiring existing businesses in Europe, establish manufacturing operation in Singapore, acqgiri
majority equity interests in photomask manufactymperations in Korea and Taiwan and building a nemufacturing facility for FPD photomasks in
Taiwan. The Company, in order to enable it to o@rits investments and other resources, closelyitmis the semiconductor and FPD manufacturing
markets for indications of geographic movement amdpnjunction with these efforts, continues teess the locations of its manufacturing facilitiBsese
assessments may result in the opening or closiffigcdities.

Operations outside of the United States are subjaaherent risks, including fluctuations in exolge rates, unstable political and economic comnuktio
in various countries, unexpected changes in regylaequirements, tariffs and other trade barridifficulties in staffing and managing internatibna
operations, longer accounts receivable paymenesyahd potentially adverse tax consequences. Taetees may have a material, adverse effect on the
Company's ability to generate sales outside ofUthiged States and, consequently, on its businedsesults of operations.

Changes in foreign currency exchange rates could rtexially, adversely affect the Company's businessesults of operations, or financial condition.
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The Company's financial statements are prejparaccordance with accounting principals gengradicepted in the United States of America (U.S.
GAAP) and are reported in U.S. dollars. The Compsimyernational operations have transactions atahices denominated in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar, primarily the Korean won, New Taiwawlldr, Japanese yen, Singapore dollar, euro, amgaolind sterling. In fiscal 2010, the Company
recorded a net gain of $2.0 million in its statetr&roperations from changes in foreign currendgsawhile its net assets were increased by $18liém
as a result of the translation of foreign currefiogncial statements to U.S. dollars. In the e@drstignificant foreign currency fluctuations, the@pany's
results of operations, financial condition or célsikvs may be adversely affected.

The Company's business depends on managerial ancthmical personnel, who are in great demand, and itgability to attract and retain qualified
employees could adversely affect the Company's busiss and results of operations.

The Company's success depends, in part, upon keggegal, engineering and technical personnel,alkas its ability to continue to attract and ratai
additional qualified personnel. The loss of certey personnel could have a material, adverse taffgan the Company's business and results of dpaesat
There can be no assurance that the Company cam itstkey managerial, and technical employeeshar it can attract similar additional employeeshe
future. The Company believes that it provides cditipe compensation and incentive packages toritpleyees.

The Company may be unable to enforce or defend iswnership and use of proprietary technology, and ta utilization of unprotected Company
developed technology by its competitors could adveely affect the Company's business, results of ogions and financial position.

The Company believes that the success of its bssidepends more on its proprietary technologyrinéion and processes, and know-how than on its
patents or trademarks. Much of its proprietary iinfation and technology relating to manufacturingggisses is not patented and may not be patentats
Company cannot offer assurance that:

e it will be able to adequately protect its technglpg
e competitors will not independently develop similechnology; or

e international intellectual property laws will adedely protect its intellectual property rights.

The Company may become the subject of infrimgret claims or legal proceedings by third partiéh wespect to current or future products or preess
Any such claims, with or without merit, or litigati to enforce or protect its intellectual propeights, or that require the Company to defendfitzgainst
claimed infringements of the rights of others, cbrdsult in substantial costs, diversion of resesy@and product shipment delays or could force the
Company to enter into royalty or license agreemeather than dispute the merits of these clainmg, &f the foregoing could have a material, advef$ect
on the Company's business, results of operatiodsiaancial position.

The Company may be unprepared for changes to envirmmental laws and regulations and may incur liabilites arising from environmental matters.

The Company is subject to numerous environaidaivs and regulations that impose various enwir@mtal controls on, among other things, the
discharge of pollutants into the air and water tredhandling, use, storage, disposal and clearf-gplidl and hazardous wastes. Changes in thesedagds
regulations may have a material, adverse effetherCompany's financial position and results ofrafjens. Any failure by the Company to adequately
comply with these laws and regulations could suhjeo significant future liabilities.

In addition, these laws and regulations magadse clean-up liabilities on current and former ergrand operators of real property, without regard
fault, so that these liabilities may be joint aederal with other parties. In the past, the Comgzas/been involved in remediation activities relgtio its
properties. The Company believes, based upon dunfemmation, that environmental liabilities rateg to these activities or other matters are naienia
to its financial statements. However, there candeassurances that the Company will not incur aatenal environmental liabilities in the future.
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The Company's production facilities could be damagg or disrupted by a natural disaster or labor strike, either of which could adversely affect its
financial position, results of operations and casHows.

The Company's facilities in Taiwan are located sesmically active area. In addition, a major satgphe such as an earthquake or other naturatdr:
labor strikes, or work stoppage at any of the Camgfsamanufacturing facilities could result in alprmged interruption of its business. Any disruption
resulting from these events could cause signifidafays in shipments of the Company's productstiaadoss of sales and customers, which could have a
material, adverse effect on the Company's finarmaltion, results of operations, and cash flows.

The Company's sales can be impacted by the healtin@ stability of the general economy, which could acersely affect its operations and cash flows.

Unfavorable general economic conditions in the @rSther countries in which the Company does lssiimay have the effect of reducing the demand
for photomasks. Economic downturns may lead tocaedese in demand for end products whose manufagtprocesses involve the use of photomasks,
which may result in a reduction in new product gesand development by semiconductor manufactundrigh could adversely affect the Company's
operations and cash flows.

Changes in the Company's credit standing could advsely affect its financial position.

The Company's ability to raise debt capital camiagerially influenced by acquisitions, dispositipather investment decisions, and the resultssof it
operations in the near-term. Should the Compamggitcstanding decline, its cost and ability tseaheeded working and investment capital could raee
affect its results of operations and cash flows.

Additional taxes could adversely affect the Compariy financial results.

The Company's tax filings are subjected to auditaxyauthorities in the various jurisdictions inialhit does business. These audits may result in
assessments of additional taxes that are subséyuesdlved with the authorities or through the teuCurrently, the Company believes there are no
outstanding assessments whose resolution wouldt iresumaterial, adverse financial result. Howexwhe Company cannot offer assurances that unassert
or potential future assessments would not havetariah adverse effect on its financial conditiarresults of operations.

The Company's business could be adversely impactég global or regional catastrophic events.

The Company's business could be adversely affégtéerrorist acts, major natural disasters, wideagroutbreaks of infectious diseases, or the cak
or escalation of wars, especially in the Asianoagihere the Company generates a significant podidts sales. Such events in the geographic nsgio
which the Company does business, including recgrslations of political tensions and military ogirnas within the Korean Peninsula where a major
portion of the Company's foreign operations arated, could have material, adverse impacts oraless/olume, cost of raw materials, earnings, tasis
and financial condition.

The fair value of certain warrants issued on the Campany's common stock is subject to fluctuations wit the market price of the Company's
common stock, and may have a material, adverse efteon the Company's results of operations.

On May 15, 2009, in connection with an amendmenthéoCompany's then existing credit facility, Pbatcs issued 2.1 million warrants to purchase the
Company's common stock, approximately 0.3 millibmvhich were outstanding at October 31, 2010. Assalt of certain net cash settleable put provision
in the warrant agreement, the warrants were redaade liability during fiscal 2009 and are subsejy being reported at fair value. The warrantseach
exercisable for one share of common stock and hawexercise price of $0.01. Therefore, changelsamtarket price of the Company's common stock
could result in a significant change in the failueaof the warrants, which would result in a chasgeredit to other income (expense) in the Comfzany
statements of operations. The Company, as a refscitanges in the market price of its common stoe&orded non-cash losses of $0.9 million and $0.3
million in fiscal years 2010 and 2009, respectivélyture changes in the market price of the Comgarommon stock may have a material, adverse effect
on the Company's results of operations on a noh4gasis.
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Certain warrants issued by the Company include a "pt" provision, giving the holders the option to selthe warrants to the Company at
approximately the market price of the Company's cormon stock, which may have a material, adverse effeon the Company's cash flows.

The warrants discussed above include a pwigiom which may be exercised from May 15, 20120tigh the expiration of the warrants on May 15,
2014. The put provision is only exercisable if @@mpany's common stock is not traded on a natiexetiange. As of October 31, 2010, approximately
300,000 warrants were outstanding that includedtgmvision. The purchase of a significant amafrthe Company's common stock by Photronics under
the put provision may have a material, adversecetfe the Company's cash flows.

Servicing the Company's debt requires a significanamount of cash, and the Company may not have suffent cash flow from its operations to pay
its indebtedness.

The Company's ability to make scheduled paymentiebf principal and interest or to refinance idebtedness depends on its future performance,
which is subject to economic, financial, compeétand other factors beyond the Company's contre. Jompany's business may not continue to generate
sufficient cash flow from operations in the futioeboth service its debt and make necessary capipgnditures. If the Company is unable to genevath
cash flow, it may be required to adopt one or nadternatives, such as selling assets, restructuaég or obtaining additional equity capital omtsrthat
may be onerous or highly dilutive. The Companyiitglio refinance its indebtedness will depend npbe conditions in the capital markets and the

Company's financial condition at such time. The @any may not be able to engage in any of theseitiesi or engage in these activities on desirable
terms, which could result in a default on its delbligations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

The following table presents certain informatiomabthe Company's photomask manufacturing fadilitie

Type of
Location Interest
Allen, Texas Owned
Boise, Idaho Leased
Brookfield, Connecticut Owned
Bridgend, South Wales Leased
Cheonan, Korea Owned
Dresden, Germany Leased
Hsinchu, Taiwan Leasec
Singapore Leased
Taichung, Taiwan Owned (1)

(1) The Company owns its manufacturing facility in Taing, however, it leases the related land.

The Company believes that its existing martufareg facilities are suitable and adequate fopiessent purposes. The Company also leases vadtes
offices. The Company's administrative headquaaszdocated in Brookfield, Connecticut, in a builglithat it owns.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is subject to various claims that darighe ordinary course of business. The Compatig\ues such claims, individually or in the
aggregate, will not have a material, adverse effadhe business of the Company.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND R ELATED SHAREHOLDERS' MATTERS

The Common Stock of the Company is tradecherNASDAQ Global Select Market ("NASDAQ") under teyambol PLAB. The table below shows the
range of high and low sale prices per share foh gaarter for fiscal year 2010 and 2009, as repdriethe NASDAQ Global Select Market.

High Low
Fiscal Year Ended October 31, 2010: D
Quarter Ended January 31, 2010 $5.14 $3.7%
Quarter Ended May 2, 2010 5.9¢ 3.52
Quarter Ended August 1, 2010 5.64 4.0
Quarter Ended October 31, 2010 6.8€ 3.8¢
Fiscal Year Ended November 1, 2009:
Quarter Ended February 1,2009 $2.15  $0.3¢
Quarter Ended May 3, 2009 1.8z 0.65
Quarter Ended August 2, 2009 5.4¢€ 1.5¢
Quarter Ended November 1, 2009 5.4¢ 4.0C

On December 31, 2010, the closing sale price oCtvamon Stock per the NASDAQ Global Select Markas#5.91. Based on information availabl
the Company, the Company believes it has approeim&t000 shareholders.

The Company, to date, has not paid any cash didelen PLAB shares and, for the foreseeable fuamggipates that earnings will continue to be
retained for use in its business. Further, the Gomis revolving credit facility precludes it fromyng cash dividends.

The information regarding the Company's equity cengation required to be disclosed by Item 201(dedulation S-K is incorporated by reference
from the Company's 2011 definitive Proxy Statemettt Item 12 of Part Il of this report.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data is deriveanfrthe Company's audited consolidated financiatstants. The data should be read in conjunction
with the audited consolidated financial statemamid notes thereto and other financial informatiariuided elsewhere in this Form 10-K (in thousands,
except per share amounts).

On November 2, 2009, the Company adopted new atiogustandards for noncontrolling interests adaeh in the Consolidation Topic No. 810 of the
Accounting Standards Codification. These standegdaire companies to classify expenses relatedmaantrolling interests' shares in income (los$pwe
net income (loss). Earnings per share continuég tetermined after the impact of the noncontrglimterests' shares in net income (loss) of the @om.
The presentation and disclosure requirements sktkandards were retrospectively applied. Thetamopf these standards resulted in the below
reclassifications of noncontrolling interests (e Balance Sheet Data presented) to equity.

Reclassificatior

Year Ended Amount

November 1, 200 $ 49,94
November 2, 200 49,61¢
October 28, 2007 49,46:
October 29, 2006 45,997
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Year Ended

October 31, November 1 November 2 October 28, October 29,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Cost of sales (333,739 (304,28)) (349,84) (321,950 (307,85)

Research and development (14,93) (15,427 (17,47%) (17,300 (27,33)

Impairment of long-lived assets - (1,45¢) (d) (66,874 (9) - -

Gain on sales of facilities - 2,034 - 2,25¢ -

Interest expense (9,475 (22,407 (11,879 (5,929 (11,916

Income (loss) before income tax

(provision) benefit 32,55: (37,109 (212,169 23,88 45,38¢

Net income (loss) 25,08 (a) (b) (41,427 (c) (d) (e)  (209,39)) (f) (9) () 27,06: 34,92¢ (i)

Net income (loss) attributable to
Photronics, Inc. $ 23,92 (a) (0)$ (41,910 (c) (d) (€)% (210,769 (f) (g) (N)$ 24,52 $ 29,330 (i)

Basic $ 0.45 (a) (b)$ (0.97) (c) (d) (e)$ (5.06) (f) (g) ()$ 0.5¢ $ 0.71 (i)

Basic 53,43: 43,21( 41,65¢ 41,53¢ 41,36¢
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BALANCE SHEET DATA

As of
October 31  November1 November2 October 28  October 29
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Working capital $ 86,57 $ 89,54 $ 66,41¢ $ 96,60¢ $ 127,69:
Property, plant and equipment, net 369,81« 347,88¢ 436,52¢ 531,57¢ 443,63°
Total assets 703,87¢ 663,65¢ 758,00° 1,059,78! 1,045,68:
Long-term debt 78,85 112,13° 202,97¢ 191,25! 170,28t
Equity 495,94 449,69¢ 432,39¢ 703,74¢ 660,27¢

(a) Includes consolidation and restructuring credit$®0 million in connection with the closure of tBempany's Shanghai, China, facility.

(b) Includes non-cash mark-to-market charge of $0.8anihet of tax in connection with warrants isstegurchase the Company’'s common stock.

(c) Includes consolidation and restructuring charge®l®.6 million ($12.9 million net of tax) in conrt@n with the closures of the Company's Shanghhing& and Manchester, U.K. manufacturing
facilities.
(d) Includes impairment charge of $1.5 million ($1.1limin net of tax) related to the Company's Mancéedt.K., manufacturing facility.

(e) Includes non-cash mark-to-market charge of $0.8anihet of tax in connection with warrants isstegurchase the Company's common stock.

() Includes consolidation and restructuring charge0o® million ($0.4 million net of tax) in conneati with the closure of the Company's ManchesteK, Unanufacturing facility.
(9) Includes impairment charge of $66.9 million ($6MBlion net of tax) for certain long-lived assemsAsia and Europe.

(h) Includes impairment of goodwill charge of $138.8liom ($137.3 million net of tax).

(i) Includes consolidation and restructuring charge®l&.6 million net of tax in connection with thesure of the Company's Austin, Texas, manufactuaimgjresearch and development facility.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Results of Operations for the Years Ended October3 2010, November 1, 2009 and November 2, 2008
Overview

The Company sells substantially all of its fpmeasks to semiconductor designers and manufastumed manufacturers of FPDs. Photomask technology
is also being applied to the fabrication of othighler performance electronic products such as plicgpmicro-electronic mechanical systems and irerta
nanotechnology applications. Thus, the Companylisgeycle is tightly interwoven with the develogmt and release of new semiconductor designs and
flat panel applications, particularly as it relateshe semiconductor industry's migration to madganced design methodologies and fabrication pease
The Company believes that the demand for photomasikerily depends on design activity rather thales volumes from products manufactured using
photomask technologies. Consequently, an increasemiconductor or FPD sales does not necessasiliitrin a corresponding increase in photomasls:
However, the reduced use of customized ICs, redlugtin design complexity, other changes in therieldgy or methods of manufacturing or designing
semiconductors, or a slowdown in the introductibnew semiconductor or FPD designs could reduceateinfor photomasks even if demand for
semiconductors and FPDs increases. Advances ircsachictor and photomask design and semiconduaboiuption methods could also reduce the
demand for photomasks. Historically, the semicotaiuindustry has been volatile, with sharp periattievnturns and slowdowns. These downturns have
been characterized by, among other things, diméigiroduct demand, excess production capacity erelexated erosion of selling prices. The
semiconductor industry experienced a downturn d82Mat continued into 2009, which had a negativeact on the Company's 2009 operating results
Company's 2009 operating results were also nedgiivpacted by the global recession.
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The global semiconductor industry is drivenelmyl markets which have been closely tied to coesuiriven applications of high performance
semiconductor devices including, but not limiteddommunications and mobile computing solutionse Tompany is typically required to fulfill its
customer orders within a short period of time, stimes within 24 hours. This results in the Comphaying a minimal level of back-log orders, typigall
one to two weeks for IC photomasks and two to thweeks for FPD photomasks. The Company cannotgrtt timing of the industry's transition to
volume production of next generation technologyewodr the timing of up and down cycles with preeiseuracy, but believes that such transitions and
cycles will continue into the future, beneficiaind adversely affecting its business, financialdition and operating results in the near term. The
Company's ability to remain successful in thesarenments is dependent upon achieving its goakseofg a service and technology leader, an efficient
solutions supplier, and a company able to contlpuainvest in its global infrastructure.

The effects of the worsened global economy andigiening credit market have made it increasimdifficult for the Company to obtain external
sources of financing to fund its operations. As@wenpany continues to face challenges in the cuemed near term that require it to continue to make
significant improvements in its competitivenessahtinues to evaluate further cost reductionatiites.

The Company is focused on improving its competita®s by advancing its technology and reducing @sisin connection therewith, increased its
high-end manufacturing capability in 2008 with t@nmencement of production at its nanofab fac{lity.S. nanoFab") in Boise, Idaho. In order to lower
its operating costs and increase its manufactueffigiencies, the Company ceased the manufactupbatomasks at its facility in Manchester, U.K., in
January 2009 and at its facility in Shanghai, Chinaduly 2009.

As of December 2010, state-of-the-art productiarsEmiconductor masks is considered to be 45 natewrand lower for ICs and Generation 8 and
above process technologies for FPDs, while 65 natenis currently in volume production. However,rhometer and above geometries for
semiconductors and Generation 7 and below proeessiologies for FPDs constitute the majority ofigies currently being fabricated in volume. The
Company expects 65 nanometer designs to continomt@ to wafer fabrication throughout fiscal 20&fd believes it is well positioned to service an
increasing volume of this business as a resulisdhizestments in manufacturing processes and tdogiy in the global regions where its customers are
located.

The photomask industry has been, and is expectedriinue to be, characterized by technologicahgkaand evolving industry standards. In order to
remain competitive, the Company will be required@oatinually anticipate, respond to, and utilizeueting technologies. In particular, the Company
believes that, as semiconductor geometries contmbecome smaller, it will be required to manufiaeteven more complex optically-enhanced reticles,
including optical proximity correction and phaseéfishhotomasks. Additionally, demand for photomahkks been, and could in the future be, adversely
affected by changes in semiconductor and high padace electronics fabrication methods that affeettype or quantity of photomasks used, such as
changes in semiconductor demand that favor fietds@mmable gate arrays and other semiconductogretiat replace application-specific ICs.
Furthermore, increased market acceptance of atteenrmethods of transferring circuit designs oremgonductor wafers, such as direct-write lithodsap
could reduce or eliminate the need for photomaskke production of semiconductors. As of the ehfisoal 2010, direct-write lithography has not hee
proven to be a commercially viable alternative hotemasks, as it is considered too slow for higlum@ semiconductor wafer production, and the
Company has not experienced a significant losewdmue as a result of alternative semiconductdgdesethodologies. However, should direct-write or
any other alternative methods of transferring IGigies to semiconductor wafers without the use ot@imasks achieve market acceptance and the Cor
is unable to anticipate, respond to, or utilizesther other changing technologies due to resotecknological or other constraints, its busineskrasults
of operations could be materially adversely affdcte

Both revenues and costs have been affected by¢hesised demand for high-end technology photontasksequire more advanced manufacturing
capabilities, but generally command higher avesmdking prices ("ASPs"). The Company's capital exjre payments for new facilities and equipment
aggregated approximately $212 million for the thiiseal years ended October 31, 2010, resultingignificant increases in operating expenses. The
Company intends to continue to make the requiredstments to support the technological demandss afistomers and position itself for future growth,
and expects capital expenditure payments to bedset70 million and $90 million in fiscal 2011.
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The manufacture of photomasks for use in &iliig ICs and other related products built usiogparable photomask-based process technologies has
been, and continues to be, capital intensive dilegmeed to maintain a technology-based infragiracThe Company's integrated global manufacturing
network, which consists of nine manufacturing sitesl its employees represent a significant pouioits fixed operating cost base. Should salesmels
decrease as a result of a decrease in designeslfrasn the Company's customers, the Company magy ésecess or underutilized production capacity that
could significantly impact operating margins, osutlt in write-offs from asset impairments.

The vast majority of photomask units produced tang&onductor manufacturers employ geometries af@tbmeters or larger for ICs, and the vast
majority of photomask units produced for FPD mantifeers are Generation 7 technologies or lowethése geometries, the Company can produce full
lines of photomasks and there is no significannetogy employed by the Company's competitorsithabt available to the Company. Semiconductor
fabrication also occurs below 90 nanometer for B2sl FPD fabrication also occurs at GenerationdBadnove.

In September 2009 the Company issued approximafely million shares of its common stock at a pdt&4.15 per share. Gross proceeds from the
offering were $46.0 million which were reduced mderwriting commissions and other expenses to yietdoroceeds of approximately $43.1 million. The
net proceeds from the offering were used to redudstanding amounts under the Company's crediitfaci

Also in September 2009 the Company issued $57 lloméggregate principal amount of 5.5% convertdBaior notes which mature on October 1,
2014. Note holders may convert each $1,000 priheipeunt of notes to 196.7052 shares of stock (edemt to an initial conversion price of approxielg
$5.08 per share of common stock) on September@B0}.2Z'he conversion rate may be increased in teateof a make-whole fundamental change (as
defined in the prospectus supplement filed by tben@any on September 11, 2009) and the Company otagdeem the notes prior to their stated maturity
date. The net proceeds of the offering were appratély $54.9 million, which were used to reducestariding amounts under the Company's credit fac
As of October 31, 2010, none of the convertible@emotes have been converted. Concurrent withstheance of the 5.5% convertible senior notes, the
Company issued warrants to Intel Capital Corporetiopurchase a total of 750,000 shares of the @ogip common stock, 500,000 of which were at an
exercise price of $4.15 per share and 250,000 aekarcise price of $5.08 per share. The warrargexn September 10, 2014, and were issued tb Inte
Capital Corporation, an affiliate of Intel Corpdaat, in consideration for an agreement betweerCihimpany and Intel Corporation to share technicdl an
operations information regarding the developmerthefCompany's products, the capabilities of them@any's photomask manufacturing lines and the
alignment of photomask toolsets. As of October211,0, none of the warrants issued to Intel Cagitaboration have been exercised. Intel Capital
Corporation also invested in the Company's convertiebt offering described above.

In the third quarter of 2009 the Company ceasedriherufacture of photomasks at its Shanghai, Claadity. Through the end of fiscal 2009, the
Company recorded total restructuring charges relatehis action of $10.2 million, including $9.9llon related to asset write-downs, primarily fie
Shanghai manufacturing facility whose fair valueswdatermined by management using a market appréagnoximately seventy-five employees were
affected by this action. During fiscal 2010, thenGi@any recorded net restructuring credits relatetiédcShanghai facility closing of $5.0 million. Thet
credit was primarily the result of a gain of $5.4lion related to the sale of the facility.

In the first quarter of 2009 the Company cdabke manufacture of photomasks at its Manchestét, facility and in connection therewith,
restructuring charges (primarily for terminatiorstoand asset write-downs) of $3.3 million ($2.Tiam net of tax) were incurred in fiscal 2009.
Approximately eighty-five employees were affectguthis action.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2008, the Compangoreled impairment charges of $66.9 million for agrtof its long-lived assets and wrote off all $38
million of its goodwill (see Note 13 to the conslaited financial statements).

In the first quarter of 2008 a capital lease agr@necommenced for the U.S. nanoFab facility. Quigrtease payments, which bore interest at 8%, were
$3.8 million through January 2013. This lease waelled in the third fiscal quarter of 2009, atchttime the Company and Micron (the lessor) entere
into a new lease agreement for the facility. Urterprovisions of the new lease agreement, qugriesse payments were reduced from $3.8 millio$2@
million, the term of the lease was extended froneédeber 31, 2012 to December 31, 2014, and owneashire property will not transfer to the Company
at the end of the lease term. As a result of threlrase agreement, the Company reduced its ledigatidn and the carrying value of its assets urdgital
leases by approximately $28 million. The lease wolhtinue to be accounted for as a capital leatietbe end of its original lease term. For the iiddal
two years of the new lease term, the lease widdmunted for as an operating lease. The U.S. rmmb&gan production in the second quarter of 2008 a
through the end of fiscal 2010, the Company's teapital investment in the facility was approxinat®178 million.
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Results of Operations

The following table presents selected opegaitiformation expressed as a percentage of neg:sale

Year Ended
October 31  November1 November 2
2010 2009 2008

Cost of sales (78.9 (84.2) (82.¢)

Selling, general and administrative expenses (10.0 (11.9 (13.3)

Consolidation, restructuring and related crediteages) 1.2 3.9 (0.3

Impairment of goodwill - - (32.9)

Operating income (loss) 9.2 (3.5) (48.7)

Investment and other income (expense), net 0.€ (0.€) 1.3

Income tax (provision) benefit 1.7 (1.2) 0.6

Net income attributable to noncontrolling intere 0.3 (0.7) (0.3

Note: All the following tabular comparisons, unless othise indicated, are for the fiscal years ended Bmt@1, 2010 (2010), November 1, 2009 (2!
and November 2, 2008 (2008), in millions of dollars

Net Sales

Percent Change
2009 to 2008 to
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009

n

PD 95.¢ 88.5 107.€ 8.3 (17.¢)
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Net sales for 2010 increased 17.8% to $425ll®mas compared to $361.4 million for 2009. Tiherease was primarily related to increased ICssale
mainly resulting from increased high-end unit dethaand to a lessor extent increased mainstreandeniand. FPD sales increased modestly as a résult o
increased unit demand for high-end products. Higthyghotomask applications, which typically haveh@igASPs, include photomask sets for IC products
using 65 nanometer and below technologies and;R@ products, using G7 and above technologiessSdlkigh-end IC photomasks increased to $62
million in 2010 as compared to $28 million in 20@@d sales of high-end FPD photomasks increasgf3anillion in 2010 as compared to $48 million in
2009. By geographic area, net sales in 2010 as amdpgo 2009 increased by $36.8 million or 16.5%sim, increased by $23.9 million or 23.9% in North
America, and increased by $3.5 million or 9.1% urdpe. As a percent of total sales in 2010, sakr®\61% in Asia, 29% in North America and 10% in
Europe.

Net sales for 2009 decreased 14.5% to $361.4 milEdcompared to $422.5 million for 2008. The daseevas primarily associated with the global
recession which led to reduced demand for IC arld pfotomasks. Accordingly, sales of IC photomaskgeased by $42.0 million, primarily related to
decreases in both units and ASPs for mainstrearnoptasks, and FPD photomasks decreased by $19iamidrimarily related to decreased sales of high-
end FPD photomasks. During 2009, sales of highpdéroedomasks were $77 million as compared to $92anilih 2008. Total sales of high-end FPD
photomasks decreased by $22 million, while saldsgif-end IC photomasks increased by $7 million.g@pgraphic area, net sales in 2009 as compared to
2008 decreased by $36.1 million or 13.9% in Asiaréased by $3.0 million or 3.1% in North Ameriaad decreased by $28.0 million or 42.3% in Europe.
As a percent of total sales in 2009, sales were B2A86ia, 28% in North America and 10% in Europe.

Gross Margin

Percent Change
2009 to 2008 to

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009
Gross margin $91.¢ $57.1 $72.7 60.9% (21.5%
Gross margin % 21.6% 15.&% 17.2% - -

Gross margin percentage increased to 21.6% in #0h©15.8% in 2009. This increase was primarily tuencreased sales and increased high-end IC
photomask units which have higher ASPs. Additionaticreased mainstream unit volume also contrithtiwethe increased gross margin percentage in
The Company operates in a high fixed cost envirartraad, to the extent that the Company's revennésitilization increase or decrease, gross margir
generally be positively or negatively impacted. &ramargin percentage decreased to 15.8% in 2069¥702% in 2008, primarily as a result of a year-
over-year decrease in net sales.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Percent Change
2009to 2008 to

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009
S,G&A expense $42.4 $41.2 $55.2 3.% (25.9%
% of net sales 10.(% 11.4% 13.1% - -

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@alightly by $1.2 million to $42.4 million in 20, compared with $41.2 million in 2009. The
increase was primarily related to increased em@ammpensation and benefit expenses.
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Selling, general and administrative expensesahsed by $14.0 million to $41.2 million in 2008mpared with $55.2 million in 2008. The decreass
primarily related to reduced compensation coste {dwpart, to reduced employee head count), cdsicten programs and to certain U.S. nanoFab costs
reported in selling, general and administrativeemges (prior to its commencing production in Q2-08)

Research and Development

Percent Change
2009 to 2008 to

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009
R&D expense $14.¢ $15.4 $17.5 (3.9% (11.)%
% of net sales 3.5% 4.2% 4.1% - -

Research and development expenses consist prinofuglpbal development efforts related to high-@ndcess technologies for advanced sub-
wavelength reticle solutions for IC technologiessBarch and development expenses decreased byifithb to $14.9 million in 2010, as compared to
$15.4 million in 2009. The reduction in researcH development expenses in 2010 was primarily duedaced expenditures in the U.S. Research and
development expenses decreased in 2009 as contpa28d8 primarily due to reduced advanced developmetivity, principally in Asia, as a result of a
downturn in the semiconductor industry in fiscaD20

Consolidation, Restructuring and Related (Credits) Charges

2010 2009
Asset write-downs and other $ - $ 10¢
Net gain on sales of ass: (5.9 -
Employee terminations 0.2 2.1
Total consolidation, restructuring
and related (credits) charges $ (5.0 $ 13¢€

Shanghai, China, Facility

In the third quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compangsesl the manufacture of photomasks at its Shan@haia, facility. In connection with this
restructuring, the Company has recorded total hatges of $5.2 million, including $4.7 million oénhasset write-downs through its completion indlsc
2010. The fair value of the assets written down determined by management using a market appréggroximately 75 employees were affected by this
restructuring.

The Company recorded an initial restructuring charf§$10.1 million in the third quarter of fiscad@, which included $7.7 million to write down the
carrying value of the Company's Shanghai manufagjuacility to its estimated fair value at thang. In the second quarter of fiscal 2010, the Campa
sold its facility in Shanghai, China, for net preds of $12.9 million which resulted in a gain of4shillion, which was recorded as a credit to the
restructuring reserve in that quarter.

Manchester, U.K., Facilit

During the first quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compaeased the manufacture of photomasks at its Mesteh U.K., facility and, in connection therewith,
incurred total restructuring charges of $3.9 millibrough its completion in the fourth quarteristal 2009, primarily for employee termination oahd
asset write-downs. This initiative began in thertbwuarter of fiscal 2008 with the recording @5 million charge for the impairment of certaomd-
loved assets located at the facility. Approxima@&byemployees were affected by this restructuring.
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The Company continues to assess its globalifaaturing strategy, as its sales volume is depanggon customer requirements which have become
more concentrated in Asia and, to a lesser exiettie U.S. This ongoing assessment could restittirre facility closures, asset redeployments kfigice
reductions, and the addition of increased manufaxguacilities, all of which would be predicated market conditions and customer requirements.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In the second quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compaepmded an impairment charge of $1.5 million tauethe carrying value of its Manchester, U.K.,
facility to its estimated fair value, which was elehined by management using a market approach.

As a result of the Company's projected undiscoufude cash flows related to certain of its aggetips (located in Europe and Asia) being less than
the carrying value of those assets, the Compargrded an impairment charge of $66.9 million in thied quarter of fiscal 2008. The carrying valuettoé
assets determined to be impaired were reduceciodstimated fair values, which were determinestelbaupon market conditions and the income approach
which utilized cash flow projections.

Impairment of Goodwill

Through the third quarter of fiscal 2008, the Compaxperienced a sustained, significant declinigsistock price. As a result of the decline insitsck
price, the Company's market capitalization felh#figantly below the recorded value of its consatied net assets during the third quarter of fi208i8.
Due to the decrease in its market capitalizatiachgurarterly net losses incurred through the thirdrter of fiscal 2008, management tested the Cogipan
goodwill for impairment. The results of the teddirated that there would be no remaining impliedigattributable to the Company's goodwill and,
accordingly, the Company wrote off all $138.5 moifliof its goodwill in fiscal 2008.
Gain on Sale of Facility

In connection with the closing of its ManchesterKl) manufacturing facility in the first quarter fiscal 2009, the Company sold that facility for. 34
million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, arehiized a gain of $2.0 million.

Other Income (Expense)

201C 200¢ 200¢

Interest expense $ (95 $ (229 9$(11.9
Investment and other income (expense), net 2.€ (2.2) 5.€
Total other income (expense) $ (6.9 $ (2460 $ (6.9

Interest expense decreased in 2010 as compar®@D® @rimarily as a result of lower debt levels émsler average interest rates on the Company's
long-term borrowings. In addition, the Company imed significantly higher amortization of deferr@ancing fees in 2009 that were related to
amendments to its credit facility. Interest expeinstudes $1.0 million in 2010 and $2.9 million2009 related to the write-off of deferred financiiegs in
connection with amendments to the Company’s cffadility. The outstanding balance of the Companrgisable rate debt and related higher interestscost
were reduced substantially during the fourth quastdiscal 2009, with net proceeds from its comnstock and convertible debt offerings. Investment a
other income (expense), net, increased in 201@mpared to 2009, primarily due to improved foretgmrency transaction results, which were offset, in
part, by a $0.6 million increase in non-cash lossesrded to adjust certain common stock warrantkeir fair value.

Interest expense increased in 2009 as compardaD® due to increased interest rates associatedneitbased borrowings on the Company's revolving
credit facility coupled with higher interest ratasd fees associated with loan amendments in f&@0. Investment and other income (expense), net
decreased in 2009 as compared to 2008, primariytalless favorable foreign currency transacticults.
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Income Tax (Provision) Benefit

2010 2009 2008
Income tax (provision) benefit $ (7.5 $ (4.9 $2.8
Effective income tax rate 23.0% (11.9% 1.3%

The effective income tax rate differs from the Us&tutory rate of 35% in 2010 primarily due to tates being lower than the U.S. rate in other troes
where the Company’s income is taxed. In 2009, ffextive income tax rate differed from the U.Ststary rate because income tax expenses incurred in
jurisdictions where the Company generated inconierbeéncome taxes were, due to valuation allowaneessignificantly offset by income tax bene
realized in jurisdictions in which the Company ineud losses before income taxes. The Company,10 26d 2009, also benefitted from the utilizatiéon o
various investment tax credits in Korea and Taiwan.

The Company considers all available evidence whatuating the potential future realization of iesfered tax assets and, when based on the weight o
all available evidence, it determines that it isrenlikely than not that some portion or all ofdsferred tax assets will not be realized, redutseddferred
tax assets by a valuation allowance. As a resutiefe evaluations, the valuation allowance wazased by $3.4 million and $6.6 million in 2010 and
2009, respectively. The Company also regularly ssesethe potential outcomes of ongoing and futxeenations and, accordingly, has recorded accruals
for such contingencies.

PKLT, the Company's FPD manufacturing facility iaivian, has been accorded a tax holiday which sta2612 and expires in 2017. In addition, the
Company has been accorded a tax holiday in Chinehvéxpires in 2011. The availability of these telidays did not have a significant impact on the
Company's decision to increase its Asian presemicieh was in response to fundamental changesdbétplace in the semiconductor industry that the
Company serves. These tax holidays had no dollpeoshare effect on the 2010, 2009 or 2008 figeats. As semiconductor fabrication has migrated to
Asia, in large part from the United States, the @any has followed, in order to avoid a severe tddsusiness.

Net (Income) Loss Attributable to Noncontrolling I nterests

Net income attributable to noncontrolling intergétsmerly referred to as "minority interests") irased $0.7 million to $1.2 million in 2010 as
compared to 2009, primarily as a result of incrdaset income at the Company's non-wholly owned iglidry in Taiwan. The Company's ownership in its
subsidiary in Taiwan was approximately 58% at Oetdil, 2010 and November 1, 2009, and its owneiighip subsidiary in Korea was approximately
99.7% at October 31, 2010 and November 1, 2009.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

October 31, November 1, November 2,

2010 2009 2008
(in millions) (in millions) (in millions)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 98c $ 88t $ 83.¢
Short-term investments - 0.2 1.2
Total $ 98. $ 88. $ 85.
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 95.¢ $ 68.1 $ 92.1
Net cash used in investing activiti $ (58.29 $ 247 $ (99.9)
Net cash used in financing activiti $ (324 % (405 $ 47.7)
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As of October 31, 2010, the Company had cashcash equivalents of $98.9 million compared #.$8nillion (including $0.2 million of short-term
investments) as of November 1, 2009. The Compawmyrking capital decreased $2.9 million to $86.6lionl at the end of fiscal 2010, as compared to %
million at the end of fiscal 2009. The decrease prawarily related to increases in accounts payahkkaccrued expenses, totaling $27.6 million, tvhic
were somewhat mitigated by an increase in castcasid equivalents and accounts receivable totaRégddmillion.

Cash provided by operating activities was $95.9%ionilfor fiscal 2010, as compared to $68.1 millfon fiscal 2009. This increase was primarily due to
the Company's improved operating results in fi2€HI0 as a result of increased sales. Cash probiglegerating activities was $68.1 million for fisca
2009, as compared to $92.1 million for fiscal 2008is decrease was primarily due to increased $oase result of reduced sales.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal 201€r@ased to $58.2 million, as compared to $24.7aniiih 2009, primarily due to capital expenditures
increasing year-over-year by $36.4 million. Theryeeer-year increase in capital expenditures ré&lére Company's increased investment in equipment
capable of high-end semiconductor photomask fativicaThe majority of capital expenditure investrisewere made in the U.S. and Asia. Capital
expenditures for the 2010, 2009, and 2008 fiscatyevere $71.4 million, $35.0 million and $105.1liom, respectively. The Company expects capital
expenditure payments for fiscal 2011 to be apprexéty $70 million to $90 million, primarily relateld investment in high-end IC manufacturing
capability. The high level of capital expenditunegiscal 2008 primarily reflects the equippingtbé U.S. nanoFab, which began production in 2008.

Cash used in financing activities was $32.5 milliofiiscal 2010, a decrease of $8.0 million frore #410.5 million used in fiscal 2009, and is prirari
comprised of $31.3 million in net repayments ofgdgarm borrowings. These repayments were primarilgenaith cash generated by operations. Cash
in financing activities was $40.5 million in fisc2D09, a decrease of $7.2 million, as compared#7million in fiscal 2008, and is primarily coniged of
$133.7 million in net repayments of long-term bevings. These repayments were primarily made wii $@lion in net proceeds from convertible debt
and common stock offerings, with cash generateddeyations of $18 million and proceeds from the sdilthe Manchester facility of $4.3 million. The
decrease in cash used in financing activities B92@as primarily attributable to the decrease e@ompany's payments to Micron.

On February 12, 2010, the Company amended itsviegptredit facility, which was originally estakfisd on June 6, 2007, to a three-year $50 million
revolving credit facility ("the credit facility")At the time of the February 12, 2010, amendmesthien existing revolving credit facility and teloan were
repaid in full with borrowings from the credit féity of $20.8 million and, in connection therewitihe Company wrote off $1.0 million of deferreddircing
fees. On May 7, 2010, the credit facility was fertamended to increase its borrowing capacity ®ré#ilion. The credit facility bears interest (3%81at
October 31, 2010) at LIBOR plus a spread, as definghe agreement, based upon the Company'si¢otiage ratio. As of October 31, 2010, the Com|
had $5 million in outstanding borrowings under thedit facility and $60 million was available footoowing. On January 5, 2011, a $10 million irreable
stand-by letter of credit, for the purchase of nfaoturing equipment, was issued under the Compaeaytdving credit facility.

The credit facility, which matures on February 2013, is secured by substantially all of the Conyfsassets in the United States as well as common
stock the Company owns in certain of its foreighsidiaries. The credit facility is subject to tlwldwing financial covenants: fixed charge coveraao,
total leverage ratio, minimum unrestricted castabe¢, and maximum capital expenditures, all asddfin the agreement.

In May 2009, the Company amended its then existwglving credit facility and entered into a warragreement with its lenders for 2.1 million shares
of its common stock. Forty percent of the warramse exercisable upon issuance while the remaiweigants were cancelled as a result of the Company"
September 2009 early repayment of a portion obtltstanding balance under its June 6, 2007 crgditeanent. As of October 31, 2010, approximately 0.5
million warrants have been exercised, includingriifion of which were exercised during fiscal 20Ihe warrants, approximately 0.3 million of which
remained outstanding at October 31, 2010, are Esedle for one share of the Company's common sibek exercise price of $.01 per share. The warrant
agreement also included a net cash settleablerpuispn exercisable starting in May 2012 and & padvision exercisable starting in May 2013, both
which were exercisable only if the Company's commsimek was not traded on a national exchange. risut of the aforementioned net cash settleakie pu
provision, the warrants were initially recordedaad&bility (included in other liabilities) and haveen subsequently reported at their fair value.

In addition to the former credit facility discussaidove, the Company also entered into a term Igegeanent on June 8, 2009, with an aggregate
commitment of $27.2 million. This loan was repaidFebruary 2010 with funds from the credit facility
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On September 11, 2009 the Company sold, thraugublic offering, $57.5 million aggregate pripel amount of 5.5% convertible senior notes which
mature on October 1, 2014. Note holders may coreaah $1,000 principal amount of notes to 196.&}&&es of stock (equivalent to an initial convetisio
price of approximately $5.08 per share of commoglgton September 30, 2014. The conversion ratebeaygcreased in the event of a make-whole
fundamental change (as defined in the prospecpsement filed by the Company on September 11, 808 the Company may not redeem the notes
prior to their maturity date. The net proceedshef tonvertible senior notes offering were approxatya$54.9 million, which were used to reduce
outstanding amounts under the Company's then egistiedit facility.

The Company's liquidity is highly dependent orsiites volume, cash conversion cycle, and the tirofritg capital expenditures (which can vary
significantly from period to period), as it operaia a high fixed cost environment. Depending omditions in the semiconductor and FPD markets, the
Company's cash flows from operations and curreldifmgs of cash may not be adequate to meet iteotiemd long-term needs for capital expenditures,
operations and debt repayments. Historically, imaie years, the Company has used external fingrtoiiund these needs. Due to conditions in thditre
markets, some financing instruments used by thegaomin the past may not be currently availabli. tbhe Company continues to evaluate further cost
reduction initiatives. However, the Company carasgure that additional sources of financing wodaailable to it on commercially favorable terms,
should its cash requirements exceed cash avaiiavteoperations, existing cash, and cash availabter its credit facility.

At October 31, 2010, the Company had outstandingh@se commitments of approximately $63.8 milliwhjch include approximately $55.4 million
related to capital expenditures, primarily for istraent in highend IC photomask manufacturing capability. The Camypintends to use its working capi
cash generated from operations, and borrowingsrutaderedit facility, if necessary, to finance iapital expenditures.

Cash Requirements

The Company's cash requirements in fiscal 2011heilprimarily to fund operations, including capgakending and debt service. The Company believes
that its cash on hand, cash generated from opesasind amounts available under its credit facility be sufficient to meet its cash requirementstfe
next twelve months. The Company regularly revielmesavailability and terms on which it might isswElgional equity or debt securities in the public o
private markets. However, the Company cannot agkateadditional sources of financing would be kldée to the Company on commercially favorable
terms, should the Company's cash requirements éxtseeash available from operations, existing casld cash available under its credit facility.
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Contractual Cash Obligations

The following table presents the Company'aricontractual obligations as of October 31, 2010:

Payments Due

Less More

Than 1-3 3-5 Than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long-term borrowings $ 62t $ - $ 50 $ 57t % |
Operating leases 22.7 2.1 8.4 10.¢ 1.
Capital leases 24.¢ 10.7 14.: - -
Unconditional purchase obligations 63.¢ 60.: 3.6 - -
Interest 15.7 5.1 7.7 2.8 -
Total $ 189.€¢ $ 781 $ 38¢ $ 71z $ 1.3

As of October 31, 2010, the Company had an outstgrizhlance of $3.0 (net of future interest of $®iBion) million for a loan from a customer which
was not included in the above table. The proceétiseedoan were used to purchase manufacturingoegemt. This loan is expected to be repaid with
product supplied to the customer, typically on anthty basis, and the Company estimates that thewok be fully repaid in fiscal 2014.

The Company’s long-term borrowings above includ@®$billion for its credit facility. Interest incletl above related to the credit facility reflects th
interest rate in effect at October 31, 2010 (3.81&4)l assumes a constant $5.0 million balancetbheeremaining term of the agreement, which expres
February 10, 2013. Under the terms of the agreemntaninterest rate charged on outstanding balascashject to change based on changes in the
Company’s leverage ratio. Amounts available unterdredit facility are charged interest at the tdt®©.5% and interest related to the $60 millioroamt
available under the credit facility at October 3Q10, is reflected in the table above as remainirailable over the remaining term of the creditlfigc

As of October 31, 2010, the Company had recordeatarual for tax contingencies of $2.0 million whiwas not included in the above table due to the
high degree of uncertainty regarding the timindusfire payments relating to such liabilities.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Under the MP Mask joint venture operating agreemardgrder to maintain its 49.99% ownership interdse Company may be required to make
additional capital contributions to the joint vergwp to the maximum amount defined in the opegatigreement. Cumulatively, through October 31, 2010
the Company has contributed $6.1 million to thefeienture, and has received distributions fromjdlire venture totaling $10.0 million. The Company
made no contributions to the joint venture andikeszkno distributions from the joint venture durifigcal 2010. However, in December 2010, the Corgpan
made an additional capital contribution of $4 miflito the MP Mask joint venture relating to a calpiiall requested by the joint venture.

The Company leases certain office facilities andigment under operating leases that may requiteghy taxes, insurance and maintenance expenses
related to the properties. Certain of these leagetin renewal or purchase options exercisattieea¢nd of the lease terms. See Note 9 to the bdatd
financial statements for additional informationtbese operating leases.
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On May 19, 2009, the Company and Micron erténeo a new lease agreement for the U.S. nanoB#dling and cancelled its prior lease agreement.
The new lease, among other changes discussed nANotthe consolidated financial statements, edd¢ine lease term from December 31, 2012 to
December 31, 2014. The Company will continue taant for the lease as a capital lease for the meaeaiof its original term and account for it as an
operating lease for the period of the lease ext@ngtental payments due during the lease extepsnaod total $13.9 million.

Share-based Compensation

Total share-based compensation expense was $1i@maihd $2.1 million for the years ended Octob®r2010 and November 1, 2009, respectively,
substantially all of which is in selling, generaldsadministrative expenses. No compensation costcapitalized as part of inventory, and no relatedme
tax benefit has been recorded. As of October 310 2total unrecognized compensation cost of $3lBamiis expected to be recognized over a weighted-
average amortization period of 2.9 years.

Business Outlook

A majority of the Company's revenue growth is expeédo continue to come from the Asian region agamers increase their use of manufacturing
foundries located outside of North America and percAdditional revenue growth is also anticipatedNorth America, as the Company expects to benefit
from advanced technology it may utilize under éshinology license with Micron. The Company's Koraad Taiwanese operations are non-wholly owned
subsidiaries and, therefore, a portion of earnggyserated at each location is allocated to theamtnalling interests.

The Company continues to assess its global manufagtstrategy and monitor its market capitalizatisales volume and related cash flows from
operations. This ongoing assessment could reséuitume facility closures, asset redeploymentsjtaatthl impairments of intangible or long-lived ats,
workforce reductions, or the addition of increasgghufacturing facilities, all of which would be lealson market conditions and customer requirements.

The Company's future results of operations anather forward-looking statements contained in filiisg involve a number of risks and uncertainties.
While various risks and uncertainties have beeoudised, a number of other unforeseen factors @auwlge actual results to differ materially from the
Company's expectations.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The Company's consolidated financial statementdased on the selection and application of accogmgolicies, which require management to make
significant estimates and assumptions. The Compatigves that the following are some of the morgcal judgment areas in the application of the
Company's accounting policies that affect its fitiahcondition and results of operations.

Estimates and Assumptio

The preparation of consolidated financial statemé@ntonformity with accounting principles geneyakccepted in the United States of America reqt
management to make estimates and assumptiondféeitamounts reported in them. Management basessitmates on historical experience and on
various assumptions that are believed to be reat®unader the circumstances. Significant accourgstgnates include those used in the testing a-lon
lived assets for potential impairment, and thosur developing income tax provisions and allovesior uncollectible accounts receivable. The
Company's estimates are based on the facts andrdtances available at the time they are made.d&isain accounting estimates used are likely tooccu
from period to period, which may have a materigbatt on the presentation of the Company's finardadition and results of operations. Actual result
reported by the Company may differ from such estsiarhe Company reviews these estimates peridyglimadl reflects the effect of revisions in the pdri
in which they are determined.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The fair values of the Company's 5.5% convertiblgigr notes are estimated by management basedrafesence to quoted market prices and other
available market information. The fair values af thompany's cash and cash equivalents, accourisable, accounts payable, certain other curresgtas
and current liabilities, and variable rate borroggrapproximate their carrying value due to thearsterm maturities.
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Property, Plant and Equipme

Property, plant and equipment, except as exgiabelow under "Impairment of Long-Lived Asset& stated at cost less accumulated depreciatidn a
amortization. Repairs and maintenance, as wekmaswals and replacements of a routine nature hengjed to operations as incurred, while those which
improve or extend the lives of existing assetscaggtalized. Upon sale or other disposition, thst ©f the asset and accumulated depreciation ereved
from the accounts, and any resulting gain or lesgflected in operations.

Depreciation and amortization are computed usiegsthaight-line method over the estimated usefelliof the related assets. Buildings and
improvements are depreciated over 15 to 40 yeaashimery and equipment over 3 to 10 years andtfumifixtures and office equipment over 3 to 5Srge
Leasehold improvements are amortized over thefithe lease or the estimated useful life of thpriovement, whichever is less. Judgment and
assumptions are used in establishing estimatedlusefs and depreciation periods. The Company ais judgment and assumptions as it periodically
reviews property, plant and equipment for any pgimpairment in carrying values whenever eventsh as a significant industry downturn, plant
closures, technological obsolescence or other asimgcircumstances indicate that their carryingants may not be recoverable.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist primarily of a technoliggnse agreement, a supply agreement, acquigiiated intangibles, and, prior to July 27, 2008,
goodwill. These assets, except as explained belosvstated at fair value as of the date acquiresidecumulated amortization. Amortization is calted
using the straight-line method or another methad thore fairly represents the utilization of theets.

The Company periodically evaluates the remainirgfuldives of its intangible assets (other thandyeitl) to determine whether events or circumstai
warrant a revision to the remaining periods of dimation. In the event that the estimate of anrigtale asset's remaining useful life has changes, t
remaining carrying amount of the intangible assetmortized prospectively over that revised renmginiseful life. If it is determined that an intalblgi asse
has an indefinite useful life, that intangible asgeuld be subject to impairment testing annuafiyvbenever events or circumstances indicate tleat th
carrying value may not, based on future undiscalinésh flows or market factors, be recoverablémgrairment loss would be recorded in the period so
determined. The measurement of the impairmentaasd be based on the fair value of the intangésset.

The Company tested goodwill for impairment annualtgl when an event occurred or circumstances chahgéwould more likely than not have
reduced the fair value of a reporting unit belosvdarrying value. Goodwill was tested for impairmesing a two-step process. In the first step falire
value of the reporting unit was compared to itsyiag value. The Company, for purposes of testingairment, was a single reporting unit. If the faifue
of the reporting unit exceeded the carrying valfigsonet assets, goodwill was considered not imgaband no further testing was required. If theytag
value of its net assets exceeded the fair valikeofeporting unit, a second step of the impairnbesttwas performed in order to determine the ietpfair
value of a reporting unit's goodwill. Determinirgetimplied fair value of goodwill required a valigat of the reporting unit's tangible and intangibsets
and liabilities in a manner similar to the allooatiof purchase price in a business combinatiothefcarrying value of the reporting unit's goodwitceede:
the implied fair value of its goodwill, goodwill vsadeemed impaired and was written down to the éxitethe difference. As a result of a test perfodnre
the third quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company waffeall of its $138.5 million of goodwill.

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment wikenevents or changes in circumstances indicatdatiracarrying amount of such assets may not be
recoverable. Determination of recoverability isdxhen the Company's judgment and estimates of coliged future cash flows resulting from the use of
the assets and their eventual disposition. Measemenf an impairment loss for long-lived assets thanagement expects to hold and use is basecton th
fair value of the assets. The carrying values eétssdetermined to be impaired are reduced to ¢iséimated fair values. Fair values of the impaassets
would generally be determined using a market oonme approach.
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Investments in Joint Ventur

Investments in joint ventures over which the Conyplass the ability to exercise significant influeresed that, in general, are at least 20 percent dwne
are stated at cost plus equity in undistributedmaime (loss) of the joint venture. An impairmés would be recognized whenever a decline irvéhee
of such an investment below its carrying amourmleiermined to be other than temporary. In judgimipér than temporary," the Company would consider
the length of time and the extent to which the Yailue of the investment has been less than thigiegramount of the investment, the near-term amdjér-
term operating and financial prospects of the ite@sand the Company's longer-term intent of ratgiits investment in the investee.

Income Taxe

The income tax (provision) benefit is computedthe basis of the various tax jurisdictionsbime or loss before income taxes. Deferred incomesta
reflect the tax effects of differences betweendheying amounts of assets and liabilities for ficial reporting purposes and the amounts usecdéamie
tax purposes. The Company uses judgment and assmsipt determine if valuation allowances for defdrincome tax assets are required, if realizagon
not more likely than not, by considering future ketrgrowth, forecasted operations, future taxatdeine, and the amounts of earnings in the tax
jurisdictions in which it operate

The Company considers income taxes in each ofthgitisdictions in which it operates in order &t@&'mine its effective income tax rate. Current
income tax exposure is identified and temporarfed#nces resulting from differing treatments ofritefor tax and financial reporting purposes aresssd.
These differences result in deferred tax assetdialnitities, which are included in the Companysolidated balance sheets. Additionally, the Camgpa
evaluates the potential realization of deferreadime tax assets from future taxable income and kesttab valuation allowances if realization is dedmet
more likely than not. Accordingly, income taxedhie consolidated statements of operations are ita@dxy changes in the valuation allowances. Sigguif
management estimates and judgment are requiregténndining any valuation allowances recorded agaiesdeferred tax assets. The Company accounts
for uncertain tax positions by recording a lialifior unrecognized tax benefits resulting from utei@ tax positions taken, or expected to be takeits tax
returns. The Company includes any applicable isteand penalties related to uncertain tax positiorits income tax provision.

Revenue Recognitic

The Company recognizes revenue when there is pévsuavidence that an arrangement exists, delivasyoccurred, the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and collectability is reasonably esguThe Company uses judgment when estimatingffeet on revenue of discounts and product warranty
obligations, both of which are accrued when thateel revenue is recognized.

Warranties and Other Post Shipment ObligatioRer a 30-day period, the Company warrants tleatst sold will conform to customer specifications.
However, the Company's liability is limited to thepair or replacement of the photomasks at its gpl®n. The Company inspects photomasks for
conformity to customer specifications prior to shgnt. Accordingly, customer returns of items undarranty have historically been insignificant.
However, the Company records a liability for thsigmificant amount of estimated warranty returnsdobon historical experience. The Company's secifi
return policies include accepting returns for pradwith defects, or products that have not beedyred to precise customer specifications. Atithe bf
revenue recognition, a liability is established tloese items.

Share-based Compensation

The Company adopted Financial Accounting StandBodsd (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (AS8 relating to share-based payments
on October 31, 2005, using the modified prospeactiethod described in Statement of Financial AcdogrStandards No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-
Based Payment". Subsequently, compensation expenseognized in the Company's consolidated statesyaf operations over the service period that the
awards are expected to vest. The Company recogaigense for all shatgased compensation with graded vesting granted after October 31, 2005, «

a straight-line basis over the vesting period eféhtire award. For awards with graded vestingtgchprior to October 31, 2005, the Company recaghiz
compensation cost over the vesting period followangelerated recognition as if each underlyingingsiate represented a separate award. Share-based
compensation expense includes the estimated effétdsfeitures, which are adjusted over the reigiservice period to the extent actual forfeitwléter,

or are expected to differ, from such estimates.ngba in estimated forfeitures are recognized imp#eod of change and will also impact the amodnt o
expense to be recognized in future periods. Deténgithe appropriate option pricing model, caldalgthe grant date fair value of share-based awands
estimating forfeiture rates requires consideraligment, including the estimations of stock priotatility and the expected term of options granted.
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The Company uses the Black-Scholes option valuatiodel to value employee stock options. The Compestiynates stock price volatility based on
daily averages of its historical volatility ovetexm approximately equal to the estimated timequktihe grant will remain outstanding. The expedtézth of
options and forfeiture rate assumptions are derik@d historical data.

Effect of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 23 of the Company's consolidated finaistaéments for a summary of recent accountingqmocements that may affect the Company's
financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The Company records derivatives on the balance sisegssets or liabilities, measured at fair vallne Company does not engage in derivative
instruments for speculative purposes. Gains oe®sssulting from changes in the values of thoswalé/es are reported in the consolidated statéroén
operations, or as accumulated other comprehenségerie (or loss), a separate component of equipertting on the use of the derivatives and whether
they qualify for hedge accounting. In order to dfyefbr hedge accounting, among other criteria, dieeivative must be a hedge of an interest rateg pr
foreign currency exchange rate, or credit risk,eeted to be highly effective at the inception a&f ttedge and be highly effective in achieving offagt
changes in the fair value or cash flows of the leeldtem during the term of the hedge, and formatigumented at the inception of the hedge. In génera
the types of risks hedged are those relating tavainiability of future cash flows caused by moversen foreign currency exchange and interest rdths.
Company documents its risk management strategyadde effectiveness at the inception of, and dutiegerm of, each hedge.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The Company conducts business in several majamiatienal currencies throughout its worldwide opierss and is subject to changes in foreign
exchange rates of such currencies. Changes in egelrates can positively or negatively affect tlmen@any's sales, operating margins, assets, liabilit
and equity. The functional currencies of the ConyfsmAsian subsidiaries are the Korean won, New &aidollar, Singapore dollar and the Chinese
renminbi. The functional currencies of the ComparBuropean subsidiaries are the British pound beetro.

The Company attempts to minimize its risk of fore@rrency transaction losses by producing its petlin the same country in which the product:
sold (thereby generating revenues and incurringesgs in the same currency), and by managing wkimgocapital. In some instances, the Company may
sell or purchase products in a currency other tharfunctional currency of the country where it vgasduced. There can be no assurance that thisaqipr
will continue to be successful, especially in therg of a significant adverse movement in the valuagny foreign currency against the U.S. dollaioiPto
2010, the Company had periodically experiencedifogmt foreign exchange losses on these transatio

The Company's primary net foreign currency expasaseof October 31, 2010, included the Korean whn Japanese yen, the Singapore dollar, the
New Taiwan dollar, the British pound, and the eudts.of October 31, 2010, a 10% adverse movemethieivalue of these currencies against the U.Sax
would have resulted in a net unrealized pre-tag fs63.3 million. The Company does not believe th&0% change in the exchange rates of otheth8n-
dollar currencies would have a material effectterconsolidated financial position, results of gens, or cash flows.

Interest Rate Risk

At October 31, 2010 and November 1, 2009, the Cowyppad $5.0 million and $29.8 million in variabkte borrowings. A 10% change in interest r
would not have had a material effect on the Comisacgnsolidated financial position, results of @piens, or cash flows in 2010 or 2009.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Photronics, Inc.
Brookfield, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Photronics, Inc. and subsidiaries"@oepany") as of October 31, 2010 and
November 1, 2009 and the related consolidatedmstatts of operations, equity, and cash flows fohe#dhe three fiscal years ended October 31, 2
November 1, 2009 and November 2, 2008. We also hadi#ed the Company's internal control over finaheporting as of October 31, 2010, base(
criteria established imternal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafike Treadway Commission. The
Company's management is responsible for thesedialestatements, for maintaining effective interoahtrol over financial reporting, and for its ass®men
of the effectiveness of internal control over fingh reporting, included in the accompanying Mamaget's Annual Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting in Item 9A. Our responsibilisyto express an opinion on these financial statésn@nd an opinion on the Company's internal céntro
over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBiqUnited States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabnassurance about whether the financial statesnage free of material misstatement and whether
effective internal control over financial reportingas maintained in all material respects. Our auafithe financial statements included examiningadest
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis@ssn the financial statements, assessing theuatiog principles used and significant estimatesienay
management, and evaluating the overall financé&kstent presentation. Our audit of internal corkar financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financigdagting, assessing the risk that a material weakagsts, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control basedhe assessed risk. Our audits also included ipeitfig such other procedures as we considered regess
in the circumstances. We believe that our auditside a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supenvidi the company's principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performisignilar functions, and effected by the companyar of directors, management, and other persdanel
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjabflfinancial reporting and the preparation fancial statements for external purposes in acoure
with generally accepted accounting principles. Mpany's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (1aipetd
the maintenance of records that, in reasonablél dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti@msl dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdestessary to permit preparation of financatkstents in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and exjpares of the company are being made only in acaed with authorizations of management and dire
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assaragarding prevention or timely detection of uhautzed acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effetite financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the posétg of collusion or improper management overriofe
controls, material misstatements due to errorawdrmay not be prevented or detected on a timedigbalso, projections of any evaluation of the
effectiveness of the internal control over finahegporting to future periods are subject to tts& that the controls may become inadequate beacduse
changes in conditions, or that the degree of caanpé with the policies or procedures may detegorat

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materéspects, the financial position of Photronies;. lanc
subsidiaries as of October 31, 2010 and Novemb20@9, and the results of their operations and trash flows for each of the three fiscal yearseeind
October 31, 2010, November 1, 2009 and Novemb20@8, in conformity with accounting principles geaiy accepted in the United States of America.
Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, ina&terial respects, effective internal control ofreancial reporting as of October 31, 2010, basedhe
criteria established imternal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadriee Treadway Commission.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, on November 2, 2009, the Companytadapew accounting standards for
noncontrolling interests as set forth in Consol@afTopic No. 810 of the Accounting Standards Ciodiion.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Stamford, Connecticut
January 14, 2011
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PHOTRONICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

October 31, November 1,
2010 2009

Cash and cash equivalents $ 98,94 $ 88,53

Inventories 15,502 14,82¢

Other current assets 7,231 6,44¢

Property, plant and equipment, net 369,81« 347,88¢

Intangible assets, net 47,74¢ 55,054

$ 703,87¢ % 663,65t

Current portion of long-term borrowings $ 11,467 % 10,30

Accrued liabilities 30,13 20,967

Long-term borrowings 78,85: 112,13

o
—
>
@
=
)
g
=
@
[72])

9,35¢ 9,881

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value,
2,000 shares authorized, none isanddutstanding

Additional paid-in capital 436,82¢ 432,16(

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 7,062 (6,389

Noncontrolling interest 54,14: 49,94

$ 703,87¢ % 663,65t

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanagestents.
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PHOTRONICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended
October 31, November 1, November 2,
2010 2009 2008

Net sales $ 42555  $ 36135 $ 422,54
Cost and expenses:

Cost of sales (333,739 (304,28)) (349,84))

Selling, general and administrative (42,387) (41,167) (55,169

Research and development (14,939 (15,429 (17,475

Consolidation, restructuring and relatedlitee(charges) 4,97¢ (13,557 (510

Impairment of long-lived assets - (1,45¢) (66,874

Impairment of goodwill - - (138,539
Gain on sale of facility - 2,03¢ -

Operating income (loss) 39,47¢ (12,49Y) (205,85))
Other income (expense):

Interest expense (9,475 (22,40)) (11,87¢)

Investment and other income (expense), net 2,55¢ (2,209 5,56%
Income (loss) before income tax (provision) benefit 32,55 (37,109 (212,169
Income tax (provision) benefit (7,477 (4,327 2,77¢
Net income (loss 25,08: (41,427 (209,39)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling intere (1,160 (48%) (1,374
Net income (loss) attributable to Photronics, $ 2392: % (41910 $ (210,76Y
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic $ 0.4t % 0979 % (5.0¢)

Diluted $ 04: $ 097 $ (5.06)
Weighted-average number of common shares outstgndin

Basic 53,43 43,21( 41,65¢

Diluted 65,80: 43,21( 41,65¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financiédistents.
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PHOTRONICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Equity
Years Ended October 31, 2010, November 1, 2009 aNdvember 2, 2008
(in thousands)

Photronics, Inc. Shareholders

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Retained Unrealized

Add'l Earnings Investment Cash Foreign Total Non-
Common Stock  Paid-In  Accumulated Gains Flow Currency Photronics,  Controlling Total
Shares Amount  Capital (Deficit) (Losses) Hedges Translation Other Total Inc. Interests Equity

Effect of adoption of ASC 810 — See Note 1 - - - - - - - - - - 49,46¢ 49,46t

Comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized holding losses - - - - (340 (340) (340) - (340

'
[y
©
[
'
'

Amortization of cash flow hedges - - - - 19¢ 19¢ - 19z

Other - - - -

'
'
'
N
N
N
'
N

Subsidiary dividend - - - - (39¢) (399)

Restricted stock awards vestings and exf. 52 1 1,167 - - - - - - 1,16¢ - 1,16¢

Adoption of FIN No. 48 - - - (1,046 - - - - - (1,046) - (1,046

Comprehensive (loss) income:

Unrealized holding losses

reclassification adjustment - - - - 62 - - - 62 62 39 101

Foreign currency translation adjustm: - - - - - - 10,71z - 10,71z 10,71z 34z 11,05¢

Total comprehensive (loss) income (30,799 763 (30,035

Sale of common stock through employee

stock option and purchase plan 28 - 117 - - - - - - 117 - 117

Stock options and ESPP expense - - 1,32¢ - - - - - - 1,32¢ - 1,32¢

Common stock warrants issued - - 2,081 - - - - - - 2,081 - 2,081

Balance at November 1, 2009 53,01 53¢ 432,16( (26,546 - @079 (4,809 (508 (6,389  399,75! 49,94 449,69

Net income - - - 23,92; - - - - - 23,92: 1,16( 25,08:

Less: reclassification adjustments - - - - (147 - - - 147 147 (62) (209)

Foreign currency translation adjustm: - - - - - - 13,45! - 13,45! 13,45! 3,12¢ 16,57«

Other - - - - - - - (129) (129) (129) (82) (212)

Sale of common stock through employee

stock option and purchase plan 24z 2 52( - - - - - - 522 - 522




Stock options and ESPP expense -

Common stock issuance costs -

See accompanying notes to consolidated financérstents.

1,374
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PHOTRONICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization of mdp,
plant and equipment
Amortization of deferred financingst® and intangible assets
Consolidation, restructuring and redbcharges (credits)
Share-based compensation
Deferred income taxes
Impairment of long-lived assets
Gain on sale of facility
Impairment of goodwill
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other current assets
Accounts payable, accruedilitéds and other
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and ggent
Proceeds from sale of facilities
Proceeds from sales of short-ternegtments and other
Return of investment from joint vergu
Purchases of short-term investmendsather
Investment in joint venture
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Deferred financing costs and other
Proceeds from debt and equity offgsin
Payments of expenses related to @etbequity offerings
Payment to Micron Technology, Inc.
Net cash used in financing activiti
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis.
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Changes in accrual for purchasesaperty,
plant and equipment
Capital lease obligation for purcteaeéproperty,
plant and equipment
Issuances of common stock warrants

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanasdstents.
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Year Ended
October 31, November 1, November 2,
2010 2009 2008
$ 25,08: $ (41,427 $ (209,39)
81,37« 76,53( 95,93:
8,92¢ 13,94+ 8,001
(5,059 10,51« 51C
1,88: 2,13¢€ 2,622
16¢€ (2,949 (1,949
- 1,45¢ 66,87
- (2,039 -
- - 138,53«
(23,357 2,70¢ (7,310
(849 3,111 (2,627)
(725) 3,087 (4,410
(2,299 1,06: 5,28t
95,91¢ 68,14¢ 92,08(
(71,387 (34,99 (105,12
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PHOTRONICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended October 31, 2010, November 1, 2009 aNdvember 2, 2008
(in thousands, except share amounts)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business

Photronics, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Comgamy'Photronics") is one of the world's leadingmaéacturers of photomasks, which are high
precision photographic quartz plates containingrasicopic images of electronic circuits. Photomasksa key element in the manufacture of
semiconductors and flat panel displays ("FPDs")l, are used as masters to transfer circuit pattartessemiconductor wafers and flat panel substrates
during the fabrication of integrated circuits ("I¢and a variety of FPDs and, to a lesser extahgraypes of electrical and optical components Th
Company currently operates principally from nineneni@cturing facilities; two of which are locatedEurope, two in Taiwan, one each in Korea and
Singapore, and three in the United States. The @osplosed its manufacturing facilities in Mancleestnited Kingdom, and Shanghai, China, during the
year ended November 1, 2009.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of Photronics, Inc. and itgonitg-owned subsidiaries that the Company
controls. All intercompany balances and transastiveve been eliminated in consolidation.

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhia United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiatamounts reported in them. Actual results midfer from such estimates.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company records derivatives in the consolidbtddnce sheets as assets or liabilities, meastifeit value. The Company does not engage in
derivative instruments for speculative purposesn&ar losses resulting from changes in the vatii¢sose derivatives are reported in the consaidat
statements of operations, or as accumulated otmpieehensive income or loss ("OCI"), a separatepmorant of equity, depending on the use of the
derivatives and whether they qualify for hedge aotimg. In order to qualify for hedge accountinmaang other criteria, a derivative must be a hedgmo
interest rate, price, foreign currency exchange, rat credit risk, expected to be highly effectatehe inception of the hedge and be highly efiecin
achieving offsetting changes in the fair value astcflows of the hedged item during the term ofttedge, and formally documented at the incepticthef
hedge. In general, the types of risks hedged asethelating to the variability of future cash flowaused by movements in foreign currency exchande
interest rates. The Company documents its risk gemant strategy and hedge effectiveness at thptinceof, and during the term of, each hedge.

Fiscal Year

The Company's fiscal year ends on the Sunday ¢los€xctober thirty-first, and, as a result, a8ek year occurs every 5 to 6 years. Fiscal ye@t§
and 2009 included 52 weeks, while fiscal year 20@8ided 53 weeks. Fiscal year 2011 will includeveks.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and higjlidlinvestments purchased with an original m&usf 3 months or less. The carrying values of
cash equivalents approximate their fair valuestduge short-term maturities of these instruments.
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Inventories
Inventories, principally raw materials, are stat¢the lower of cost, determined under the firsffinst-out ("FIFO") method, or market.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except as explaieéalv under "Impairment of Lonbived Assets," are stated at cost less accumutigpdeciation an
amortization. Repairs and maintenance, as wekmaswals and replacements of a routine nature hengjed to operations as incurred, while those which
improve or extend the lives of existing assetscaggtalized. Upon sale or other disposition, thst ©f the asset and accumulated depreciation ereved
from the accounts, and any resulting gain or lesgflected in operations.

Depreciation and amortization are computed usiegsthaight-line method over the estimated usefekliof the related assets. Buildings and
improvements are depreciated over 15 to 40 yeaashinery and equipment over 3 to 10 years anditéus fixtures and office equipment over 3 to 5
years. Leasehold improvements are amortized oedlifehof the lease or the estimated useful liféhaf improvement, whichever is less. Judgment and
assumptions are used in establishing estimatedlusefs and depreciation periods. The Company ais judgment and assumptions as it periodically
reviews property, plant and equipment for any pgimpairment in carrying values whenever eventsh as a significant industry downturn, plant
closures, technological obsolescence, or othergdhancircumstances indicate that their carryingants may not be recoverable.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist primarily of a technolbiggnse agreement, a supply agreement, acquisitlated intangibles, and prior to July 27, 2008,
goodwill. These assets, except as explained belmavstated at fair value as of the date acquiresidecumulated amortization. Amortization is calted
using the straight-line method or another methad tore fairly represents the utilization of theets.

The Company periodically evaluates the remainirgfuldives of its intangible assets (other thandyeill) to determine whether events or
circumstances warrant a revision to the remainewpps of amortization. In the event that the eaterf an intangible asset’'s remaining usefullis
changed, the remaining carrying amount of the igitsla asset is amortized prospectively over theisesl remaining useful life. If it is determinedattan
intangible asset has an indefinite useful lifet theangible asset would be subject to impairmeastihg annually or whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not, baseéuture undiscounted cash flows or market factoesrdroverable, an impairment loss would be reconted
the period so determined. The measurement of thairment loss would be based on the fair valudefintangible asset.

The Company tested goodwill for impairment annuatyg when an event occurred or circumstances chahgéwould more likely than not have
reduced the fair value of a reporting unit belosvdarrying value. Goodwill was tested for impairmesing a two-step process. In the first step falire
value of the reporting unit was compared to itsyiag value. The Company, for purposes of testtaggoodwill for impairment, was a single reportingjt.
If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded tarrying value of its net assets, goodwill wassitered not impaired and no further testing wasiired.
If the carrying value of its net assets exceededdir value of the reporting unit, a second steghe impairment test was performed in order teedaine
the implied fair value of a reporting unit's gootdwbDetermining the implied fair value of goodwikkquired a valuation of the reporting unit's tafgiénd
intangible assets and liabilities in a manner simid the allocation of purchase price in a busiresnbination. If the carrying value of the repagtunit's
goodwill exceeded the implied fair value of its dadll, goodwill was deemed impaired and was writtkzwn to the extent of the difference. As a restilh
test performed in the third quarter of fiscal 200& Company wrote off all of its $138.5 million gdodwill.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment wkenevents or changes in circumstances indicatehibacarrying amount of such assets may not be
recoverable. Determination of recoverability isézhen the Company's judgment and estimates of cowliged future cash flows resulting from the use of
the assets and their eventual disposition. Measemeof an impairment loss for long-lived assetsd thanagement expects to hold and use is baseceon th
fair value of the assets. The carrying values sétsdetermined to be impaired are reduced to ¢iséimated fair values. Fair values of any impaassets
would generally be determined using a market oonme approach.
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Investments in Joint Ventures

Investments in joint ventures over which the Comypla@s the ability to exercise significant influeraged that, in general, are at least 20 percent dwne
are stated at cost plus equity in undistributedmzime (loss) of the joint venture. An impairmérgs would be recognized whenever a decline irfate
value of such an investment below its carrying amasidetermined to be other than temporary. Iging "other than temporary,” the Company would
consider the length of time and the extent to whiehfair value of the investment has been less tha carrying amount of the investment, the neamt
and longer-term operating and financial prospette@investee, and the Company's longer-term fraéretaining its investment in the investee.

Income Taxes

The income tax (provision) benefit is computed loa basis of the various tax jurisdictions' incoméoss before income taxes. Deferred income taxes
reflect the tax effects of differences betweendheying amounts of assets and liabilities for ficial reporting purposes and the amounts usecdéamie
tax purposes. The Company uses judgment and assms b determine if valuation allowances for defdrincome tax assets are required, if realizason
not more likely than not, by considering future ketrgrowth, forecasted operations, future taxatdeiine, and the mix of earnings in the tax jurisditt in
which it operates.

The Company considers income taxes in each ofthaitisdictions in which it operates in order &temine its effective income tax rate. Current
income tax exposure is identified and temporarfed#nces resulting from differing treatments ofritefor tax and financial reporting purposes aress=d.
These differences result in deferred tax assetdialnitities, which are included in the Companyssolidated balance sheets. Additionally, the Camgpa
evaluates the potential realization of deferredime tax assets from future taxable income and kesttab valuation allowances if realization is dedmet
more likely than not. Accordingly, the income taxeshe consolidated statements of operationsmapacted by changes in the valuation allowance.
Significant management estimates and judgmentegpgined in determining any valuation allowance®rded against net deferred tax assets. The Con
accounts for uncertain tax positions by recordirigfaility for unrecognized tax benefits resultifrgm uncertain tax positions taken, or expectededaker
in its tax returns. The Company includes any applie interest and penalties related to uncertaipasitions in its income tax provision.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share ("EPS") is based on tlghteslaverage number of common shares outstanding fqrehied, excluding any dilutive comm
share equivalents. Diluted EPS reflects the patediiution that could occur if certain share-bapegment awards or financial instruments were éseds;
earned or converted.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company adopted Financial Accounting StandBadsd (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (S8 relating to share-based payments
on October 31, 2005, using the modified prospeactiethod described in Statement of Financial AcdogrStandards No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-
Based Payment". Subsequently, compensation expenseognized in its consolidated statements ofaijmns over the service period that the awards are
expected to vest. The Company recognizes expensdl &hare-based compensation with graded vegtiagted on or after October 31, 2005, on a straight
line basis over the vesting period of the entirauayFor awards with graded vesting granted padd¢tober 31, 2005, the Company recognized
compensation cost over the vesting period followangelerated recognition as if each underlyingingsiate represented a separate award. Share-based
compensation expense includes the estimated efféfdsfeitures, which are adjusted over the reigiiservice period to the extent actual forfeitwléter,
or are expected to differ, from such estimates.n@ba in estimated forfeitures are recognized imp#eod of change and will also impact the amodnt o
expense to be recognized in future periods. Thegamy adopted the alternative transition method igexyin Financial Accounting Standards Board
("FASB") Staff Position No. 123(R)-3 for calculagithe tax effects of share-based compensationriating the appropriate option pricing model,
calculating the grant date fair value of share-aseards and estimating forfeiture rates requicesicierable judgment, including the estimationstotk
price volatility and the expected term of optiomarged.
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The Company uses the Black-Scholes option valuatiodel to value employee stock options. The Compestiynates stock price volatility based on
daily averages of its historical volatility ovetexm approximately equal to the estimated timequktihe grant will remain outstanding. The expedtézth of
options and forfeiture rate assumptions are derik@d historical data.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed asthcand consist primarily of global developméffibies related to high-end process technologies
for advanced sub-wavelength reticle solutions @photomask technologies. Research and developempenses also include the amortization of the
carrying value of a technology license agreemettt Wiicron Technologies, Inc. (Micron). Under théexhnology license agreement, the Company has
access to certain photomask technology developéditnpn.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's international subsidiaries maintadirtaccounts in their respective local currenclesets and liabilities of such subsidiaries are
translated to U.S. dollars at year-end exchangsritticome and expenses are translated at avert@geof exchange prevailing during the year. Foreig
currency translation adjustments are accumulatddeported in other comprehensive income (or lass) separate component of equity. The effects of
changes in exchange rates on foreign currencydcdiosis, which are included in investment and otheome (expense), net, were a gain of $2.0 millaon
loss of $3.1 million and a gain of $3.8 million2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests (formerly referred to asifiority interests") represents the minority shatdbrs' proportionate share in the equity of the
Company's two majority-owned subsidiaries, PK I(tKL") in Korea, and Photronics Semiconductor M&kporation ("PSMC") in Taiwan, of which
noncontrolling interests owned approximately 0.3%d 42%, respectively, as of October 31, 2010 andeNwer 1, 2009.

On November 2, 2009, the Company adopted new atiogustandards for noncontrolling interests, ad@eh in the Consolidation Topic No. 810 of
the Accounting Standards Codification. These statxleequire companies to classify expenses retatadncontrolling interests' share in income (loss)
below net income (loss). Earnings per share coatina be determined after the impact of the nomobimy interests' share in net income (loss) & th
Company. In addition, these standards require nanaiing interests to be presented on the conatdidl balance sheets as a separate caption withity.eq
The presentation and disclosure requirements sktktandards were retrospectively applied. Thetamopf these standards resulted in the below
reclassifications of noncontrolling interests (e tonsolidated balance sheets) to equity.

Reclassificatior

Year Ended Amount
November 1, 200 $ 49,94
November 2, 200 49,61¢
October 28, 2007 49,46:

During the fiscal years presented, there were mmgés in the Company's ownership interests in PKRSMC that affected the amount of equity
attributable to the Company.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when therer@ipsive evidence that an arrangement existsetglhas occurred, the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and collectability is reasonably esguThe Company uses judgment when estimatingffeet on revenue of discounts and product warranty
obligations, both of which are accrued when thateel revenue is recognized.

Warranties and Other Post Shipment ObligatioRer a 30-day period, the Company warrants tleatst sold will conform to customer specifications.
However, the Company's liability is limited to thepair or replacement of the photomasks at its gpl®n. The Company inspects photomasks for
conformity to customer specifications prior to shgnt. Accordingly, customer returns of items undarranty have historically been insignificant.
However, the Company records a liability for thsigmificant amount of estimated warranty returnsdobon historical experience. The Company's secifi
return policies include accepting returns of pradweith defects, or products that have not beedyred to precise customer specifications. At time tbf
revenue recognition, a liability is established tfoese items.

Sales Taxes The Company presents it revenues in the congelidstatements of income, net of sales taxesyi{@xcluded from revenues).
NOTE 2 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment consists of the ¥adhg:

October 31, November 1,

2010 2009
Land $ 7,98: $ 7,901
Buildings and improvements 80,45¢ 91,16
Machinery and equipment 1,115,37. 1,001,08!
Leasehold improvements 7,647 7,33¢
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 15,27: 15,35
Construction in progress 26,26 17,18:

1,252,99 1,140,02!
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 883,18: 792,13¢

$ 369,81« $ 347,88

Property under capital leases are included in alpooperty, plant and equipment as follows:

October 31, November 1,

2010 2009
Buildings and improvements $ 33,62 $ 33,62
Machinery and equipment 19,91: 19,91
53,53: 53,53
Less accumulated amortization 21,08 10,87¢

$ 32,450 $ 42,651
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NOTE 3 - GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As discussed in Note 13 to the consolidatedricial statements, the Company wrote off all®$it38.5 million of goodwill during the fiscal yeanmded
November 2, 2008. Intangible assets that do no¢ radefinite lives are amortized based on theimested useful lives, which range from 3 to 15 ye
Intangible asset amortization is forecasted to edngm $4.8 million to $6.8 million per year foretimext 5 years.

Other intangible assets include assets relatduetpirchase of additional shares of PKL and thestnent to form the MP Mask joint venture. Other
intangible assets consist of:

Gross Accumulated Net

As of October 31, 2010 Amount Amortization Amount
Technology license agreement $ 59,616 $ 17,55« $  42,06:
Customer lists 7,21( 3,431 3,77¢
Supply agreement 6,95¢ 5,35¢ 1,604
Software and other 3,86: 3,56( 3083

$ 7764 $ 29,900 $ 47,74
As of November 1, 2009
Technology license agreement $ 59,61t $ 1357¢ $  46,03]
Customer lists 7,21( 2,70¢ 4,501
Supply agreement 6,95¢ 4,907 2,052
Patents 15€ 59 97
Software and other 5,19( 2,82¢ 2,367

$ 7913 % 24,077 $  55,05¢

NOTE 4 - JOINT VENTURE, TECHNOLOGY LICENSE AND OTHER AGREEME NTS WITH MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

On May 5, 2006, Photronics and Micron entered theoMP Mask joint venture, which develops and posduphotomasks for leading-edge and
advanced next generation semiconductors. As pahiedformation of the joint venture, Micron contrtbd its existing photomask technology center kedat
in Boise, Idaho, (headquarters of MP Mask) and Rimits invested $135 million in exchange for a 29®interest in MP Mask (to which $64.2 million of
the original investment was allocated), a licemsephotomask technology of Micron, and certain sypgreements. Of the total $135 million investment
$120 million was paid to Micron on May 6, 2006 amd,of that date, the remaining $15 million wa®a-nash financing activity, which was subsequently
paid in two installments of $7.5 million each in 2007 and June 2008.

This joint venture is a variable interest entitynparily because all costs of the joint venture Wil passed on to the Company and Micron through
purchase agreements they have entered into witjoititeventure. The Company determined that, irardg to this variable interest entity ("VIE"), itc
Micron are de facto agents (as that term is defingtle Accounting Standards Codification) and Matron is the primary beneficiary of the VIE agstthe
de facto agent within the aggregated group of dmfagents (i.e. the Company and Micron) thatésrttost closely associated with the VIE. The primary
reasons the Company concluded that Micron is thet wlosely associated of the de facto agents t&/tBeare that Micron is both the ultimate purchaser
substantially all of the products produced by tHE ¥nd that it is the holder of decision makinghauwity in the ordinary course of business.

The Company has utilized MP Mask for both high-8Bghotomask production and research and developmeposes. MP Mask charges its variable
interest holders based on their actual usage &ddity. MP Mask separately charges for any resle@and development activities it engages in at the
requests of its owners.
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MP Mask is governed by a Board of Managers, appdiby Micron and the Company. Since MP Mask's iticepMicron, as a result of its majority
ownership, has appointed the majority of its mamagehe number of managers appointed by each Eastybject to change as ownership interests change.
Under the MP Mask joint venture operating agreentbiet Company may be required to make additiongitalacontributions to the joint venture up to the
maximum amount defined in the operating agreentémivever, should the Board of Managers determingatiditional funding is required, the joint
venture shall pursue its own financing. If the joienture is unable to obtain its own financingnay request additional capital contributions fritva
Company. Should the Company choose not to makeguested contribution to the joint venture, its oveié interest may be reduced. The Company
received a $5 million distribution from MP Maskfiacal 2009, and made no contributions to MP Maskrdy fiscal years 2010 or 2009. In December 2
the Company made an additional capital contributibi4 million to the MP Mask joint venture relateda capital call requested by the joint venture.

The Company's investment in the VIE, which représéa maximum exposure to loss, was $61.1 miliad $60.9 million at October 31, 2010 and
November 1, 2009, respectively. These amountsegrarted in the Company's consolidated balance slkaséinvestment in joint venture

As of October 31, 2010, the Company owed MP Mask #illion and had a receivable from Micron of $4ndlion, both primarily related to the supy
agreements. The Company, in 2010, recorded $1libmdf commission revenue earned under the supgfgements it has with Micron and MP Mask.
Amortization of $0.5 million of the supply agreemémangible asset resulted in net earnings relai@te supply agreements of $1.2 million in 20Lbe
recorded commission revenue of $1.7 million repneséhe excess of $35.3 million in orders receifrech Micron over the Company's cost of $33.6 mil
to fulfill the orders through MP Mask. The Compafuy, certain sales made during 2010, also recootst of sales in the amount of $5.9 million for
photomasks produced by MP Mask for the Companywauers, and incurred outsourcing expenses of illlién from MP Mask for research and
development activities and other goods and seryioeshased by the Company.

As of November 1, 2009, the Company owed MP MasB #4llion and had a receivable from Micron of $88lion, both primarily related to the
supply agreements. The Company, in 2009, recorde®ir$illion of commission revenue earned undersiygply agreements it has with Micron and MP
Mask. Amortization of $0.9 million of the supplyr@gment intangible asset resulted in net earnielgsed to the supply agreements of $0.9 millio2069.
The recorded commission revenue of $1.8 milliorresents the excess of $37.9 million in orders r&zkfrom Micron over the Company's cost of $36.1
million to fulfill the orders through MP Mask. Ti@ompany, for certain sales made during 2009, @sorded cost of sales in the amount of $4.2 milian
photomasks produced by MP Mask for the Companyaters, and incurred outsourcing expenses of §ifflion from MP Mask for research and
development activities and other goods and seryiceshased by the Company.

In the first quarter of 2008 a capital lease agr@necommenced for the U.S. nanoFab facility. Quisrtease payments, which bore interest at 8%, were
$3.8 million through January 2013. This lease waxcelled in the third fiscal quarter of 2009, atahitime the Company and Micron (the lessor) emtere
into a new lease agreement for the facility. Urtlerprovisions of the new lease agreement, quarteEaske payments were reduced from $3.8 millios2@
million, the term of the lease was extended froncédeber 31, 2012 to December 31, 2014, and ownedsliie property will not transfer to the Company
at the end of the lease term. As a result of the Iease agreement, the Company reduced its ledigatidn and the carrying value of its assets urdgital
leases by approximately $28 million. The lease wolhtinue to be accounted for as a capital leatibthe end of its original lease term. For the itiddal
two years of the new lease term, the lease wildmunted for as an operating lease. The U. S.Hambegan production in the second quarter of 2008
through the end of fiscal 2010, the Company's todgital investment in the facility is approximat&i178 million.
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NOTE 5 - ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

October 31 November 1

2010 2009
Property, plant and equipment $ 13,55 $ 211
Salaries, wages and related benefits 5,501 4,72¢
Income taxes 3,81« 5,80¢
Other 7,26t 10,22(

$ 3013 $ 20,967

NOTE 6 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVIT IES

The Company utilizes derivative instruments to wits exposure to the effects of the variabilitynberest rates and foreign currencies on itsrfaial
performance when it believes such action is waearitlistorically, the Company has been a partyetovdtive instruments to hedge either the varigbof
cash flows of a prospective transaction or thevfalue of a recorded asset or liability. In certmistances, the Company has designated these dtmmsaas
hedging instruments. However, whether or not avdérie was designated as being a hedging instrurttemtCompany's purpose for engaging in the
derivative has always been for risk management fadpeculative) purposes. The Company has hisiyrinot been a party to a significant number of
derivative instruments and does not expect itsveévie activity to significantly increase in theéseeable future.

In addition to the utilization of derivative instnents discussed above, the Company attempts tonmmits risk of foreign currency exchange rate
variability by, whenever possible, procuring protioiec materials within the same country that it willlize the materials in manufacturing and, bylisglto
customers from manufacturing sites within the couimt which the customers are located.

In May 2009, in connection with an amendment tdhien existing credit facility, the Company issietl million warrants, each exercisable for one
share of the Company's common stock at an exepcise of $0.01 per share. Forty percent of the arge were exercisable upon issuance, and the
remaining balance was to become exercisable intjwgercent increments at various points in timera@ctober 31, 2009. As a result of certain netcas
settleable put provisions within the warrant agreetmthe warrants were recorded as a liabilithin€ompany's consolidated balance sheet. As of the
issuance date, and for future periods that suchants remain outstanding, the Company has, anctwiiltinue to, adjust the liability based upon therent
fair value of the warrants, with any changes inrtfagr value being recognized in earnings. Du¢h®warrants' exercise price of $0.01 per shaes, fhair
value will approximate the market price of the Camgs common stock. Approximately 1.2 million oésle warrants were cancelled as a result of the
Company's early repayment of certain amounts uitsleredit facility during the year ended NovemieP009 and the associated liability was reduced
accordingly (see Note 7 for further discussion).

The Company was a party to two foreign currencwéod contracts which expired during the year erldedember 1, 2009, both of which were not
accounted for as hedges, as they were economiehedgntercompany loans denominated in U.S. dolaat were remeasured at fair value and recognizec
immediately in earnings. A portion of an existings on a cash flow hedge in the amount of $0.4anilk expected to be reclassified into earningsngu
fiscal year 2011.
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The table below presents the effect of derivatiariiments on the Company's consolidated balarestsht October 31, 2010 and November 1, 2009.

Fair Value at

Derivatives Not Designated

as Hedging Instruments October 31  November 1
Under ASC 815 Balance Sheet Location 2010 2009
Warrants on common stock Other liabilities $ 1,881 $ 3,20¢

The table below presents the effect of derivathatruments on the Company's consolidated staternéofserations for the years ended October 31,
2010 and November 1, 2009.

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized Related to
Derivative Instruments

Year Ended
Derivatives Not Designated as Location of Gain (Loss) Recognized  October 31 November 1,
Hedging Instruments Under ASC 815 Related to Derivative Instruments 2010 2009
Warrants on common stock Investment and other income (expense) $ (91¢) $ (305)
Foreign exchange contracts Investment and other income (expense) $ -8 93

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Long-term borrowings consist of the following:

October 31 November 1

2010 2009

5.50% convertible senior notes due on October 1420 $ 57,500 $ 57,50(
Borrowings under revolving credit facility,

which bear interest at a variable rate,efmdd

(3.81% at October 31, 2010, 8.00% at Noveribh&009) 5,00( 2,56¢
8.0% capital lease obligation payable through Jan2@13 16,22( 22,55;
5.6% capital lease obligation payable through Cet@®12 8,64t 12,61
4.75% financing loan with customer 2,954 -
Term loan which bore interest at a variable ratdedmed

(8.00% at November 1, 2009) - 27,20«

90,31¢ 122,43t

Less current portion 11,467 10,30:

$ 7885 $ 112,13
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As of October 31, 2010, long-term borrowings;luding capital lease obligations, mature a®fed: $773, $811, $5,850 and $58,020 in fiscal years
2011, 2012, 2013, and 2014, respectively. The ritvatdate for the 4.75% financing loan with a cusesris dependent upon the volume of photomasks
shipped to that customer. The Company currentiyn@ses that the loan will be fully repaid in fis@014, and has reflected that estimate in the yearl
maturity amounts presented above.

As of October 31, 2010, minimum lease payments utisieCompany's capital lease obligations wer@bews:

Fiscal Years:
2011 $12,14¢
2012 12,53:
2013 2,36¢
27,04¢
Less interest 2,18¢
Net minimum lease payments under capital le 24,86¢
Less current portion of net minimum lease payments 10,69¢
Long-term portion of minimum lease payments $14,17:

On February 12, 2010, the Company amended itsviegptredit facility, which was originally estakfisd on June 6, 2007, to a three-year $50 million
revolving credit facility ("the credit facility")At the time of the February 12, 2010, amendmesthien existing revolving credit facility and teloan were
repaid in full with borrowings from the credit féity of $20.8 million and, in connection therewitihe Company wrote off $1.0 million of deferreddircing
fees. On May 7, 2010, the credit facility was fertamended to increase its borrowing capacity ®ré#ilion. The credit facility bears interest (3%81at
October 31, 2010) at LIBOR plus a spread, as definghe agreement, based upon the Company'si¢otiage ratio. As of October 31, 2010, the Com|
had $5.0 million in outstanding borrowings undez thhedit facility and $60.0 million was availabla borrowing. On January 5, 2011, a $10 million
irrevocable stand-by letter of credit, for the fhase of manufacturing equipment, was issued uh@e€ompany's revolving credit facility.

The credit facility, which matures on February 2013, is secured by substantially all of the Conyfsassets in the United States as well as common
stock the Company owns in certain of its foreighsidiaries. The credit facility is subject to tlwldwing financial covenants: fixed charge coverago,
total leverage ratio, minimum unrestricted castabe¢, and maximum capital expenditures, all asddfin the agreement.

In May 2009, the Company amended its then existwglving credit facility and entered into a warragreement with its lenders for 2.1 million shares
of its common stock. Forty percent of the warramse exercisable upon issuance while the remaiwergants were cancelled as a result of the Company"
September 2009 early repayment of a portion obtltstanding balance under its June 6, 2007 crgditeanent. As of October 31, 2010, approximately 0.5
million warrants have been exercised, includingr@iidion of which were exercised during fiscal 20Ihe warrants, approximately 0.3 million of which
remained outstanding at October 31, 2010, are eadnie for one share of the Company's common sibek exercise price of $.01 per share. The warrant
agreement also included a net cash settleablerpuispn exercisable starting in May 2012 and aaaesh settleable call provision exercisable stguitin
May 2013, both of which were exercisable only & thompany's common stock was not traded on a retExchange. As a result of the aforementione«
cash settleable put provision, the warrants wetelily recorded as a liability (included in othiabilities) and have been subsequently reportateit fair
value.

In addition to the former credit facility discussaidove, the Company also entered into a term Igegeanent on June 8, 2009, with an aggregate
commitment of $27.2 million. This loan was repaidmebruary 2010 with funds from the credit facility

On September 11, 2009 the Company sold, througtbbcpoffering, $57.5 million aggregate principahaunt of 5.5% convertible senior notes which
mature on October 1, 2014. Note holders may coreaarh $1,000 principal amount of notes to 196.&&ites of stock (equivalent to an initial conversio
price of approximately $5.08 per share of commaoglgton September 30, 2014. The conversion ratebmagcreased in the event of a make-whole
fundamental change (as defined in the prospecpsament filed by the Company on September 11, 808 the Company may not redeem the notes
prior to their maturity date. The net proceedshef tonvertible senior notes offering were approxatya$54.9 million, which were used to reduce
outstanding amounts under the Company's then egistiedit facility.
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In January 2010 the Company borrowed $3.7anilirom a customer to purchase manufacturing egaigt. This loan bears interest at 4.75% and will be
repaid with product supplied to the customer. Pobvdalued at $0.7 million was shipped to the cusipend applied against the loan during fiscal 20t
Company estimates that the loan will be fully relpaifiscal 2014.

In the first quarter of 2008 a capital lease agre@ncommenced for the U.S. nanoFab facility. Quigrtease payments, which bore interest at 8%, were
$3.8 million through January 2013. This lease waelled in the third fiscal quarter of 2009, atchttime the Company and Micron (the lessor) entere
into a new lease agreement for the facility. Urterprovisions of the new lease agreement, quarease payments were reduced from $3.8 millio$2@
million, the term of the lease was extended froneédeber 31, 2012 to December 31, 2014, and owneashire property will not transfer to the Company
at the end of the lease term. As a result of threlease agreement, the Company reduced its ledigatidn and the carrying value of its assets urdgital
leases by approximately $28 million. The lease wolhtinue to be accounted for as a capital leatietbe end of its original lease term. For the iiddal
two years of the new lease term, the lease widdmounted for as an operating lease. As of Oct®begP010, total capital lease amounts payable #&7e9
million, of which $16.2 million represented prinaipand $1.7 million represented interest.

In October 2007, the Company entered into a calgiéee agreement in the amount of $19.9 milliomaated with certain equipment. Under the capital
lease agreement, the Company is required to maittiaiequipment in good working condition, andeiguired to comply with certain non-financial
covenants. Payments under the lease are $0.4 miléo month over a 5-year term at a 5.6% integgst r

Interest payments were $7.8 million, $20.8 millemmd $12.5 million in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008pextively, including deferred financing cost
payments of $1.3 million, $6.5 million and $1.6 lioih in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

NOTE 8 - COMMON STOCK WARRANTS

On September 10, 2009, the Company entered intavavoant agreements with Intel Capital Corporatimpurchase a total of 750,000 shares of the
Company's common stock. Under one warrant agreef®1h000 shares of the Company's common stock eauithased at an exercise price of $4.15 per
share and under the second warrant agreement Z66h@des of the Company's common stock can be gsedhat an exercise price of $5.08 per share. The
warrant agreements expire on September 10, 20%4. &d September 10, 2009, the Company and IntgldCation entered into an agreement to share
technical and operations information regardingdeeelopment of the Company's products, the capiesibf the Company's photomask manufacturing
and the alignment of photomask toolsets. Intel @agiorporation also invested in the Company's edtite debt offering of September 11, 2009. The
warrants were recorded at their fair value on ttlate of grant, which was determined using the IBBcholes option pricing model. As of October 31,

2010, none of the warrants issued to Intel Cafitaporation had been exercised.

In conjunction with the May 2009 amendment toliisrt existing credit facility, the Company also eatkinto a warrant agreement with its lenders. See
Notes 6 and 7 for further discussion of these wrst

NOTE 9 - OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases various real estate and equipmdar noreancelable operating leases. Rental expense undeleases amounted to $2.9 mill
in fiscal 2010, $3.6 million in fiscal 2009 and $3nillion in fiscal 2008. As discussed in Note ¥ fiscal 2009, the Company entered into a new lease
agreement for the U.S. nanoFab, under which treelesdll be accounted for as a capital lease thrddgtember 31, 2012 (the end date of its origiradde
term) and, thereafter, as an operating lease thrasgxpiration on December 31, 2014.
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At October 31, 2010, future minimum lease paymentier non-cancelable operating leases (includiagdg@ayments in 2013 and 2014 for the U.S.
nanoFab facility discussed above) with initial terim excess of one year are as follows:

2011 $ 1,93¢
2012 1,66¢
2013 6,751
2014 8,437
2015 2,467
Thereafter 1,347

$22,60¢

See Note 7 for disclosures related to the Gomis capital lease obligations.

NOTE 10 — SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

In March 2007, the Company's shareholders appravesiv share-based compensation plan ("Plan"), umkieh options, restricted stock, restricted
stock units, stock appreciation rights, performastoek, performance units, and other awards basgedraelated to, shares of the Company's comnurk
may be granted from shares authorized but unissustares previously issued and reacquired by tmegany. The maximum number of shares of con
stock approved by the Company's shareholders issbhed under the Plan was increased from 3.0 mififtares to 6.0 million shares during the second
fiscal quarter of 2010. Awards may be granted firefs, employees, directors, consultants, advjsord independent contractors of the Company or its
subsidiaries. In the event of a change in conttsldefined in the Plan), the vesting of awards beagccelerated. The Plan, aspects of which are falye
described below, prohibits further awards from gessued under prior plans. The Company incurréa hare-based compensation cost of $1.9 million,
$2.1 million and $2.6 million in fiscal years 2022009 and 2008, respectively. No shhesed compensation cost was capitalized as parvefitory and n
related income tax benefits were recorded duriedfittal years presented.

Stock Options

Option awards generally vest in one to four yeansl have a ten year contractual term. All incengind non-qualified stock option grants must have an
exercise price no less than the market value ofitiierlying common stock on the date of grant. i@t date fair value of options is generally based
the closing price on the date of grant using trecBIScholes option pricing model. Expected volgtik based on the historical volatility of the Coamy's
stock. The Company uses historical option exefo@®vior and employee termination data to estirgpected term, which represents the period of time
that the options granted are expected to remawstanding. The risk-free rate of return for theraatied term of the option is based on the U.S. Tigas
yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The glgied average inputs and risk-free rate of retanges used to calculate the grant date fair vaifieptions
issued during fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 200®sented in the following table:

Year Ended
October 31 November1 November 2
2010 2009 2008
Expected volatility 89.9% 69.8% 43.1%
Risk-free rate of return 1.5-2.4% 1.9 -2.5% 2.99%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected term 4.4 year 4.7 year 4.7 year
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A summary of option activity under the Plarod©ctober 31, 2010, and changes during the yesar €énded is presented as follows:

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Average Remaining Aggregate

Options Shares Exercise Price Contractual Life Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at November 1, 2009 3,333,85/ $ 11.21
Granted 968,40( 4.4%
Exercised (114,749 0.7€
Cancelled and forfeited (285,600) 18.0¢
Outstanding at October 31, 2010 3,901,900 $ 9.3 6.5year $ 8,56¢
Exercisable at October 31, 2010 1,933,350 % 16.1¢ 44year $ 1,31%
Expected to vest as of October 31, 2010 1,728,03" $ 2.45 8.5year $ 6,691

The weighted-average grant date fair values obogtgranted during the fiscal years 2010, 200928008 were $2.98, $0.44 and $1.86, respectively.
The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrfiscal year 2010 was $0.4 million. There wereoptions exercised during fiscal years 2009 and260
summary of the status of the Company's unvestadropas of October 31, 2010, is presented below:

Weighted-Average

Fair Value
Unvested Options Shares at Grant Date
Unvested at November 1, 2009 1,514,811 $ 1.0¢
Granted 968,40( 2.9¢
Vested (450,36") 2.17
Cancelled and forfeited (64,300 3.07
Unvested at October 31, 2010 1,968,55 $ 1.71

The Company received cash from options exercis&® df million in fiscal 2010, and there were noiops exercised during fiscal years 2009 and 2008.
As of October 31, 2010, the total unrecognized cemsption cost of unvested option awards was appiaiely $2.2 million. That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average amortizatioilogeaf 3.0 years.
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Restricted Stock

The Company periodically grants restricted stockials. The restrictions on these awards lapse osenviéce period that has ranged from less-than-one
to eight years. No restricted stock awards weratgthduring fiscal 2010. The weighted-average gdate fair values of restricted stock awards issued
during fiscal years 2009 and 2008 were $0.76 arid7®] respectively. The aggregate intrinsic valfeswards for which restrictions lapsed duringdisc
years 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $0.4 million, $0I/Baniand $0.6 million, respectively. As of Octolt, 2010, the total compensation cost for regtict
stock awards not yet recognized was approximatelg fillion. That cost is expected to be recogniaeer a weighted-average amortization period of 2.9
years. A summary of the status of the Company'standling restricted stock awards as of OctobePB10, is presented below:

Weighted-
Average
Fair Value Aggregate
at Grant Intrinsic
Restricted Stock Shares Date Value
Outstanding at November 1, 2009 170,28 $ 13.0z2
Granted - -
Vested (57,889 9.5¢2
Cancelled and forfeited (15,129 16.1¢
Outstanding at October 31, 2010 97,27 $ 146C $ 612
Expected to vest as of October 31, 2010 81,21C $ 144 $ 511

Employee Stock Purchase PI

The Company's Employee Stock Purchase PIZBRFE) permits employees to purchase shares at 88 tower of the fair market value at the
commencement of the offering or the last day offthgroll payment period. The maximum number of ehaf common stock approved by the Company's
shareholders to be purchased under the ESPP wasas$ed from 0.9 million shares to 1.2 million slsadtaring the second fiscal quarter of 2010. The
vesting period for shares purchased under the ES&pproximately one year. Under the ESPP, apprataly 0.9 million shares had been issued through
October 31, 2010, and approximately 130,000 shemesubject to outstanding subscriptions. As obBet 31, 2010, the total compensation cost related
the ESPP not yet recognized was $0.1 million, faltloich is expected to be recognized within fis2@l1.

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company maintains a 401(k) Savings and Prbfitri8g Plan ("401(k) Plan") which covers all fullhe domestic employees who have completed
three months of service and are 18 years of ag&ler. Under the terms of the 401(k) Plan, empleymay contribute up to 50% of their salary, subject
certain maximum amounts, which will be matchedhm® €ompany at 50% of the employee's contributibasdre not in excess of 4% of the employee's
compensation. Employee and employer contributi@ss upon contribution. Employer contributions antedrto $0.4 million, $0.2 million and $0.5 millit
in fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008.

The Company's international subsidiaries mainteiiniement plans for their employees, which vancbuyntry. The obligations and cost of these plans
are not significant to the Company's consolidatedricial statements.

NOTE 12 - CONSOLIDATION, RESTRUCTURING AND RELATED CHARGES (CREDITS)
2009 Restructurings

Shanghai, China, Facility

In the third quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compangsel the manufacture of photomasks at its Shan@haia, facility. In connection with this
restructuring, the Company has recorded total hatges of $5.2 million, including $4.7 million oénhasset write-downs through its completion indlsc
2010. The fair value of the assets written down determined by management using a market appréggroximately 75 employees were affected by this
restructuring.
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The Company recorded an initial restructuchgrge of $10.1 million in the third quarter ofci 2009, which included $7.7 million to write dowre
carrying value of the Company's Shanghai manufagjuacility to its estimated fair value at thang. In the second quarter of fiscal 2010, the Campa
sold its facility in Shanghai, China, for net preds of $12.9 million which resulted in a gain of4shillion, which was recorded as a credit to the
restructuring reserve in that quarter.

The following tables set forth the Company's regtrting reserve as of October 31, 2010 and Noverhp2009, related to its Shanghai, China, facility,
and reflect the activity affecting the reservetfoe years then ended.

Year Ended October 31, 2010

November 2  Charges October 31,

2009 (credits) Utilized 2010
Net gain on sale of asst $ - $ (5,189 $ 518¢ $ i
Employee terminations and other 134 21C (349 -
$ 134 $ (4979 $ 484 $ |

Year Ended November 1, 2009

November 3 November 1

2008 Charges Utilized 2009
Asset write-downs $ - $ 990¢ $ (9,909 $ -
Other - 324 (290 134
$ - $ 10,237 $(10,09¢9) $ 134

Manchester, U.K. Facilit

During the first quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compaeased the manufacture of photomasks at its Mesteh U.K., facility and, in connection therewith,
incurred restructuring charges of $3.9 million tgb its completion in the fourth quarter of fis2@09, primarily for employee termination costs asdet
write-downs. This initiative began in the fourthagiter of fiscal 2008 with the recording of a $0.8Bion charge for the impairment of certain longédd
assets located at the facility. Approximately 85tayiees were affected by this restructuring. THio¥ang table sets forth the Company's 2009
restructuring reserve related to its Manchestdf, Uacility as of November 1, 2009, and refledts activity affecting the reserve for the year teaded.

Year Ended November 1, 2009

November 2 November 1

2008 Charges  Utilized 2009
Employee terminations $ - $ 237 $(237) $ i
Asset write-downs and other - 95C (950 -
$ - $ 332 $(332) % |
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Prior Restructurings
In May 2006, the Company closed its Austingd® manufacturing and research and developmeitityfaand in March 2003 closed its Phoenix,

Arizona, manufacturing facility. The following tad set forth the Company's restructuring reserses @ctober 31, 2010, November 1, 2009 and
November 2, 2008, and reflect the activity affegtihe reserves for the years then en

Year Ended October 31, 2010

November 2 October 31
2009 2010
Balance Charges  Utilized Balance
Manufacturing capacity reduction and other $ 28C % - $ - $ 28C
Total $ 28C % - $ - $ 28C

Year Ended November 1, 2009

November 3 November 1
2008 2009
Balance Charges Utilized Balance
Manufacturing capacity reduction and other $ 1,13 % - $ (859 % 28C
Total $ 1,13 $ - $ (85 % 28C

Year Ended November 2, 2008

October 29 November 2
2007 2008
Balance Charges Utilized Balance
Manufacturing capacity reduction and other $ 1,687 $ - $ (559 % 1,13¢
Total $ 1,687 $ - $ (B55) % 1,13¢

NOTE 13 - IMPAIRMENTS OF GOODWILL AND LONG-LIVED AS SETS

The Company, as of July 27, 2008, performethtamrim impairment test of its goodwill and centaif its long-lived assets (principally machinenda
equipment, and buildings and improvements) duezémis and changes in circumstances through the: diuiarter of fiscal 2008 that indicated an impaint
might have occurred.

Factors deemed by management to have collectiwelgtituted an impairment triggering event included losses in each of the first three quarters of
fiscal 2008, and a significant decrease in the Comgjs market capitalization through the third geradf fiscal 2008 which was significantly below its
consolidated net assets. As a result of this impet test, the Company recorded the following immpant charges during the third quarter of fiscdd@0

Impairment of goodwill $138,53:
Impairment of long-lived assets 66,87
Total impairments $205,40¢
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Goodwill

The Company tested goodwill for impairmentw@alty and when an event occurred or circumstanbasged that would more likely than not have
reduced the fair value of a reporting unit belosvdarrying value. Goodwill was tested for impairmesing a two-step process. In the first step fdlire
value of the reporting unit was compared to itsyéag value. The Company, for purposes of testtaggoodwill for impairment, was a single reportingjt.
If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded tarrying value of its net assets, goodwill wassiered not impaired and no further testing wasiired.
If the carrying value of its net assets exceededdh value of the reporting unit, a second stefhe impairment test was performed in order tedatne
the implied fair value of a reporting unit's gootwbDetermining the implied fair value of goodwikkquired a valuation of the reporting unit's tafegidnd
intangible assets and liabilities in a manner simib the allocation of purchase price in a busiresnbination. If the carrying value of the repagtunit's
goodwill exceeded the implied fair value of its dadll, goodwill was deemed impaired and was writtiawn to the extent of the difference.

Through the third quarter of fiscal 2008, the Compaxperienced a sustained, significant decliniésistock price. As a result of the decline insitsck
price, the Company's market capitalization felh#figantly below the recorded value of its consatied net assets during the third quarter of fi208i8.
Accordingly, in the third quarter of fiscal 2008gtCompany performed an assessment of goodwiiirfpairment. Based on the results of the Company's
initial assessment of impairment of its goodwillwias determined that the consolidated carryingevalf the Company's net assets exceeded its estimat
fair value. Therefore, the Company performed aseétep of the impairment test to determine thdiedgfair value of its goodwill. The result of the
analysis indicated that there would be no remaiimmgied value attributable to the Company's godidavid, accordingly, the Company wrote off all tf i
$138.5 million of goodwill as of July 27, 2008.

In performing the goodwill assessment, the Compased its current market capitalization, discourtash flows and other factors as the best evidence
of fair value. There are inherent uncertaintieanranalysis of goodwill for impairment and managenjedgment is required.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company tests its loriyed assets for impairment whenever events or gaaiin circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof such assets m
not be recoverable. If the carrying amount of aseaer group of assets exceeds its net realizathle vthe asset will be written down to its faifue In
connection with the triggering events discussed/abduring the third quarter of fiscal year 2008 @ompany determined that long-lived assets were
impaired for certain groups of its assets. Therd@teation was based on a review of estimated undisted cash flows for these groups of assets, which
were found to be less than their carrying valué& Tompany considers its asset groups to be tlgelioed assets at each of its locations, primarily
consisting of machinery and equipment, and builsliagd improvements. As a result of the test, thmgamy recorded an impairment charge of $66.9
million as of July 27, 2008, which representeddifterence between the estimated fair values abgeasset groups located in Asia and Europe agid th
carrying values. In addition, an impairment chao§81.5 million was incurred in 2009 related to Manchester, U.K., facility. Fair values were datared
based upon market conditions, the income approahlt utilized cash flow projections) and otherttas.

54




NOTE 14 - INCOME TAXES

The income (loss) before income tax (provigioenefit consists of the following:

United States
Foreign

The income tax provision (benefit) consists of filleowing:

Current:
Federal
State
Foreign

Deferred:
Federal
State
Foreign

Total

Year Ended
October 31, November 1. November 2,
2010 2009 2008
$ (2750) $ (35229 % (32,88()
60,06( (1,87¢) (179,289
$ 32,55 $ (37,10) $ (212,16)
Year Ended
October 31, November 1 November 2,
2010 2009 2008
$ - $ - $ -
7,30¢ 7,26¢ (839
16¢ (2,943 (1,949
$ 747 % 432 % 2,77)

The income tax provision (benefit) differs from t@ount computed by applying the statutory U.Sefabincome tax rate to the income (loss) before

income taxes as a result of the following:

U.S. federal income tax at statutory rate
Goodwill and other impairments
Distributions from foreign subsidiaries
State income taxes, net of federal benefit
Changes in valuation allowances

Foreign tax rate differentials

Resolutions and settlements of tax matters
Shanghai, China operations closure

Other, net

Year Ended
October 31, November 1 November 2,
2010 2009 2008
$ 11,39 $ (12,98 $ (74,259
- - 42,41¢
7,782 10,20¢ 10,937
47€ (447) (1,255
2,651 6,58¢ 8,751
(9,33 1,917 9,98:
- (1,21¢) (192)
(6,127) - -
62¢ 26¢ 83€
$ 747 % 432 % (2,77)

The Company's operations in Shanghai, China wiesed in the fiscal year ended October 31, 20h6 Company recognized a $10.5 million U.S. tax
benefit as a result of the investment writedownChina, additional income was recognized as ate$uasset sales and intercompany loan settlenaerts
the related China income tax liability was offsgtazcumulated net operating losses. As a restiteo€losure, the Company wrote off the Shanghan&h
subsidiary deferred tax asset of $4.4 million edatio unused operating losses in China, which fghkevalued.
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During the fiscal year ended November 1, 2009 Gbmpany recorded a tax benefit in the amount @ #iillion. The benefit recorded was related to
resolutions and settlements of U.S. and foreigmiaxters that were associated with uncertain taiipos in prior years. Interest and penalties geized
as part of the income tax (provisions) benefit wgde2 million, $0.7 million and $0.5 million durirfgscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The net deferred income tax assets consist ofalfmfing:

October 31, November 1,

2010 2009
Deferred income tax assets
Reserves not currently deductible $ 6,008 % 6,45¢
Net operating losses 70,12t 65,12
Alternative minimum tax credits 2,92¢ 2,92¢
Tax credit carryforwards 5,22¢ 4,49¢
Other 4,62( 4,531
88,89¢ 83,53(
Valuation allowances (58,145 (54,739
30,75¢ 28,79¢
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment (11,829 (16,169
Investments and other (1,14¢ (2,139
Other (6,979 (824
(19,94¢) (18,137
Net deferred income tax assets $ 10,80¢ 3 10,66¢
Reported as:
Current deferred tax assets $ 1,17 $ 3,26¢
Long-term deferred tax assets 10,13 8,88
Long-term deferred tax liabilities (499 (1,487

$ 10,80 $ 10,66

On July 13, 2006, the FASB issued FASB Intefgsion Number 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty mcdbme Taxes - an Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109" (primarily codified under ASC 740). Thigidance includes a tv-step approach to recognizing and measuring uringg® positions accounted
for under ASC 740. The Company adopted this guidascof the beginning of its 2008 fiscal year. Tdtal amount of the liability accrued for unrecaggu
tax benefits as of the adoption date was approxity&3.9 million, which included interest and peigas. As compared to the Company's historical
approach, the application of this guidance resuhealnet increase to accrued income taxes paysdlapproximately $1.0 million (including interesic
penalties of approximately $0.2 million), and am@ase to retained earnings of the same amountf the @late of adoption of this guidance, the Corypan
elected to include any applicable interest and piesaelated to uncertain tax positions in itsame tax provision. Unrecognized tax benefits asgedi
with uncertain tax positions of $2.0 million wereiuded in other liabilities in the consolidateddree sheets at October 31, 2010 and November0B. 20
Included in these amounts were $0.3 million and $0illion for interest and penalties in the two geaespectively. If recognized, the benefits would
favorably affect the Company's effective tax ratéuture periods. As of October 31, 2010, the Comydzelieves it is not reasonably possible thatdital
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will signifitg increase or decrease in the next twelve mor@hosrently, the statutes of limitations remain ope
subsequent to, and including, 2006 in the U.S.8200he U.K., 2008 in Germany, 2005 in Korea af8&in Taiwan.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and endimgaunt of unrecognized tax benefits, excluding ieséand penalties, is as follows:

Year Ended
October 31, November1l November 2
2010 2009 2008

Balance at beginning of year $ 1,57 $ 1,98 $ 2,28
Reductions for tax positions in prior years (351) - (301)
Additions based on current year tax
positions 454 377 294
Settlements - (685) (199
Lapses of statutes of limitations - (207) (92)
Balance at end of year $ 1,67¢ $ 157§ 1,98¢

As of October 31, 2010, the Company had availab& Bederal tax operating loss and tax credit éanmards subject to expiration as follows:

Year of Operating Tax
Expiration Losses Credits
2018 $ - $1,272
2022 7,791 -
2023 36,24: -
2024 22,32t 30C
2025 12,13( 51C
2026 4,88¢ 37€
2027 1,50¢ 138
2028 7,52¢ 114
2029 12,67 11t
2030 42,17: -

$ 147,260 $ 2,821

The Company has established a valuation allowamrca portion of its deferred tax assets becauseligéves, based on the weight of all available
evidence, that it is more likely than not that atipm of its net operating loss carryforwards mapiee prior to utilization. The valuation allowanoerease
by $3.4 million, $6.6 million and $8.8 million istal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

As of October 31, 2010, the Company had $2.9 milbéalternative minimum tax credit carryforwartist are available to offset future federal income
taxes payable. The Company also has state tax<eagiilable of $2.0 million which, if they are ndtlized, will begin to expire in 2011.

As of October 31, 2010, the undistributed earnioig®reign subsidiaries included in consolidateireed earnings amounted to $52.1 million, of which
$12.6 million of earnings is considered not to kenpanently reinvested. During fiscal year 2008 eigien was made to not indefinitely reinvest eagsim
certain foreign jurisdictions. No provision has beeade for taxes due on the remaining undistribatedings of $39.5 million considered to be
permanently invested. Should the Company eledterfuture to repatriate the foreign earnings sested, it may incur additional income tax expense o
those foreign earnings, the amount of which ispratticable to compute.
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PKLT, the Company's FPD manufacturing facilityraiwan, has been accorded a tax holiday, wkialts in 2012 and expires in 2017. In additior, th
Company has been accorded a tax holiday in Chirielméxpires in 2011. These tax holidays had noadalt per share effect in the fiscal years ended
October 31, 2010, November 1, 2009 and Novemb20@8. In Korea and at PSMC in Taiwan, various itwesit tax credits have been earned to reduce
the Company's effective income tax rate.

Income tax payments were $8.9 million, $9.6 milleomd $4.4 million in fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008pectively. Cash received for refunds of income
taxes paid in prior years amounted to $0.1 mill®.,1 million and $1.3 million in fiscal 2010, 20@8d 2008, respectively.

NOTE 15 - EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings {l@es share is presented as follows:

Year Ended
October 31  November 1, November 2,
2010 2009 2008
Net income (loss) attributable to Photronics, $ 2392 $ (41,910 $ (210,76Y
Effect of dilutive securities:
Interest expense on convertible notes,
net of related tax effects 4,08t - -
Earnings (loss) for diluted earnings (loss) persha $ 28,000 % (41,91) $ (210,76)
Weighted-average common shares computations:
Weighted-average common shares used for
basic earnings (loss) per share 53,43: 43,21( 41,65¢
Effect of dilutive securities:
Convertible notes 11,31: - -
Share-based payment awards 99¢ - -
Common stock warrants 63 - -
Dilutive potential common shares 12,37( - -
Weighted-average common shares used for
diluted earnings (loss) per share 65,80: 43,21( 41,65¢
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 0.4t % 0.97) $ (5.06)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 04: $ 097 % (5.0€)
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In periods in which the Company incurred a net,ltlss assumed exercises and vestings of certastamaling share-based awards had an antidilutive
effect. The assumed exercise of certain outstanttingmon stock warrants and the conversion of cdiilersenior notes to common stock would also have
been antidilutive in the periods that the Compaported a net loss. The table below shows the atsadiincremental weighted-average shares of these
share-based payment awards, common stock wareardtsonvertible debt that were not considered piaiéndilutive common shares in the fiscal years
presented.

Year Ended
October 31  November1  November 2
2010 2009 2008
Common stock warrants - 804 -
Convertible notes - 1,42¢ 4,40¢
Share-based payment awards - 793 20
Total potentially dilutive shares excluded - 3,02¢ 4,42¢

The table below shows the outstanding weightedemeshare-based payment awards and common stockmigathat were excluded from the
calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per shareglige their exercise price exceeded the averageetnadue of the common shares for the period 1oden
application of the treasury stock method, they wetherwise determined to be antidilutive.

Year Ended
October 31  November1 November 2
2010 2009 2008
Share based payment awards 2,68¢ 2,24: 2,34(
Common stock warrants 74E 2 -
Total potentially dilutive shares excluded 3,42¢ 2,24¢ 2,34(

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2011, the Compawarded approximately 0.4 million shared-bassghgent awards to its employees and directors.

NOTE 16 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

At October 31, 2010, the Company had outstandimgh@se commitments of approximately $64 millionjehhincluded approximately $55 million
related to capital expenditures. In addition, tlenPany’s recorded purchase commitments consistethgly of liabilities for the purchase of
manufacturing equipment of $40 million and $10 ioillat October 31, 2010 and November 1, 2009, atsmdy. See Note 9 for operating lease
commitments.

The Company is subject to various claims that arigee ordinary course of business. The Compatig\es such claims, individually or in the
aggregate, will not have a material, adverse effadts consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 17 - GEOGRAPHIC AND SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMER INFOR MATION

The Company operates as a single operating segmaentmanufacturer of photomasks, which are higtigioe quartz plates containing microscopic
images of electronic circuits for use in the faation of IC's and FPDs. Geographic net sales aedprimarily on where the Company's manufacturing
facility is located. The Company's 2010, 2009 aB@®net sales by geographic area and for ICs abdFihd total long-lived assets by geographic area
were as follows:

Year Ended
October 31  November1  November 2
2010 2009 2008
Net sales
Asia $ 259,95 $ 223,13t $ 259,29
Europe 41,85( 38,34+ 66,39¢
North America 123,75: 99,871 96,857
$ 42555 $ 361,350 $  42254¢
IC $ 329,760 $ 272,86t $  314,94¢
FPD 95,781 88,487 107,59¢

$ 42555: $ 361,350 $  422,54¢

October 31  November1 November 2

2010 2009 2008
Long-lived assets
Asia $ 221,28 $ 199,17¢ $ 228,00
Europe 14,18: 9,57¢ 14,13
North America 134,34¢ 139,13: 194,38

$ 369,81« $ 347,88¢ $  436,52¢

Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. accounted for appnately 19% of the Company's net sales in fiscatyy2810 and 2009 and 25% of the Company"
sales in fiscal 2008.

NOTE 18 — CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to credit risk principally consist of traagcounts receivables and temporary cash
investments. The Company sells its products prign&simanufacturers in the semiconductor and FRIDstries in North America, Europe and Asia. The
Company believes that the concentration of crésktin its trade receivables is substantially nstegd by the Company's ongoing credit evaluatiocgss
and relatively short collection terms. The Compebogs not generally require collateral from cust@n&he Company establishes an allowance for dolubtfu
accounts based upon factors surrounding the aisliof specific customers, historical trends atttbo information.

The Company's cash and cash equivalents are deg@siseveral financial institutions, includingtitstions located within all of the countries in igh
it manufactures photomasks. Portions of deposig®ine of these institutions may exceed the amdunsarance available for such deposits at these
institutions. As these deposits are generally redde upon demand and are held by high qualitytedye institutions, the Company considers them to
bear minimal credit risk. The Company further ratigs credit risks related to its cash and cashvalguits by spreading such risk among a number of
institutions.

60




NOTE 19 — OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The Company's other comprehensive income, as egportthe consolidated statements of equity, cesisall changes in equity during the periods
presented except those resulting from investmentsamers and distributions to owners. The companehbther comprehensive income for the last three
fiscal years, net of tax, were as follows:

Foreign Changes in
Currency Amortization Unrealized Total Other
Translation of Cash Flow Investment Comprehensive
Adjustments Hedges Gains (Losses) Other Income
Year Ended October 31, 2010
Attributable to Photronics, Inc. $ 13,45 % 12¢ % - $ (159 $ 13,42
Attributable to noncontrolling interests 3,12: - - (117) 3,00¢
Total other comprehensive income 16,57 12¢ - (27€) 16,427
Income tax benefit (expense) - - - 65 65
Other comprehensive income, net of tax $ 16,57« % 12¢ 3 - $ (21) s 16,49:
Foreign Changes in
Currency Amortization Unrealized Total Other
Translation of Cash Flow Investment Comprehensive
Adjustments Hedges Gains (Losses) Other Income
Year ended November 1, 2009
Attributable to Photronics, Inc. $ 10,71:  $ 57¢ $ 62 $ (23§ $ 11,11:
Attributable to noncontrolling interests 34z - 39 (207) 28C
Total other comprehensive income 11,05¢ 57€ 101 (339 11,39:
Income tax benefit (expense) = = = = =
Other comprehensive income, net of tax $ 11,05¢ $ 57¢ $ 101 $ (339 $ 11,39:
Foreign Changes in
Currency Amortization Unrealized Total Other
Translation of Cash Flow Investment Comprehensive
Adjustments Hedges Gains (Losses) Other Income
Year ended November 2, 2008
Attributable to Photronics, Inc. $ (62,239 $ 192 $ 279 $ 2 3 (62,319
Attributable to noncontrolling interests (829 - - - (824)
Total other comprehensive income (63,05¢) 193 279 2 (63,14
Income tax benefit (expense) = = = = =
Other comprehensive income (loss),
net of tax $ (63,05) $ 19 % 27y $ : 8 (63,14)

The foreign currency translation adjustment amadi$63.1 million for the fiscal year ended NovemBeR008, was primarily due to the weakening of

the Korean won against the U.S. dollar.
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NOTE 20 - OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The chairman of the board and chief executive effaf the Company is also the chairman of the baadimajority shareholder of a company that
provides secure managed information technologyigesvo Photronics. Another director of the Companglso a shareholder, chief executive officer and
executive vice chairman of this company. Since 2802 Company has entered into various servicergotstwith this company to provide services taéll
the Company's worldwide facilities. The Companyuimed expenses for services provided by this compa$2.6 million, $2.8 million and $3.3 million in
fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively asaf October 31, 2010, had an outstanding balah$@.4 million due to this company. As of October
31, 2010, the Company had contracted with this @mgor various services through October 1, 2013, @ost of approximately $4.9 million.

The Company purchases photomask blanks from a aoygfavhich an officer of the Company is a sigrdfit shareholder. The Company purchased
$21.9 million, $25.5 million, and $28.5 million photomask blanks from this company in 2010, 2088, 2008, respectively, for which the amount owe
this company was $4.3 million at October 31, 2040 $6.5 million at November 1, 2009.

The Company believes that the terms of its trans@ewith related parties described above were tigigd at arm's length and were no less favoral
the Company than the Company could have obtairwed émrelated third parties. See Note 4 for othletted party transactions.

NOTE 21 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company adopted SFAS No. 157 "Fair Value Maaments" (primarily codified under ASC 820) as ofvmber 3, 2008, for all financial assets
and liabilities measured on both a recurring angkr@curring basis, and for nonfinancial assets &iilities measured on a recurring basis. This goa
defines fair value as the price that would be nezetito sell an asset or transfer a liability inoaderly transaction between market participantbet
measurement date. An "orderly transaction” is @sation that assumes exposure to the marketgderiad prior to the measurement date to allow for
marketing activities that are usual and customaryriinsactions involving such assets or liab8itfee. it is not a forced transaction). The tratisa to sell
the asset or transfer the liability is a hypottedticansaction at the measurement date, considiemedthe perspective of a market participant thats the
asset or owes the liability. Therefore, the objertf a fair value measurement is to determineptiee that would be received to sell the assetadt
transfer the liability (an exit price) at the megsuent date.

A fair value measurement further assumes thatypethetical transaction occurs in the principaliforo principal market exists, the most
advantageous) market for the asset or liabilitythr, a fair value measurement assumes a traosantiolving the highest and best use of the amsétthe
consideration of assumptions that would be mademasket participants when pricing the asset or llighisuch as transfer restrictions (in the casarof
asset) or nonperformance risk.

This guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy phioritizes the inputs to valuation techniqueedito measure fair value into three broad levidis.
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priorityuteadjusted, quoted market prices in active marficetglentical assets or liabilities (including where
liabilities are traded as assets) while givingltweest priority to unobservable inputs, which arpuits that reflect the Company's assumptions abeut
factors that market participants would use in vaduassets or liabilities, based upon the bestimédion available under existing circumstances ases
when the inputs used to measure fair value fallifferent levels of the fair value hierarchy, tleeél within which the fair value measurement ireitgirety
falls is determined based on the lowest level inpat is significant to the fair value measuremiarits entirety. When, due to changes in the inpaits
valuation techniques used to measure its fair yalnesset or liability is transferred between Iewé the fair value hierarchy, the Company recagsiall
transfer to or from any level to be as of the bayig of the reporting period. Assessing the sigaifice of a particular input to the fair value measient in
its entirety requires judgment, including the cdesation of factors specific to the asset or lighilThe hierarchy consists of the following thieeels:
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Level 1- Inputs are prices in active markets for identaadurities that are accessible at the measuretaéant

Level 2- Inputs other than quoted prices included witha@vél 1 are observable for the asset or liabilitthex directly or indirectly. At October 31,
2010 and November 1, 2009, the Company's Levelliliies are certain common stock warrants, whkichincluded in other liabilities.

Level 3- Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asseaability. At November 1, 2009, the Company's LeS&lsset was a foreign bond fund that is

included in other current assets.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value oRecurring Basit

The tables below present assets and liabilitiexf &ctober 31, 2010 and November 1, 2009, thatrezasured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Common stock warrants
Total liabilities

Foreign bond fund

Total assets

Common stock warrants
Total liabilities
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October 31, 2010

Quoted

Prices

in Active Significant

Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable  Unobservable
Instruments Inputs Inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
$ -9 1,88) $ - $(1,88))
$ -8 2,88) $ - $(1,88))
November 1, 2009

Quoted

Prices

in Active Significant

Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable  Unobservable
Instruments Inputs Inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
$ - § = $ 146 $ 14¢€
$ - 3 - $ 146 $ 14¢€
$ - 9 (3,20 $ - $(3,20%
$ - 8 (320) % - $(3,20%)




The foreign bond fund above represents the gamyis investment in a fund whose fair value wawigied by the trust. During the three month period
ended August 1, 2010, the Company determined thatvestment in the fund was not recoverable. Aesalt of this determination, the Company wrote of
its entire investment in the fund. This resulted inet of tax charge of $0.2 million (included mvéstment and other income (expense), net) and a
reclassification adjustment of an unrealized hajdjain to earnings of $0.1 million.

The fair value of the common stock warrants lidpilvas determined using the Black-Scholes optidcingg model. A significant observable input into
the model included the market price of the Comgaogmmon stock at the measurement date. Gainssedaelated to fair value adjustments to the
common stock warrants liability are included inetincome (expense), net.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value oNa@recurring Basit

The Company, as permitted under accounting guidassced in 2008, elected to defer the effective diat applying fair value guidance to its
nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are mezdait fair value on a nonrecurring basis until Noker 2, 2009. As a result of this election, certang-
lived assets that, in fiscal year 2009 and in cotioe with the Company's restructuring initiativesgre measured at fair value on a nonrecurringsldidi
not have fair value disclosure provisions appliethem. The Company did not have any nonfinan@séts or liabilities measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis at October 31, 2010.

Fair Value of Other Financial Instrumen

The fair values of the Company's cash and castvalguits, accounts receivable, accounts payablecemalin other current assets and current liabditi
approximate their carrying value due to their shiertn maturities. The fair value of the Compangsiable rate long-term debt approximates its cagyi
value due to the variable nature of the underlyimgrest rates. The estimated fair value of the @amy's outstanding 5.5% convertible senior notes wa
approximately $83.2 million and $63.3 million att@leer 31, 2010 and November 1, 2009, respectively.
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NOTE 22 - QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITE D)

The following table sets forth certain unaadiguarterly financial data:

First Second Third Fourth Year

Fiscal 2010: (@ ®b)  (c)(d)(e) () (9) (h) (e) () ()
Net sales $98,197 $105,07(  $112,25.  $110,03¢  $425,55:
Gross margin 18,177 22,09( 26,27: 25,27¢ 91,81t
Net income 40¢ 8,60¢ 7,607 8,462 25,08:
Net income attributable to Photronics, | 21z 7,87% 7,691 8,14¢ 23,92:
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 00OC $ 01t $ 014 $ 01t $ 0.4t

Diluted $ 00OC $ 014 $ 01t $ 014 $ 04c
Fiscal 2009: (k) (1) (m) M@ E@h ©O60
Net sales $88,04: $ 83,23 $95401 $94,67¢ $361,35:
Gross margin 10,55¢ 11,44( 18,054 17,01¢ 57,07
Net income (loss (9,967%) (20,156 (22,449 1,14¢ (41,427
Net income (loss) attributable to Photronics, (20,239 (20,079 (22,847 1,24z (41,910
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic $ (028) $ (02H $ (05YH) $ 00z $ (099

Diluted $ (028) $ (029 $ (05H) $ (0.1 $ (0.9)

(@) Includes consolidation and restructuring charge®0o2 million net of tax in connection with the sioe of the Compar's Shanghai, China, manufacturing facil

(b) Includes no-cash mar-to-market gain of $0.1 million net of tax in connectiwith warrants issued to purchase the Com’s stock.

(c) Includes consolidation and restructuring @sedf $5.0 million net of tax that primarily resedi from the sale of the Company’s Shanghai, Chimeufacturing facility, which was sold in

connection with its closur
(d) Includes no-cash mar-to-market charge of $0.9 million net of tax in conmeeiwith warrants issued to purchase the Com’s stock.
(e) Includes $1.0 million charge net of tax for thete-off of deferred financing fees that resulted fromamendment of the Comp¢'s revolving credit facility

(f) Includes no-cash mar-to-market gain of $0.4 million net of tax in connectiwith warrants issued to purchase the Com'’s stock.

(9) Includes consolidation and restructuring @eedf $0.2 million net of tax that primarily resed from the sale of the Company’s Shanghai, Chimemufacturing facility, which was sold in

connection with its closur
(h) Includes no-cash mar-to-market charge of $0.5 million net of tax in conmeeiwith warrants issued to purchase the Com’s stock.
(0] Includes consolidation and restructuring credit$®0 million net of tax in connection with the sige of the Compar's Shanghai, China, manufacturing facil
0] Includes no-cash mar-to-market charge of $0.9 million net of tax in conneetwith warrants issued to purchase the Com’s stock.
(k) Includes consolidation and restructuring chargeslof million ($1.3 million net of tax) in conneati with the closure of the Company's Mancheste, Unanufacturing facility
(0] Includes consolidation and restructuring charge0o# million ($0.3 million net of tax) in conneati with the closure of the Company's Manchestd, Unanufacturing facility

(m) Includes impairment charge of $1.5 million ($1.1limn net of tax) relating to the Company's MandkesU.K., manufacturing facility

(n)  Includes consolidation and restructuring gearof $10.7 million ($10.5 million net of tax) @@nnection with the closures of the Company's Shanghina and Manchester, U.

manufacturing facilities
(0) Includes no-cash mar-to-market charge of $6.8 million net of tax in conn@etwith warrants issued to purchase the Compamytsmon stock

(p)  Includes consolidation and restructuring gearof $0.8 million ($0.6 million net of tax) inmoeection with the closures of the Company's Shangiana and Manchester, U.K.
manufacturing facilities.

K.,

(@) Includes non-cash mark-to-market gain of $6illion net of tax in connection with warrantsuss! (and a portion cancelled) to purchase the Coptpaommon stock and deferred

financing fees writ-off of $3.7 million net of tax in connection witepayment of deb

(4] Includes gain on sale of the Company's Mastdre U.K., facility of $2.0 million ($1.5 millionet of tax).
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(s) Includes consolidation and restructuring charge®l® 6 million ($12.9 million net of tax) in conrt@m with the closures of the Company's Shanghain€and Manchester, U.K.,
manufacturing facilities

(t) Includes no-cash mar-to-market charge of $0.3 million net of tax, in conti@t with warrants issued to purchase the Compamytsmon stock
NOTE 23 - RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2010, the FASB amended its guidanceisclosures for financing receivables with thesititon of providing additional information to adsis
financial statement users in assessing an entitytit risk exposures and evaluating the adequéity allowance for credit losses. The disclosure
requirements in the amended guidance that are the @nd of a reporting period are effective faeiim and annual reporting periods ending on araft
December 15, 2010, and the disclosures about ggcthat occurs during a reporting period are effector interim and annual reporting periods begign
on or after December 15, 2010. The Company expegisovide any applicable disclosures requiredhiy amended guidance beginning in the first quarter
of its 2011 fiscal year.

In September 2009, the FASB issued revised guidBoraaultiple-deliverable revenue arrangementssTihiidance changes the criteria for separating
consideration in multiple-deliverable arrangemédnt®stablishing a selling price hierarchy for detieiing the selling price of a deliverable. Undeg th
revised guidance, the selling price for each dedibke in a multiple-deliverable arrangement will arder of preference and when available, be based
vendor specific objective evidence, third partydevice, or estimated selling price. The revisedangd prescribes that an estimated selling price be
determined in a manner that is consistent with tisatd to determine the price to sell the deliverainl a stand-alone basis, eliminates the residatiad of
allocation, and requires that arrangement condiderae allocated at the inception of the arrangen®all deliverables using the relative sellingcp
method. The revised guidance also significantlyagxis the disclosures related to multiple-deliverastangements, and is effective prospectively for
revenue arrangements entered into or materiallyifieddn fiscal years beginning on or after June 2810, with early adoption permitted. The adoptén
this guidance by the Company on November 1, 20ddt have a material impact on the Company's dmtaged financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued amended standardefermining whether to consolidate a variablergdeentity. The amended standards require an
enterprise to perform an analysis to determine hdrets variable interest or interests give it atoolling financial interest in a variable interesttity. This
analysis is performed in order to identify the paipnbeneficiary of the variable interest entitybaing the enterprise that has certain charactesiggscribe
in the amended standards. The amended standamatidition to other requirements, require an enteedo assess whether it has an implicit financial
responsibility to ensure that a variable interedity operates as designed when determining whétlhes the power to direct the activities of ttaiable
interest entity that most significantly impact #wtity's financial performance, and mandates orggodassessments of whether an enterprise is i
beneficiary of a variable interest entity. Theseeaded standards are effective for financial statgsissued for fiscal years beginning after Novenitie
2009, and interim financial statements within thfiseal years. The Company is currently evaluatheyimpact, if any, this guidance will have on its
consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company has established and currently taamdisclosure controls and procedures, as fuohis defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢hef
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tkeH&nhge Act"), designed to ensure that informatemuired to be disclosed in its reports filed unither
Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarizeédegorted within the time periods specified in 8exurities and Exchange Commission's rules and
forms, and that such information is accumulated @mmunicated to management, including the Comparhjef executive officer and chief financial
officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely deoiss regarding required disclosure. In designingaraduating disclosure controls and procedures,
management recognized that any controls and proesdoo matter how well designed and operatedpoaride only reasonable assurance of achieving the
desired control objectives, and management nedlyssas required to apply its judgment in evalugtithe cost-benefit relationship of possible corstrahd
procedures.

The Company's management, with the participatiath®fCompany's chief executive officer and chieéficial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of
Company's disclosure controls and procedures #eeadfnd of the period covered by this report. Basethat evaluation, the chief executive officed an
chief financial officer concluded that the Compargisclosure controls and procedures, as of theoktite period covered by this report, were desigged
are functioning effectively to provide reasonaldswmance that the information required to be dészidoy the Company in reports filed under the Ergea
Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized andrtegavithin the time periods specified in the Séguand Exchange Commission's rules and forms, and
(i) accumulated and communicated to managemeciydimg the chief executive officer and chief fiéal officer, as appropriate, to allow timely déciss
regarding disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Company's internal abower financial reporting during the fourth fiscmarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Comparipternal control over financial reporting.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financiglaging, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f)

and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Internal contreér financial reporting is a process designepréwide reasonable assurance regarding the retjabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting principles.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgmapaternal control over financial reporting as@étober 31, 2010, based on the criteria set forth
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission in "Internal Control - InteigdhFramework." Management, under the
supervision and with the participation of the Comysa chief executive officer and chief financiafioér, assessed that the Company's internal cooted
financial reporting was effective as of October 2010.

The Company's independent registered public acoaufitm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, has audited théeetiveness of the Company's internal control
over financial reporting as of October 31, 2010stased in their attestation report on page 33isfEorm 10-K.

January 14, 2011
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information as to Directors required nt401, 405 and 407(c)(3)(d)(4) and (d)(5) of Ratioh S-K is set forth in the Company's 2011 défiei
Proxy Statement which will be filed with the Seti@s and Exchange Commission pursuant to Reguladdénof the Exchange Act within 120 days after
end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-idemthe caption "PROPOSAL 1 - ELECTION OF DIRECTQRSECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL
OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE" and in paragraptethunder the caption "MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES ORH BOARD," and is
incorporated in this report by reference. The infation as to Executive Officers is included in @@mpany's 2011 definitive Proxy Statement under the
caption "EXECUTIVE OFFICERS" and is incorporatedtiis report by reference.

The Company has adopted a code of ethics thatespfaliits principal executive officer, principatdincial officer and principal accounting officer or
controller. A copy of the code of ethics may beaited, free of charge, by writing to the vice pdesit general counsel of Photronics, Inc. at 15 SRoad,
Brookfield, Connecticut 06804.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 402 of Regulat®# and paragraph (e)(4) and (e)(5) of Item 4Q&eisforth in the Company's 2011 definitive Proxy
Statement under the captions "EXECUTIVE COMPENSAN|O'CERTAIN AGREEMENTS", "DIRECTORS' COMPENSATION"COMPENSATION
COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION" andCOMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT," respectively, arsdncorporated in
this report by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER
MATTERS

The information required by Item 403 of Regiola S-K is set forth in the Company's 2011 defiitProxy Statement under the caption "OWNERSHIP
OF COMMON STOCK BY DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND CERTABENEFICIAL OWNERS", and is incorporated in this ogpby reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Items 404 and Item 4)of Regulation S-K is set forth in the Comparp41 definitive Proxy Statement under the
captions "MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD" afi€ERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONSrespectively,
and is incorporated in this report by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 9(e) of Rule 14xtDbf the Exchange Act is set forth in the Compa@@11 definitive Proxy Statement under the
captions "FEES PAID TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS"&PAUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT," and is incorporatedftinis report by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as partto$ report:

Page
No.
1. Financial Statements: See "INDEX TO CONSOLIDATEINANCIAL STATEMENTS" in Part Il, Item 8 of this Forr0-K. 32
2. Financial Statement Schedules:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiimmn on Financial Statement Schedule for the yeaded October 31, 2010, Novemb
1, 2009 and November 2, 2008 69
Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts fbe years ended October 31, 2010, November 1, 206November 2, 2008 70
All other schedules are omitted because they arapuicable.
3.  Exhibits 70

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm on Financial Statement Schedule

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Photronics, Inc.
Brookfield, Connecticut

We have audited the consolidated financiakstants of Photronics, Inc. and subsidiaries (@enipany") as of October 31, 2010 and November 1,
2009, and for each of the three fiscal years ef@gdber 31, 2010, November 1, 2009 and Novemb20@3, and the Company's internal control over
financial reporting as of October 31, 2010, andehiagued our report thereon dated January 14, @ith report expresses an unqualified opinion and
includes an explanatory paragraph concerning tbetazh of new accounting standards for noncontiglinterests as set forth in Consolidation Topic No
810 of the Accounting Standards Codification); steort is included elsewhere in this Form 10-Kr @udits also included the consolidated financial
statement schedule of the Company listed in ItenThis consolidated financial statement scheduteégesponsibility of the Company's management. Ou
responsibility is to express an opinion based anaowlits. In our opinion, such consolidated finahstatement schedule, when considered in relatidie
basic consolidated financial statements takenvalsade, presents fairly, in all material respedt® information set forth therein.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Stamford, Connecticut
January 14, 2011
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Schedule Il

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
for the Years Ended October 31, 2010, November 10Q9
and November 2, 2008
(in thousands)

Balance at Charge to Balance a
Beginning of Costs and End of
Year Expenses Deductions Year
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Year ended October 31, 2010 $ 2,66¢ $ 1,978  $ (409 ()% 4,23t

Year ended November 1, 2009 $ 2,78 $ 53¢ % (657) ()%  2,66¢
Year ended November 2, 2008 $ 3,721 $ 481 $ (452) (@)% 2,78¢
Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance

Year ended October 31, 2010 $ 54,73 $ 12,97 $ (9,56) (b)$ 58,14¢
Year ended November 1, 2009 $ 48,14¢ % 6,58¢ $ - $ 54,73¢
Year ended November 2, 2008 $ 39,39: $ 8,751 $ - $ 48,14¢

(@) Uncollectible accounts written off

(b)  Mainly due to reversal of valuation allowance fétraBghai, China facility closure and impact of resllimcome tax rates in Taiwan.

Exhibit
Number

EXHIBITS INDEX

Description

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1

Certificate of Incorporation as amended July 9,6,.9%oril 9, 1990, March 16, 1995, November 13, 1,98ril 15, 2002 and June 20, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to therpany's Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended October 28, 20(

By-laws of the Company, (incorporated by referetecExhibit 3.2 to the Company's Registration Statetron Form S-1, File Number 33-
11694, which was declared effective by the Comraissin March 10, 1987

Form of Indenture between the Company and the BaNew York, as Trustee (incorporated by referetocExhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Forr-3 File Number 33-160235 which was filed on June 25, 20(

Indenture dated September 16, 2009 between the @orgnd the Bank of New York, as Trustee (incorfutdy reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
the Compan’s Current Report on Form 8K filed September 17 2@bmmission File Numbel-15451)).

Supplement to Indenture dated September 16, 2008:ba the Company and the Bank of New York, astéaugelating the issuance of the
Company’s 5.5% Convertible Notes due 2014 (incateat by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Companyisrént Report on Form 8K filed
September 17, 2009 (Commission File Numk-15451)).

The Company will furnish to the Commission uponuest any other debt instrument referred to in 16&h(b)(4)(iii)(A) of Regulation S-K.

Master Service Agreement dated January 11, 2002eetthe Company and RagingWire Telecommunicatioes(incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Annual Report onnfr 1(-K for the fiscal year ended November 1, 20(
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10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.1(¢

10.11

10.12

10.1z

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

Underwriting Agreement between the Company and lelor§tanley & Co. Incorporated dated September @9 2elating to the issuance of the
Company’s 5.5% Convertible Notes due 2014 (incaeat by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa®usrent Report on Form 8K filed
September 11, 2009 (Commission File Numk-15451)).

Underwriting Agreement between the Company and orgtanley & Co. Incorporated dated September @9 2elating to the issuance of
9,638,554 shares of common stock (incorporatecefgrence to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Curregpdtt on Form 8K filed September 11,
2009 (Commission File Numbe-15451)).

Warrant Agreement between the Company and Inteit@aporporation dated September 10, 2009 (incateat by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
Compan’s Current Report on Form 8K filed September 11 92@bmmission File Numbel-15451)).

Warrant Agreement between the Company and Inteit@laporporation dated September 10, 2Q@@orporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
Compan’s Current Report on Form 8K filed September 11 92@ommission File Numbel-15451)).

The Company’s 1992 Employee Stock Purchase Plaorfiorated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the @any’s Registration Statement on Fc
S-8, File Number 33-47446 which was filed April 2894).+

Amendment to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan bsuwath 24, 2004*

Amendment to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan Aprilf8, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhilf.42 to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed on June 10, 2010).

The Company’s 2007 Long-Term Equity Incentive Rliacorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thenpany's Registration Statement on Form
S-8, Registration No. 333).

Amendment to the 2007 Long Term Equity IncentivenPas of April 8, 2010 (incorporated by refererc&xhibit 10.43 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed omeJ1i0, 2010)*

Consulting Agreement between the Company and CotiiséaS. Macricostas, dated July 11, 2005 (incateat by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 2805 (Commission File Number 0-15451)).

Amendment No. 1 to the Consulting Agreement betw@enstantine S. Macricostas and the Company datee@iNber 10, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s AnriReport on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended Noventh 2008 (Commission File No. O-

15451)).*

Executive Employment Agreement between the CompaudySean T. Smith dated February 20, 2003 (incatpdrby reference to Exhibit 10.12
to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K forfteeal year ended November 1, 2009).

Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of Nlask Technology Center, LLC between Micron Tecbggl Inc. ("Micron") and
Photronics, Inc. ("Photronics") dated May 5, 20B@drporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to tleenPany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

filed on June 8, 2006 (Commission File No. 0- 19451

Contribution and Units Purchase Agreement betwe&mdvl, Photronics and MP Mask Technology CenteiCL{LMP Mask") dated May 5, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to @mmpany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed omel8, 2006 (Commission File No. 0-

15451)) #

Technology License Agreement among Micron, Phot®and MP Mask dated May 5, 2006 (incorporatedeligrence to Exhibit 10.19 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed omeJ8, 2006 (Commission File No. 0-1545%)).

Photronics to Micron Supply Agreement between Micand Photronics dated May 5, 2006 (incorporaterefsrence to Exhibit 10.21 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed omel&, 2006 (Commission File No. 0-1545%)).

Company to Photronics Supply Agreement between MBKvNnd Photronics dated May 5, 2006 (incorporayectference to Exhibit 10.22 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed omel8, 2006 (Commission File No. 0-1545%)).

Operating Lease Agreement dated May 19, 2009 bettveeCompany and Micron (incorporated by referendexhibit 8.02 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8K filed on July 6, 2009 i@oission File NO. -15451)).
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10.2¢

10.21

10.22

10.2z

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.27

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.3(

10.31

10.32

10.3:

21

23

311

31.2

Executive Employment Agreement between the CompawySoo Hong Jeong dated August 24, 2001, as aciédhaleh 18, 2004, November 28,
2005 and June 9, 2006 (incorporated by referen&sxiibit 10.23 to the Company's Quarterly ReporfFonm 10-Q filed on September 7, 2006

(Commission File No. 0-15451)).

Extension of Executive Employment Agreement betwitbenCompany and Soo Hong Jeong effective Octobe2@06 and ending on October 28,
2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.0th® Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed anuary 3, 2007 (Commission File No. O-

15451)).*

Extension of Executive Employment Agreement betwitbenCompany and Soo Hong Jeong effective Octo®e2@)7 and ending October 27,
2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.0th® Company's Current Report on Form 8-K Filed avéinber 8, 2007 (Commission File No.

0-15451))+

Extension of Executive Employment Agreement betwtbenCompany and Soo Hong Jeong effective Octo®e2@8 and ending October 27,
2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1h® Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed @vémber 17, 2008 (Commission File No.

0-15451))+

Extension of Executive Employment Agreement betwtbenCompany and Soo Hong Jeong effective Octo®e2@)9 and ending October 27,
2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2&h® Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for ieedl year ended November 1, 2009).

Executive Employment Agreement between the CompawyChristopher J. Progler, Vice President, Chedftihology Officer dated September
10, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2Ga@the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K fieedJanuary 11, 2008 (Commission File

No. (-15451)).*

Executive Employment Agreement between the CompauayPeter Kirlin dated May 21, 2010 (incorporatgddference to Exhibit 10.42 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed omeJ1i0, 2010)*

Executive Employment Agreement between the CompauayRichelle Burr dated May 21, 2010 (incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 10.43 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed omeJ1i0, 2010)*

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated aslwfiBry 12, 2010 (incorporated by reference to EkBD.1 to the Company's Current Re|
on Form &K filed on February 16, 201C

Amendment No. 1 to the Credit Agreement dated ddaf 7, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exi#itl to the Company's Current Report on
Form &K filed on May 13, 2010)

Amendment No. 2 to the Credit Agreement dated $eipee 17, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Ex®8ifl to the Company's Current Report
on Form &K filed on September 21, 201(

Security Agreement dated December 12, 2008 by amahg the Company, the subsidiaries of the Compiatgd on the signature page and
JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association (incorgaray reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the Compam@grterly Report on Form 10Q for the
quarterly period ended May 3, 2009 (Commission Rilenber (-15451)).

Warrant Agreement dated May 15, 2009 by and amea@bmpany and the Purchasers Named Therein (imdgul by reference to Exhibit
10.41 to the Compar's Quarterly Report on Form 10Q for the quarterlsiqgeended May 3, 2009 (Commission File N-15451)).

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 0892y and among the Company and the Holders Ndrherkin (incorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.42 to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form 10Q for the quarterlsiqgteended May 3, 2009 (Commission File N-15451)).

List of Subsidiaries of the Company.*
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.*

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exgleahct of 1934, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exgeafct of 1934, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002.*
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32.1

32.2

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant tiio8e¥06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant tiio8e306 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
Represents a management contract or compensatryphlrrangement.

Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuarat request for confidential treatment filed wiitle Securities and Exchange Commission.
Represents an exhibit that is filed with this AninRaport on Form 10-K.

The Company will provide a copy of any exhibit upeceipt of a written request for the particulahieit or exhibits desired. All requests should be
addressed to the Company's general counsel atitiiess of the Company's principal executive offi
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 185¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, #gistrant has duly caused this report to be sigmeits
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

PHOTRONICS, INC.
(Registrant)

By /s/ SEAN T. SMITH January 14, 2011
Sean T. Smith
Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer/
Principal Financial Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datfisdted.

By /s/ CONSTANTINE S. MACRICOSTAS January 14, 2011
Constantine S. Macricostas
Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By /s/ SEANT. SMITH January 14, 2011
Sean T. Smith
Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer/
Principal Financial Officer)

By /s/ WALTER M. FIEDEROWICZ January 14, 2011

Walter M. Fiederowicz
Director

By /s/ JOSEPH A. FIORITA, JR. January 14, 2011

Joseph A. Fiorita, Jr.
Director

By /s/ GEORGE C. MACRICOSTAS January 14, 2011

George C. Macricostas
Director

By /s/ MITCHELL G. TYSON January 14, 2011
Mitchell G. Tyson
Director
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Exhibit 10.7

EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN
(Amended and Current as of March 24, 2004)

ARTICLE | - General

1.1 The purpose of Photronics, Inc. Employee Stgichase Plan is to provide eligible employeefi@fGompany and its designated subsidiaries (if any)
with an opportunity to acquire a proprietary instr@ the Company by the purchase of shares oEtdremon Stock of the Company directly from the
Company through payroll deductions. It is felt teatployee participation in the ownership of the @amy will be to the mutual benefit of both the
employees and the Company.

1.2 The Plan is intended to qualify as an "emplateek purchase plan” within the meaning of Secti2@ of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the "Code"). The provisions of the Plall shccordingly, be construed so as to extendarihit eligibility and participation in a manner
consistent, and so as to otherwise comply, withrélgelirements of the Code.

1.3 Eligibility and participation in the Plan shglive any Employee only such rights as are selhfiorthe Plan and any amendments hereto and shiadi i
way affect or in any manner limit the Company'$ititp discharge the Employee, which right is exglseseserved by the Company, or impair the authorit
of the Plan Committee to limit the Employee's rigltlaims or causes, as provided in the Plan.

ARTICLE Il - Definitions
2.1 The following words and phrases, when usetierRian, shall have the following respective megsininless the context clearly indicates otherwise:
"Authorized Leave of Absence"
Any leave of absence authorized under the Compatsrelard personnel practices, provided that aflqres under similar circumstances must be treated
equally in the granting of such Authorized Leavedbence and provided further that the person metto the employ of the Company upon the expiration
of an Authorized Leave of Absence.

"Board of Directors"
The Board of Directors of Photronics, Inc.

"Code"
The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedtfroento time, and applicable Treasury Departmegtiliaions issued thereunder.




"Common Stock"
The Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, o€thepany, or the securities adjusted or substittitecefor pursuant to Article XIV.

"Company"
Photronics, Inc., a Connecticut corporation, ositscessor or successors or any present or futbeedsary of Photronics, Inc., which may be destgdao
participate in the Plan by the Board of Directors.

"Compensation”

The Compensation of an Eligible Employee shall éednined in accordance with procedures approvettidilan Committee or the Board of Directors
the absence of the adoption of specific proced@esjpensation of an Eligible Employee shall beatheualized salary or wages of such Employee based
on such Employee's current rate of pay and workdule, but excluding any discretionary overtimek giay, vacation pay or other benefits.

"Disability"

Disability shall have the same meaning set fortBéation 22(e)(3) of the Code or any successorigimvthereto. At present, a disability is defireexla
physical or mental impairment or incapacity whichthe opinion of a physician selected by the Rlammittee, can be expected to result in death &r ha
lasted or can be expected to last for a continpeui®d of at least twelve (12) months and rendeesParticipant unable to engage in any substaggahful
activity.

"Effective Date of the Plan"
The date on which the Plan shall have become @fteptirsuant to Article XVII, provided, however athif the Plan shall not be approved by the
stockholders of the Company as provided in Art\él, the Plan and all rights granted hereundefdidbe and be deemed to have been, null and void.

"Eligible Employee"
An Employee who is eligible to participate in thiarPin accordance with provisions of Articles I\Vday.

"Employee"

Any person who, on an Offering Date, is a commanédmployee of the Company and whose customary gmaat is for more than twenty (20) hours per
week and for more than five (5) months per caleyear, other than any highly compensated emplofeitisin the meaning of Section 414[q] of the Code
or any successor provision thereto) of the Compeamny are excluded from participation hereunder hjoamf the Board of Directors. A person who is or
has been on an Authorized Leave of Absence, andinvtiee absence of such Authorized Leave of Absevméld have been classified as an Employee,
shall in the discretion of the Plan Committee besidered to be an Employee, except to the extanistich determination is inconsistent with Sectig@

of the Code. Such determination by the Plan Coremishall be final and conclusive.




"Offering"
An Offering in accordance with the provisions ofiéle V.

"Offering Date"
The date of an Offering as established by the Blammittee pursuant to Section 5.1 hereof.

"Participant"
An Eligible Employee who subscribes for Shares pams to Article VI.

"Plan”
The Photronics, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Riafogth herein, as amended from time to time icoadance with the provisions of Article XV.

"Plan Committee"
The committee provided for in Article XII to admateér the Plan.

"Purchase Date"
A Purchase Date as provided in Sections 8.1 or, B8.appropriate.

"Shares"
Shares of Common Stock offered under the Plan.

The masculine gender, whenever used in the Blall be deemed to include the feminine gerated,whenever the plural is used it shall include th
singular, if the context so requires.

ARTICLE Ill - Shares Subject to the Plan

3.1 Subject to the provisions of Article XIV heretlfe aggregate number of shares of Common Stoahwhay be issued under the Plan shall not exceed
900,000. The aggregate number of such shares wiaghbe issued with respect to any Offering shali&ermined by the Plan Committee with respect to
such Offering. Such shares may be authorized hesued shares of Common Stock or issued sharesrmofr®n Stock which are held by the Company.
Any shares subscribed for under the Plan and mohpsed as a result of the cancellation in wholia part of such subscription shall (unless thenRlaall
have terminated) be again available for issuanceuthe Plan.

ARTICLE IV - Eligibility
4.1 Each Employee who has been continuously emgdlbyehe Company for the one complete calendar mrtsuch longer period as may be determined

by the Plan Committee) ending immediately prioatoOffering Date shall be eligible to participaiettie Offering under the Plan made on such Offering
Date.




4.2 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 44, Employee shall be offered Shares if, immediaaéigr he would subscribe for such Shares, such
Employee would own capital stock (including shase€ommon Stock which may be purchased under suisbcsiption and under any other outstanding
subscriptions under the Plan or options to purckasees of Common Stock of the Company held by &meployee, as computed in accordance with
Section 423[b][3] of the Code or any successor igion thereto) possessing 5% or more of the taiailined voting power or value of all classes otkto
of the Company. For purposes of determining thekstavnership of any Employee, the provisions oft®eac424[d] of the Code shall apply.

ARTICLE V - Offering Under the Plan

5.1 Offerings under the Plan shall be made on €ftdring Dates as shall be determined by the Plami@ittee. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary,
no Offering shall be made on any date prior todag that a required registration statement wispeet to such Offering filed under the Securities éf
1933, as amended, has become effective. Nothingiced herein shall be deemed to require that #&ri@f be made in any year.

5.2 [a] Subject to the limitations set forth in 8ews 5.2[b] and 6.3, and to the other terms amltimns of the Plan, in each offering under therPkeach
Eligible Employee on an Offering Date shall be oéfitthe right during the Subscription Period as/jgled in Section 6.2, to subscribe to purchase such
number of Shares as the percentage designatec Blah Committee for such offering (not to exce®s) 6f his Compensation would buy, at a price equal
to the product of (i) the fair market value of aa&hon the Offering Date, multiplied by (ii) therPhiase Price percentage utilized under Sectiohér&of.

[b] Notwithstanding anything to the contragntained in Sub-Section [a] of this Section 5.2Htigible Employee shall be eligible to subscribe f
Shares in an Offering if, immediately after he wbslibscribe for such Shares, such subscriptiondveelmit his rights to purchase shares of Common
Stock under all employee stock purchase planseoCthmpany to accrue at a rate which exceeds $2%0@&uch other maximum amounts as may be
prescribed from time to time under the Code) offtiemarket value of such shares (determined akeOffering Date for such Offering) for each calar
year in which such subscription would be outstagdihany time. For purposes of this limitation mevisions of Section 423[b][8] of the Code shal b
applicable.

5.3 The Purchase Price per share subscribed fS8halles in a particular Offering shall be an ameaugptal to such percentages, not greater than 1@% n
less than 85%, as shall be determined by the Ptamn@ttee on or prior to the Offering Date, of tlaér fmarket value of a share of Common Stock
(determined in accordance with the provisions dfcde Xlll) on one of the following dates with resgt to such Offering, with such date to be deteediby
the Plan Committee on or prior to the Offering Détethe Offering Date, (ii) the Purchase Date(idy the Offering Date or the Purchase Date (Vileicer
would result in a lower Purchase Price for the Camr8tock).




5.4 In order to participate in any Offering, andgiile Employee entitled to subscribe for Sharesuich Offering shall comply with the subscription
procedures set forth in Article VI.

ARTICLE VI - Subscriptionsfor Shares

6.1 As soon as practicable after an Offering De,Company shall furnish to each Eligible Emplogegubscription Agreement setting forth the maxin
number of Shares to which such Eligible Employeg subscribe in such Offering, the fair market vghee share of Common Stock on the Offering Date,
the Purchase Price for Shares in such Offeringsaicti other terms and conditions consistent wittPlae as shall be determined by the Plan Committee.

6.2 Within fifteen (15) days after receipt of sushbscription Agreement, an Eligible Employee dagito participate in the Offering shall notify tRéan
Committee of the number of Shares for which herdedb subscribe. Such natification shall be effddiy the Eligible Employee's completing, executing
and returning to the Secretary of the Company thzs&iption Agreement. All such subscriptions shalldeemed to have been made as of the Offering
Date. No subscription shall be accepted from amggrewho is not an Eligible Employee on the dateshibscription is received by the Company.

6.3 The minimum number of Shares for which an BlggEmployee will be permitted to subscribe in &ffering is ten (10) (or the number of Shares
offered to him if fewer than ten). If at any tintetShares available for an Offering are oversubedrithe Number of Shares for which each Eligible
Employee is entitled to subscribe pursuant to $adi2 shall be reduced, pro rata, to such lowerbar as may be necessary to eliminate such over-
subscription.

6.4 If an Eligible Employee fails to subscribe e Shares within the period and in the manner plestin Section 6.2, he shall waive all rightgptochase
Shares in that Offering.

ARTICLE VII - Payment for Shares

7.1 The aggregate Purchase Price for the Shareghfoh a Participant subscribes in any Offering@cordance with the provisions of Article VI of tR&an
shall be paid by means of payroll deductions.

7.2 [a] The aggregate Purchase Price for Shardiseghpaid by payroll deductions in equal amountsra period of 24 months (or such shorter perid a
shall be determined by the Plan Committee in acmwed with the Plan) from the Offering Date. Theiqmtover which such payroll deductions are to be
made in hereinafter referred to as the "Paymerio@er

[b] Such payroll deductions with respect toQffering shall commence as soon as practicabés #fe receipt of the Company of the executed
Subscription Agreement authorizing such payrolludgidns, and shall cease upon the earlier of thitation of the Payment Period or payment in &l
the Purchase Price for such Shares. A Participagtaancel his subscription to the extent providedrf Article X, but no other change in terms o hi
Subscription Agreement may be made during the Pay®eriod and, in particular, in no event may aiBi@ant change the amount of his payroll
deductions under such Subscription Agreement. &lrpll deductions withheld from a Participant undeBubscription Agreement shall be credited to his
account under the Plan. In the event that payesludtions are simultaneously being made with respanore than one Subscription Agreement, the
aggregate amount of such payroll deductions apagay shall be credited first toward the paymentShares subscribed for in the earliest Offering.
Participant may not make any separate cash payimtertiis account, provided, however, that a Paoéint who has been deemed to be in the employ of the
Company while on an Authorized Leave of Absencéatit pay during the Payment Period, may upon higmeo the actual employ of the Company, r
a cash payment into his account in an amount ne#exking the aggregate of the payroll deductiongshvhiould have been made during such Authorized
Leave of Absence.




[c] All funds representing payroll deductidios the accounts of Participants will, except asvided in Section 7.3, be paid into the generatifuof
the Company. No interest will be paid or accruedasrany circumstances on any funds withheld byQbmpany as payroll deductions pursuant to this
Section 7.2 or on any other funds paid to the Comar purchases of Shares under the Plan.

7.3 Notwithstanding anything in this Article VII the contrary, with respect to any Offering whishmade prior to the approval of the Plan by the
stockholders of the Company, all payroll deductiasthheld for the accounts of Participants shailkjlithe Plan is approved by the stockholders, éle by
the Company in a special escrow account for thefitesf such Participants. No interest will be paidaccrued under any circumstances on such finals.
Shares will be issued to such Participants untirafpproval of the Plan by the stockholders. indlient that the Plan is not approved by the stddkins
within the period specified in Article XVII, all s funds will thereupon be promptly refunded to thgpective Participants.

7.4 Failure to pay for subscribed Shares as pravid¢his Article VII shall constitute the cancéita of such subscription to the extent that anghsBhares
shall not have been so paid for.

ARTICLE VIII - Issuance of Shares

8.1 At the end of the Payment Period for an Offgrigach of which dates is referred to as a "Pwelizate"), the balance of all amounts then hettien
account of a Participant representing payroll dédaos pursuant to a Subscription Agreement sha#ifijied to the purchase by the Participant froen th
Company of the number of Shares equal to the anmfusuch balance divided by the Purchase Priceipare for such Shares applicable on such Purchase
Date up to the number of Shares provided for inrélspective Subscription Agreement. Any amount ieimg in the Participant's account in excess of the
sum required to purchase whole Shares on a Pur€raseshall be promptly refunded to the ParticipAistsoon as practicable after a Purchase Date, the
Company will issue and deliver to the Participantdificate representing the Shares purchasedrbyrbm the Company on such Purchase Date. No
fractional shares will be issued at any time.

8.2 A Participant who disposes (whether by saleharge, gift or otherwise) of any of the Sharesuaed by him pursuant to the Plan within two (2ae
after the Offering Date for such Shares or withire §1) year after the issuance of Shares to hirh sbify the Company in writing of such dispositio
within thirty (30) days after such disposition.




ARTICLE IX - Rightsof Stockholders

9.1 A Participant shall not have any rights to dérds or any other rights as a stockholder of th@@ny with respect to any Shares until such Stedraks
have been issued to him as reflected by the bontserords maintained by the Company's transfentagéating to stockholders of the Company.

ARTICLE X - Voluntary Withdrawal/Termination of Employment

10.1 A Participant may discontinue his payroll detthns under a Subscription Agreement at any tigngibing written notice thereof to the Plan
Committee, effective for all payroll periods commamy five (5) days after receipt of such noticethg Plan Committee. The balance in the accounticti s
Participant following such discontinuance shallbbemptly refunded to the Participant. Withdrawalnfr an Offering pursuant to this Section 10.1 shall
affect an Eligible Employee's eligibility to paiipate in any other Offering under the Plan.

10.2 If the Participant's employment with the Compis terminated for any reason other than deatkhevstill an Employee, such Participant's rights to
purchase Shares under any Subscription Agreemalttisimediately terminate. Any balance remainindpisl account as of the date of such termination of
employment shall be promptly refunded to the Pigiat.

10.3 In the event of the death of an Employee whe a/Participant prior to the purchase of the Shiarewhich he subscribed pursuant to Article Vidd,
the person or persons who acquired by laws of a¢soa distribution (his "Estate") his rights torghiase Shares under his Subscription Agreemest{al,
have the right within ninety (90) days after thaitheof the Participant (but in no event later th@termination of the Payment Period) to purclesa the
Company that number of Shares subscribed for ah@swed to the Participant prior to his death Wwhtwe balance in the Participant's payroll deductio
account is sufficient to purchase. The failurehaf person or persons so acquiring his rights giw®notice of intention to purchase shall consgita
forfeiture of all further rights of the Participamit other persons to purchase such Shares andhinesent, the balance in the Participant's pagedluction
account will be refunded, without interest. If fRarticipant dies more than fifty (50) days priothe termination of the Payment Period and histEstkects
to purchase the Shares subscribed for, the Puréhasefor his Shares shall be the percentagegudatad pursuant to Section 5.3, of the fair maviabie
on the Offering Date, irrespective of the Purchsee for other Participants.




ARTICLE Xl - Non-Transferability of Subscription Rights

11.1 During the lifetime of a Participant, the Skgafor which he subscribes may be purchased onhirbyNo Subscription Agreement of a Participard an
no right under or interest in the Plan or any sBabscription Agreement (hereinafter collectivelfereed to as "Subscription Rights") may be assigned
transferred, pledged, hypothecated or disposen afy way (whether by operation of law or othernyisxcept by the Participant's will or by the apable
laws of descent and distribution, or may be sulijgeixecution, attachment or similar process. Asgignment, transfer, pledge, hypothecation or other
disposition of Subscription Rights, or any levyesdecution, attachment or other process attempted Spbscription Rights, shall be null and void and
without effect, and in any such event all Subs@ipRights shall, in the sole discretion of therPGommittee (exercised by written notice to thetiBigant
or to the person then entitled to purchase theeShamder the provisions of Sections 10.3 hereafininate as of the occurrence of any such event.

ARTICLE XII - Administration of the Plan

12.1 The Plan shall be administered by a Plan Catmenivhich shall consist of two (2) or more memhsrhe Board of Directors, none of whom shall be
eligible to participate in the Plan. The memberthefPlan Committee shall be appointed, and magimm®ved, by the Board of Directors. The Board of
Directors shall have the power to remove and stuttstfor members of the Plan Committee and tafiy vacancy which may occur in the Plan Committee.

12.2 Unless otherwise determined by the Board ofé@ors, the members of the Plan Committee shalessithout additional compensation for their
services. All expenses in connection with the adstiation of the Plan, including, but not limitea tlerical, legal and accounting fees, and otbstscof
administration, shall be paid by the Company.

12.3 The Chairman of the Plan Committee shall lsigtated by the Board of Directors. The Plan Cormaishall select a Secretary who need not be a
member of the Plan Committee. The Secretary, bisrmbsence, any member of the Plan Committee mtsid by the Chairman, shall keep the minutes of
the proceedings of the Plan Committee and all datards and documents relating to the adminisimatf the Plan by the Plan Committee.

12.4 A quorum of the Plan Committee shall be suahlmer as the Committee shall from time to time heilee, but shall not be less than a majority of the
entire Plan Committee. The acts of a majority ef thembers of the Plan Committee present at anyimgeggttwhich a quorum is present shall be the fct o
the Plan Committee. Members of the Plan Committag participate in a meeting by means of telepha@méerence or similar communications procedure
pursuant to which all persons participating intieeting can hear each other. The Plan Committeetakayaction without a meeting if such action is
evidenced by a writing signed by at least a majaftthe entire Plan Committee.

12.5 The Plan Committee may, by an instrument itivg;, delegate to one or more of its members artofficer or officers of the Company any of its
powers and its authority under the Plan, includhmgexecution and delivery on its behalf of insteums, instructions and other documents.




12.6 It shall be the sole and exclusive duty arttiarity of the Plan Committee to interpret and ¢amsthe provisions of the Plan, to decide any uisp
which may arise with regard to the status, eligip#nd rights of Employees under the terms ofRben, and any other persons claiming an interedeiutine
terms of the Plan, and, in general, to direct thmiaistration of the Plan.

12.7 The Plan Committee may adopt, and from tintexie amend, such rules and regulations consist&ghtthe purposes and provisions of the Plan, as it
deems necessary or advisable to administer ancteéfie the Plan.

12.8 The Plan Committee may shorten, lengthenr{btubeyond thirty (30) days) or waive the time riegd by the Plan for the filing of any notice ohet
form under the Plan.

12.9 The discretionary powers granted hereundgretd®’lan Committee shall in no event be exerciseghy manner that will discriminate against indiadl
employees or a class of employees or discrimimatavior of employees who are shareholders, offirpervisors or highly compensated employeeseof th
Company.

ARTICLE XlII - Valuation of Shares of Common Stock
13.1 For purposes of the Plan, the "fair marketi&abf a share of Common Stock as of any date bleatletermined as follows:

[a] If the Common Stock is then listed on &éioraal securities exchange, the "fair market valsigdll be the closing price of a share of Commartist
on such exchange on such date, or, if there hasreeale of shares of Common Stock on that dageglbsing price of a share of Common Stock on such
exchange on the last preceding business day orhwhiares of Common Stock were traded.

[b] If the Common Stock is then listed on the Matl Association of Securities Dealers Automatiofation System National Market System, the
market value" shall be the average of the highlandsales prices of a share of Common Stock ondht, or if there has been no sale of shares of
Common Stock on that date, the average of the dmghlow sales prices of Common Stock on the lastqaiing business day on which shares of Common
Stock were traded.

ARTICLE XIV - Adjustmentsin Certain Events

14.1 If (i) the Company shall at any time be imeahvin a transaction to which ssketion [a] of Section 424 of the Code is appliealil) the Company sh:
declare a dividend payable in, or shall sub-divadeombine, its Common Stock, or (iii) any otheeet/shall occur which in the judgment of the Boafd
Directors necessitates action by way of adjustiregtérms of the outstanding Subscription AgreeménésBoard of Directors shall take any such actisn
in its judgment shall be appropriate to preserugiéipant rights substantially proportionate to tights existing prior to such event. To the extat such
action shall include an increase or decrease imtineber of shares of Common Stock subject to cudatg Subscription Agreements, the aggregate nu
of shares available under Article Il hereof fasuance under the Plan pursuant to outstanding 8ptiss Agreements and Subscription Agreements tvhic
may be entered into, and the aggregate numberaoéslavailable for issuance in any Offering andhtlmaber which may be subscribed for, shall be
proportionately increased or decreased, as thersagéde. No action shall be taken by the Boardicéd@ors under the provisions of this Article XIVhigh,
in its judgment, would constitute a modificationt@nsion or renewal of the Subscription Agreemaiithin the meaning of Section 424[h] of the Cod®),
would prevent the Plan from qualifying as an "enypl® stock purchase plan" (within the meaning ofiSee23 of the Code). The determination of the
Board of Directors with respect to any matter nefdrto in this Article XIV shall be conclusive ahthding upon each Participant.




ARTICLE XV - Termination and Amendment of the Plan

15.1 The Board of Directors may, without furthepegval by the stockholders of the Company, at &mg terminate or amend the Plan without notice, or
make such modifications of the Plan as it shalhde€visable; provided that the Board of Directoeymot, without prior approval by the holders of a
majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stfdke Company, amend or modify the Plan so a§ tadrease the maximum number of shares of
Common Stock which may be issued under the Placef#as contemplated in Article XIV hereof), (i¥tend the term during which Offerings may be
made under the Plan or (iii) increase the maximumiver of Shares which an Eligible Employee is Etito purchase (except as contemplated in Article
XIV hereof); and provided further that the Boarddfectors may not amend or modify the Plan in amnner which would prevent the Plan from
qualifying as an "employee stock purchase planthiwithe meaning of Section 423 of the Code). Nmieation, amendment or modification of the Plan
may, without the consent of a Participant, advgraéfect the rights of such Participant under atstanding Subscription Agreement.

ARTICLE XVI - Miscellaneous

16.1 Unless otherwise expressly provided in the Ril notices or other communications by a Paréint to the Company under or in connection with the
Plan shall be deemed to have been duly given wibegived by the Secretary of the Company or wheeived in the form specified by the Company at the
location and by the persons, designated by the @agnfor the receipt thereof.

16.2 Notwithstanding anything hereunder to the gt the offer, sale and delivery by the Compah$lwares under the Plan to any Eligible Employee is
subject to compliance with all applicable secusitiegulation and other federal and state laws.t&hms of this Plan shall be construed under the lafthe
State of Connecticut.




ARTICLE XVII - Effective Date

17.1 The Plan shall become effective at such tisndha Plan has been adopted by the Board of Direeotosuch later date as shall be designated by the
Board of Directors upon its adoption of the Plargvided, however, that the Plan and all SubscnipAgreements entered into thereunder shall bepand
deemed to have been, null and void if the Plarotsapproved by the holders of a majority of thestariding shares of Common Stock of the Company

within twelve (12) months after the date on whikh Plan is adopted by the Board of Directors.




Exhibit 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF PHOTRONICS, INC.

State or Jurisdiction
of Incorporation or Organization

Align-Rite International, Inc. (California, USA)
Align-Rite, Inc. (Florida, USA)
Align-Rite International, Ltd. (United Kingdom

Photronics (Wales) Limited (United Kingdom
Photronics, B.V. (Netherlands)

Photronics Arizona, Inc. (Arizona, USA)

Photronics California, Inc. (California, USA)

Photronics Idaho, Inc. (Idaho, USA)

Photronics Texas, Inc. (Texas, USA)
Photronics Texas I, LLC (Delaware, USA)

Photronics Texas I, B (Texas, USA)

Photronics Texas Allen, Inc. (Texas, USA)

Photronics Texas Il, LLC (Delaware, USA)
Photronics Texas I, LB (Texas, USA)

Photronics MZD, GmbH (Germany)

Photronics Imaging Technologies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (China)

Photronics Semiconductor Mask Corporatign (Taiwan, R.0.C.)

Photronics Switzerland, S.a.r.L (Switzerland)

Photronics Singapore Pte, Ltd. (Singapore)

Photronics UK, Ltd. (United Kingdom
Photronics France SAS (France)

PK, Ltd. () (Korea)

PKLT (Taiwan)

Trianja Technologies, Inc. (Texas, USA)

Note: Entities directly owned by subsidiaries obRbnics, Inc. are indented and listed below tiremediate parent. Ownership is 100% unless other
indicated.

(1) 99.0% owned by Photronics Texas I, LLC, and 1.0%exvby Photronics Texas, Inc. (directly and indigeén the aggregate, wholly owned by
Photronics, Inc.)

(2) 99.0% owned by Photronics Texas Il, LLC., andd @&vned by Photronics Texas Allen, Inc. (directhgdandirectly, in the aggregate, wholly owned
by Photronics, Inc.)

(3) 57.53% owned by Photronics, Ir

(4)  99% owned by Photronics UK, Ltd., and 1% ownedPhptronics MZD, GmbH (directly and indirectly, time aggregate, wholly owned by
Photronics, Inc.)

(5) 79.98% owned by Photronics, Inc., and 19.71% owneBhotronics Singapore Pte L




EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-160235 and 333-16085Form S-3 and Registration Statement Nos. 333-
169296, 333-169295, 333-02245, 333-42010, 333-5088®-86846, 333-78102 and 333-151763 on Form Se8ioreports dated January 14, 2011,
relating to the consolidated financial statements financial statement schedule of Photronics, &ncl subsidiaries (which report expresses an uifigahl
opinion and includes an explanatory paragraph aoimg the adoption of new accounting standards@mcontrolling interests as set forth in Consolmtat
Topic No. 810 of the Accounting Standards Codifmat and the effectiveness of Photronics, Inc. sulgsidiaries internal control over financial repayt
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of twoics, Inc. and subsidiaries for the year endetbter 31, 2010.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Stamford, Connecticut
January 14, 2011




EXHIBIT 31.1

I, Constantine S. Macricostas, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Photronics, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not Goriay untrue statement of a material fact or dmitate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances uwlieeh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this rej

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in thipoet, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cislvs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this repo

The registrant's other certifying officer and¢ aesponsible for establishing and maintainingldsure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amtriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduties tesigned under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiariesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidhig report is being prepare

b)  designed such internal control over financiabrtipg, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtioe reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatioq principles

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registram&absure controls and procedures and presenttisiannual report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prooes] as of the end of the period covered by thigial report based on such evaluation;

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regmdts internal control over financial reportingttoccurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal daain the case of an annual report) that has nadlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelyal
affect, the registrant's internal control over fingl reporting; an

The registrant's other certifying officer andaMe disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiortiernal control over financial reporting, tceth
registrant's auditors and the audit committee efrédgistrant's board of directors (or persons perifg the equivalent functions

a) all significant deficiencies and material wealsessin the design or operation of internal corkar financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiaimation; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involmesnagement or other employees who have a sigmifioée in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting

/s/ CONSTANTINE S. MACRICOSTA

Constantine S. Macricostas
Chief Executive Officer
January 14, 2011




EXHIBIT 31.2

I, Sean T. Smith, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this AnnuReport on Form 1-K of Photronics, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not @o@tay untrue statement of a material fact or dmgtate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances uwtiich such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this
report.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in thipoet, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and clists of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this repo

The registrant's other certifying officer andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingldsure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amnat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiariesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidhig report is being prepare

b) designed such internal control over financiabréipg, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riaggtite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principle

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registramsasure controls and procedures and presentttsimnnual report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prooes] as of the end of the period covered by thigial report based on such evaluation;

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regig's internal control over financial reportingtioccurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal daain the case of an annual report) that has nadlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; an

The registrant's other certifying officer andavie disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial reporting, tceth
registrant's auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant's board of directors (or persons periftg the equivalent functions

a) all significant deficiencies and material wealsessin the design or operation of internal condxar financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiaimation; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involmesnagement or other employees who have a signifiode in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting

/sl SEAN T. SMITF

Sean T. Smith
Chief Financial Officer
January 14, 2011




EXHIBIT 32.1
Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Executive @icer

I, Constantine S. Macricostas, Chief Executive €gffiof Photronics, Inc. (the "Company"), certifyrpuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company Far year ended October 31, 2010 (the "Report") ftdigplies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act @d4;%nd

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctiodiand results of operations of the Company.

/s CONSTANTINE S. MACRICOSTA
Constantine S. Macricostas

Chief Executive Officer

January 14, 2011




EXHIBIT 32.2
Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Financial Gficer

I, Sean T. Smith, Chief Financial Officer of Phatics, Inc. (the "Company"), certify, pursuant tact@n 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18.0.S
Section 1350, that:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company Far year ended October 31, 2010 (the "Report") ftdigplies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act @d4;%nd

(2) theinformation contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of the Company.

/sl SEAN T. SMITF
Sean T. Smith

Chief Financial Officer
January 14, 2011




